
  

MUNICIPAL DISTRICT OF GREENVIEW NO. 16 
 

 
 
 
 
  

Greenview, Alberta     1 

REGULAR COUNCIL 

MEETING AGENDA 

 
Tuesday, September 27, 2016 9:00 AM Council Chambers 

Administration Building 
 

 
#1 CALL TO ORDER 

 
  

#2 ADOPTION OF AGENDA 
 

 1 

#3 MINUTES 3.1  Regular Council Meeting minutes held September 13, 2016 –     
        to be adopted. 
 

3 

  3.2  Business Arising from the Minutes 
 

 

#4 PUBLIC HEARING 
 

  

#5 DELEGATION 
 

5.1 Canada Post Report Presentation 16 

  5.2  Grande Prairie Stompede Presentation  
 

21 

  5.3  Mr. Wayne Drysdale MLA for Grande Prairie-Wapiti 
 

37 

#6 BYLAWS 
 

6.1 Bylaw 15-742 Municipal Development Plan 2016 
 

38 

  6.2 Bylaw 16-772 Local Authorities Pension Plan 
 

146 

#7 OLD BUSINESS 
 

  

#8 NEW BUSINESS 
 

8.1 Federal Tanker Moratorium 
 

152 

  8.2 Fox Creek Fire Hall Agreement  
 

156 

  8.3 Fox Creek Multiplex Agreement 
 

167 

  8.4 Regional Non-Motorized Trails  178 

1



8.5  Sweathouse Hall Request for Additional Gravel 181 

8.6  DeBolt and District Agricultural Society Vegas Gala 
    Sponsorship 

184 

8.7  Valleyview and District Chamber Small Business Awards 187 

8.8  Valleyview Jets Sponsorship 193 

8.9  Nitehawk Comedy Night Sponsorship 197 

8.10  2016 Second Quarter Report  201 

8.11  Security Deposits for Residential Construction to Proposed 296 

305 

327 

          Residential Developments  

8.12  Provincial Linear Property Assessment – 2016 Annual Report 

8.13  Heart River Housing  

8.14  AAMDC – Minister Municipal Affairs  330 

8.15  Town Infrastructure Audits - 

8.16  CAO Report 332 

#9 COUNCILLORS 
BUSINESS & REPORTS 

#10 CORRESPONDENCE  Fox Creek Wildfire Correspondence
 Compliments on Swan Lake Improvements
 Letter from District Commander RCMP
 TransCanada Project Update
 Transport Canada Railway Safety Act
 Peace Library System - Board Meeting Highlights

#11 IN CAMERA 

#12 ADJOURNMENT 

2



 

 

 Minutes of a 
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 

MUNICIPAL DISTRICT OF GREENVIEW NO. 16 
M.D. Administration Building, 

Valleyview, Alberta, on Tuesday, September 13, 2016 
 

# 1: 
CALL TO ORDER 
 

Reeve Dale Gervais called the meeting to order at 9:00 a.m. 

PRESENT 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ATTENDING 
 
 
 
 
 

Reeve   Dale Gervais 
Deputy Reeve   Tom Burton 
Councillors   George Delorme (9:05 a.m.) 
   Dave Hay 
   Roxie Rutt 
   Bill Smith 
   Dale Smith 
   Les Urness 
    
 
Chief Administrative Officer  Mike Haugen 
General Manager, Corporate Services  Rosemary Offrey 
General Manager, Community Services  Dennis Mueller 
Communications Assistant   Dale Tiedemann  
Recording Secretary  Lianne Kruger 
 

ABSENT General Manager, Infrastructure & Planning  Grant Gyurkovits 
Communications Officer  Diane Carter 
 

#2:  
AGENDA  
 

MOTION: 16.09.326. Moved by: COUNCILLOR DALE SMITH 
That the August 23, 2016 agenda be adopted as presented. 
   CARRIED 
 

#3.1 
REGULAR COUNCIL 
MEETING MINUTES 
 

MOTION: 16.09.327. Moved by: COUNCILLOR ROXIE RUTT 
That the Minutes of the Regular Council Meeting held on Tuesday, August 23, 
2016 be adopted as presented. 
   CARRIED 
    

#3.2 
BUSINESS ARISING 
FROM MINUTES 
 

3.2  BUSINESS ARISING FROM MINUTES: 
 
 
 
 
 
 

3



 Minutes of a Regular Council Meeting  September 13, 2016 
M.D. of Greenview No. 16 
Page 2 

 

 

 6.5 BYLAW 16-767 BIG MOUNTAIN INDUSTRIAL PARK AREA STRUCTURE PLAN 

BYLAW 16-767 
THIRD READING 

MOTION: 16.09.328. Moved by: COUNCILLOR DALE SMITH 
That Council give Third Reading to Bylaw No. 16-767, for the Big Mountain 
Industrial Park Area Structure Plan. 
   CARRIED 
 

 6.6 BYLAW 16-763 RE-DESIGNATE FROM AGRICULTURE (A) DISTRICT TO 
INDUSTRIAL (I) DISTRICT 
 

BYLAW 16-763 
SECOND READING 

MOTION: 16.09.329. Moved by: DEPUTY REEVE TOM BURTON 
That Council give Second Reading to Bylaw No. 16-763, to re-designate a 49.67 
hectare ± (122.75 acre) area within SE-1-69-6-W6, Plan 8822869, Lot 2 from 
Agriculture (A) District to Industrial (I) District, as per attached Schedule ‘E’. 
   CARRIED 
 

BYLAW 16-763 
THIRD READING 

MOTION: 16.09.330. Moved by: COUNCILLOR DAVE HAY 
That Council give Third Reading to Bylaw No. 16-763, to re-designate a 49.67 
hectare ± (122.75 acre) area within SE-1-69-6-W6, Plan 8822869, Lot 2 from 
Agriculture (A) District to Industrial (I) District, as per attached Schedule ‘E’. 
   CARRIED 
 

#7 
OLD BUSINESS 

7.0 OLD BUSINESS 

 There was no Old Business to report. 
 

#8 
NEW BUSINESS 

8.0 NEW BUSINESS 
 

 8.1 AAMDC DISCUSSION – COUNCIL CODE OF CONDUCT REGULATION 

COUNCIL CODE OF 
CONDUCT 
REGULATION 

MOTION: 16.09.331. Moved by: COUNCILLOR ROXIE RUTT 
That Council direct Administration to submit feedback to the AAMDC regarding 
the proposed Code of Conduct Regulation as amended with the pre-nomination 
training being a requirement of running for Council. 
   CARRIED 
 

 8.2 AAMDC DISCUSSION – FINANCIAL PLAN REGULATION 

FINANCIAL PLAN 
REGULATION 

MOTION: 16.09.332. Moved by: DEPUTY REEVE TOM BURTON 
That Council direct Administration to submit feedback to the AAMDC regarding 
the proposed Financial Plan Regulation as presented. 
   CARRIED 

4



 Minutes of a Regular Council Meeting  September 13, 2016 
M.D. of Greenview No. 16 
Page 3 

 

 

#5 
DELEGATIONS 

5.0 DELEGATIONS  

 5.1 DISCONTINUING BUSINESS RELATIONS 

 Billy Loewen provided his rationale in regarding Administrations decision to 
discontinue business relations with his company Shabranee Trucking. 
 

SHABRANEE 
TRUCKING 

MOTION: 16.09.333. Moved by: COUNCILLOR LES URNESS 
That Council accept the presentation by Billy Loewen (Shebranee Trucking) as 
Information. 
     CARRIED 
 

 Reeve Dale Gervais recessed the meeting at 9:51 a.m. 
Reeve Dale Gervais reconvened the meeting at 10:01 a.m. 
 

#4  
PUBLIC HEARINGS 

4.0 PUBLIC HEARINGS 

 4.1 BYLAW 16-769 RE-DESIGNATE FROM AGRICULTURE (A) DISTRICT TO 
COUNTRY RESIDENTIAL (CR-1) DISTRICT 
 

 Chair Dale Gervais opened the Public Hearing regarding Bylaw 16-769 at 10:02 
a.m. 
 

IN ATTENDANCE Manager, Planning & Development  Leona Dixon 
Land Owner   Shane Gale 
 

INTRODUCTIONS
  

The Chair requested each Council Member and Staff member to introduce 
themselves and asked Council Members if there were any reasons that they 
should be disqualified from the hearing. 
Each Members’ reply was “No.” 
 

 The Chair asked the applicants if there was any objection or concern with any 
members sitting on the Board. 
The answer was “No.” 
 

PURPOSE FOR THE 
HEARING 

The purpose of the hearing is to hear submissions for and opposed to proposed 
Bylaw 16-769, being the bylaw of the MD of Greenview, is to re-designate a 
4.04 hectare ± (9.98 acre) area within NE 20 72 1 W6 from Agriculture (A) 
District to Country Residential One (CR-1) District. 
 

REFERRAL AGENCY 
& ADJACENT 
LANDOWNER 
COMMENTS 

Development Officer, Leona Dixon provided a summary of the responses from 
the referral agencies. 

5



 Minutes of a Regular Council Meeting  September 13, 2016 
M.D. of Greenview No. 16 
Page 4 

 

 

QUESTIONS FROM 
COUNCIL 

The Chair called for any questions from Council. 
None were heard. 
 

THOSE IN FAVOR The Chair requested that anyone in favour of the application come forward. 
None came forward. 
 

THOSE AGAINST The Chair requested that anyone against the application come forward. 
 

QUESTIONS FROM 
COUNCIL 

The Chair called for any questions from Council. 
None were heard. 
 

QUESTIONS FROM 
THE APPLICANT OR 
PRESENTER 

The Chair called for any questions form the Applicant or those that had spoken 
in favour or against the application with regards to the comments for Planning 
and Development, the referral agencies, or adjacent landowners. 
None were heard. 
 

FAIR & IMPARTIAL 
HEARING 

The chair asked the Applicant if they have had a fair and impartial hearing. 
The answer was “Yes”. 
 

BYLAW 16-769 
PUBLIC HEARING 
ADJOURNED 
 

Chair Dale Gervais adjourned the Public Hearing regarding Bylaw 16-769 at 
10:18 a.m. 
 

 4.2 BYLAW 16-770 RE-DESIGNATE FROM AGRICULTURE (A) DISTRICT TO 
COUNTRY RESIDENTIAL ONE (CR-1) DISTRICT 
 

 Chair Dale Gervais opened the Public Hearing regarding Bylaw 16-770 at 10:19 
a.m. 
 

IN ATTENDANCE Development Officer  Lindsey Lemieux 

INTRODUCTIONS
  

The Chair requested each Council Member and Staff member to introduce 
themselves and asked Council Members if there were any reasons that they 
should be disqualified from the hearing. 
Each Members’ reply was “No.” 
 

 The Chair asked the applicants if there was any objection or concern with any 
members sitting on the Board. 
The answer was “No.” 
 

PURPOSE FOR THE 
HEARING 

The purpose of the hearing is to hear submissions for and opposed to proposed 
Bylaw 16-770, being the bylaw of the MD of Greenview, is to re-designate a 

6



 Minutes of a Regular Council Meeting  September 13, 2016 
M.D. of Greenview No. 16 
Page 5 

 

 

4.04 hectare ± (9.98 acre) area from Agriculture (A) District to Country 
Residential One (CR-1) District. 
 

REFERRAL AGENCY 
& ADJACENT 
LANDOWNER 
COMMENTS 
 

Development Officer, Lindsey Lemieux provided a summary of the responses 
from the referral agencies. 

QUESTIONS FROM 
COUNCIL 

The Chair called for any questions from Council. 
None were heard. 
 

THOSE IN FAVOR The Chair requested that anyone in favour of the application come forward. 
None came forward. 
 

THOSE AGAINST The Chair requested that anyone against the application come forward. 
None came forward. 
 

QUESTIONS FROM 
COUNCIL 

The Chair called for any questions from Council. 
None were heard. 
 

QUESTIONS FROM 
THE APPLICANT OR 
PRESENTER 

The Chair called for any questions form the Applicant or those that had spoken 
in favour or against the application with regards to the comments for Planning 
and Development, the referral agencies, or adjacent landowners. 
None were heard. 
 

FAIR & IMPARTIAL 
HEARING 

The chair asked the Applicant if they have had a fair and impartial hearing. 
None were present. 
 

BYLAW 16-770 
PUBLIC HEARING 
ADJOURNED 
 

Chair Dale Gervais adjourned the Public Hearing regarding Bylaw 16-770 at 
10:21 a.m. 
 

 4.3 BYLAW 16-768 ROAD BAN BYLAW 

 Chair Dale Gervais opened the Public Hearing regarding Bylaw 16-768 at 10:21 
a.m. 
 

IN ATTENDANCE Manager, Operations  Gord Meaney 
 

INTRODUCTIONS
  

The Chair requested each Council Member and Staff member to introduce 
themselves and asked Council Members if there were any reasons that they 
should be disqualified from the hearing. 
Each Members’ reply was “No.” 
 

7



 Minutes of a Regular Council Meeting  September 13, 2016 
M.D. of Greenview No. 16 
Page 6 

 

 

 The Chair asked the applicants if there was any objection or concern with any 
members sitting on the Board. 
The answer was “No.” 
 

PURPOSE FOR THE 
HEARING 

The purpose of the hearing is to revise the current organization structure and is 
intended to stream line administrations functions in enacting the Bylaw.  
 

BYLAW 16-768 
PUBLIC HEARING 
ADJOURNED 
 

Chair Dale Gervais adjourned the Public Hearing regarding Bylaw 16-768 at 
10:32 a.m. 
 
 

 4.4 BYLAW 16-771 LICENSE OF OCCUPATION BYLAW 

 Chair Dale Gervais opened the Public Hearing regarding Bylaw 16-771 at 10:32 
a.m. 
 

IN ATTENDANCE Manager, Operations  Gord Meaney 
 

INTRODUCTIONS
  

The Chair requested each Council Member and Staff member to introduce 
themselves and asked Council Members if there were any reasons that they 
should be disqualified from the hearing. 
Each Members’ reply was “No.” 
 

 The Chair asked the applicants if there was any objection or concern with any 
members sitting on the Board. 
The answer was “No.” 
 

PURPOSE FOR THE 
HEARING 

The purpose of the hearing is to allow Greenview to hold an agreement with 
the applicant for the purpose of utilizing a road allowance for agricultural use. 
 

BYLAW 16-771 
PUBLIC HEARING 
ADJOURNED 
 

Chair Dale Gervais adjourned the Public Hearing regarding Bylaw 16-771 at 
10:46 a.m. 
 

#6 
BYLAWS 

6.0 BYLAWS 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

8



 Minutes of a Regular Council Meeting  September 13, 2016 
M.D. of Greenview No. 16 
Page 7 

 

 

 6.1  BYLAW 16-769 RE-DESIGNATE FROM AGRICULTURE (A) DISTRICT TO 
COUNTRY RESIDENTIAL (CR-1) DISTRICT 
 

BYLAW 16-769        
SECOND READING 

MOTION: 16.09.334. Moved by: DEPUTY REEVE TOM BURTON 
That Council give Second Reading to Bylaw No. 16-769, to re-designate a 4.04 
hectare ± (9.98 acre) area within NE-20-72-1-W6 from Agriculture (A) District to 
Country Residential One (CR-1) District, as per attached Schedule ‘E’. 
     CARRIED 
 

BYLAW 16-769       
THIRD READING 

MOTION: 16.09.335. Moved by: COUNCILLOR DALE SMITH 
That Council give Third Reading to Bylaw No. 16-769, to re-designate a 4.04 
hectare ± (9.98 acre) area within NE-20-72-1-W6 from Agriculture (A) District to 
Country Residential One (CR-1) District, as per attached Schedule ‘E’. 
   CARRIED 
 

 6.2 BYLAW 16-770 RE-DESIGNATE FROM AGRICULTURE (A) DISTRICT TO 
COUNTRY RESIDENTIAL ONE (CR-1) DISTRICT 
 

BYLAW 16-770     
SECOND READING 

MOTION: 16.09.336. Moved by: COUNCILLOR ROXIE RUTT 
That Council give Second Reading to Bylaw No. 16-770, to re-designate a 4.04 
hectare ± (9.98 acre) area from Agriculture (A) District to Country Residential 
One (CR-1) District, within SW-8-70-7-W6, as per attached Schedule ‘E’. 
     CARRIED 
 

BYLAW 16-770 
THIRD READING 

MOTION: 16.09.337. Moved by: COUNCILLOR BILL SMITH 
That Council give Third Reading to Bylaw No. 16-770, to re-designate a 4.04 
hectare ± (9.98 acre) area from Agriculture (A) District to Country Residential 
One (CR-1) District, within SW-8-70-7-W6, as per attached Schedule ‘E’. 
   CARRIED 
 

 6.3 BYLAW 16-768 ROAD BAN BYLAW 

BYLAW 16-768 
FIRST READING 

MOTION: 16.09.338. Moved by: DEPUTY REEVE TOM BURTON 
That Council give First Reading to Bylaw 16-768 Road Ban Bylaw. 
   CARRIED 
 

 6.4 BYLAW 16-771 LICENSE OF OCCUPATION BYLAW 

BYLAW 16-771 
FIRST READING 

MOTION: 16.09.339. Moved by: COUNCILLOR ROXIE RUTT 
That Council give First Reading to Bylaw 16-771 Licence of Occupation. 
   CARRIED 

9



 Minutes of a Regular Council Meeting  September 13, 2016 
M.D. of Greenview No. 16 
Page 8 

 

 

 8.3 AAMDC DISCUSSION – MEETINGS REGULATION 

MEETINGS 
REGULATION 

MOTION: 16.09.340. Moved by: COUNCILLOR LES URNESS 
That Council direct Administration to submit feedback to the AAMDC regarding 
the proposed Meetings Regulation as presented. 
   CARRIED 
 

 8.4 AAMDC DISCUSSION – PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 

PUBLIC 
PARTICIPATION 

MOTION: 16.09.341. Moved by: DEPUTY REEVE TOM BURTON 
That Council direct Administration to submit feedback to the AAMDC regarding 
the proposed Public Participation Regulation as presented. 
   CARRIED 
 

 8.5 NORTHERN GATEWAY EMERGENT RESOLUTIONS FOR AUMA 

NORTHERN 
GATEWAY 
EMERGENT 
RESOLUTIONS FOR 
AUMA 

MOTION: 16.09.342. Moved by: COUNCILLOR DALE SMITH 
That Council support the Northern Gateway Pipeline resolution as to be 
presented at the Alberta Urban Municipalities Association (AUMA). 
   CARRIED 
 

 8.6 MUNICIPAL INTERSHIP PROGRAM 

MUNICIPAL 
INTERNSHIP 
PROGRAM 

MOTION: 16.09.343. Moved by: COUNCILLOR DAVE HAY 
That Council direct Administration to apply for two Municipal Interns under the 
Municipal Internship Program as offered by Alberta Municipal Affairs. 
   CARRIED 
 

 8.7 GRANDE PRAIRIE REGIONAL COLLEGE STUDENTS’ ASSOCIATION REQUEST 
FOR SUPPORT 
 

GPRC REGIONAL 
COLLEGE 

MOTION: 16.09.344. Moved by: COUNCILLOR LES URNESS 
That Council direct administration to send a letter of support  in favour of 
moving Grande Prairie Regional College to a degree granting entity to the 
Grande Prairie Regional College Student’s Association. 
    CARRIED 
 
 
 
 
 
 

10



 Minutes of a Regular Council Meeting  September 13, 2016 
M.D. of Greenview No. 16 
Page 9 

 

 

 8.8 NORTHERN ALBERTA DEVELOPMENT COUNCIL (NADC) BURSARY 
MATCHING SCHOLARSHIP REQUEST 
 

NADC BURSARY  MOTION: 16.09.345. Moved by: COUNCILLOR DALE SMITH 
That Council sponsor Gary Cymbaluk in the amount of $12,000.00 to match 
funds provided by the Northern Alberta Development Council (NADC) bursary 
for his fourth year in the program of Dentistry, with the condition that the 
applicant commits to reside and perform dentistry work in Greenview for a four 
year term, with funds to come from the Greenview Bursary Fund. 
   CARRIED 
 

 8.9 ANTON LUU RELOCATION EXPENSES 

RELOCATION 
EXPENSES 

MOTION: 16.09.346. Moved by: COUNCILLOR DALE SMITH   
That Council authorize Administration to compensate Dr. Anton Luu in the 
amount of $771.99 for relocation expenses, with funds to come from the 
Corporate Services Employee Relocation Budget. 
    CARRIED 
 

 Reeve Dale Gervais recessed the meeting at 11:51 a.m. 
Reeve Dale Gervais reconvened the meeting at 12:58 p.m. 
 

 8.10 GRANDE CACHE MEDICAL CLINIC – COMMITTEE PROPOSAL 

GC MEDICAL CLINIC  MOTION: 16.09.347. Moved by: COUNCILLOR ROXIE RUTT 
That Council authorize Administration to recommend to the Town of Grande 
Cache that a joint Grande Cache Medical Clinic Committee shall be established 
with a mandate to address the Grande Cache Medical Clinic proposal. 
   CARRIED 
 

GC MEDICAL CLINIC 
TERMS OF 
REFERENCE 

MOTION: 16.09.348. Moved by: DEPUTY REEVE TOM BURTON 
That Council adopt the terms of reference for the Grande Cache Medical Clinic 
Committee. 
   CARRIED 
 

 8.11 2016 RECREATION SERVICES PROGRAM UPDATE 

2016 RECREATION 
SERVICES 
PROGRAM UPDATE 

MOTION: 16.08.349. Moved by: DEPUTY REEVE TOM BURTON 
That council accept for information the 2016 Recreation Services Program 
Update presentation. 
   CARRIED 
 

11



 Minutes of a Regular Council Meeting  September 13, 2016 
M.D. of Greenview No. 16 
Page 10 

 

 

 8.12 GEOTHERMAL ENERGY WORKSHOP 

GEOTHERMAL 
ENERGY 
WORKSHOP 

MOTION: 16.09.350. Moved by: COUNCILLOR BILL SMITH 
That Council approve all members of Council to attend the September 28th, 
2016 Geothermal Workshop at the University of Alberta campus. 
   CARRIED 
 

 8.13 RECREATION MASTER PLAN ADVISORY COMMITTEE 

RECREATION 
MASTER PLAN 
ADVISORY 
COMMITTEE 

MOTION: 16.09.351. Moved by: COUNCILLOR DAVE HAY 
That Council appoint Councillor Dave Hay, Deputy Reeve Tom Burton, 
Councillor Bill Smith, Mr. Pat Brothers, Director of Parks and Recreation for the 
Town of Valleyview, Mr. Mitch Carter, Director of Parks and Recreation for the 
Town of Fox Creek, Mr. Kevin Gramm, Manager of Community Services for the 
Town of Grande Cache, to sit on the Greenview Recreation Master Plan 
Advisory Committee until the end of the Master Plan Project. 
   CARRIED 
  

RMPAC 
APPONTMENT 

MOTION: 16.09.352. Moved by: COUNCILLOR DALE SMITH 
That Council appoint Deputy Reeve Tom Burton to act as chairman on the 
Greenview Recreation Master Plan Advisory Committee until the end of the 
Master Plan Project. 
   CARRIED 
 

 8.14 WATER NORTH COALITION APPOINTMENT 

WATER NORTH 
COALITION 
APPOINTMENT 

MOTION: 16.09.353. Moved by: DEPUTY REEVE TOM BURTON 
That Council appoint Councillor Dave Hay to the Water North Coalition (WNC) 
and Councillor Dale Smith as an alternate. 
   CARRIED 
 

 8.15 ALBERTA ENERGY REGULATOR – AREA BASED REGULATION PILOT 

AREA BASED 
REGULATION PILOT 

MOTION: 16.09.354. Moved by: DEPUTY REEVE TOM BURTON 
The Council appoint Councillor Les Urness as the primary delegate and Dale 
Smith as the alternate delegate to the Multi Stakeholder Indigenous Advisory 
Panel Supporting the Alberta Energy Regulator’s Area Based Regulation Pilot 
Project. 
   CARRIED 
 
 

12



 Minutes of a Regular Council Meeting  September 13, 2016 
M.D. of Greenview No. 16 
Page 11 

 

 

 8.16 CAO / MANAGERS’ REPORT 

CAO REPORT MOTION: 16.09.355. Moved by: COUNCILLOR DAVE HAY 
That Council accept the CAO / Managers’ Report as information. 
   CARRIED 
 

#9 
COUNCILLORS 
BUSINESS & 
REPORTS 

9.1  COUNCILLORS’ BUSINESS & REPORTS 
 
 

 9.2  MEMBERS’ REPORT:  Council provided an update on activities and events 
both attended and upcoming, including the following: 
 

 COUNCILLOR BILL SMITH 
Attended the Peace Country Forage Association Meeting 
Attended the Agricultural Services Board Meeting 
Attended the Grovedale Community Club Meeting 
 

 COUNCILLOR ROXIE RUTT 
Attended the Human Resources Meeting/Grande Prairie Public Library  
Attended the Northern Transportation Advocacy Alliance Meeting 
Attended the Peace Region Economic Development Alliance Meeting 
Attended the Valleyview Multiplex Tour 
Attended the Alberta Care Conference 
Attended the Amber Ball 
Attended the Red Willow Lodge Steak & Bake 
Attended the Human Resources Meeting/Grande Prairie Public Library 
Attended the Dino Track Tour 
 

 COUNCILLOR DALE SMITH 
Attended the Valleyview Multiplex Tour 
Attended the New Fish Creek Open House 
Attended the Agricultural Services Board Meeting 
Attended the Amber Ball 
Attended the Dino Track Tour 
 

 DEPUTY REEVE TOM BURTON 
Attended the Valleyview Multiplex Tour 
Attended the Amber Ball 
Attended Norbord 20 Year Anniversary 
Attended the Dino Track Tour 
 

13



 Minutes of a Regular Council Meeting  September 13, 2016 
M.D. of Greenview No. 16 
Page 12 

 

 

 COUNCILLOR DAVE HAY 
Attended the Sunset House Community Meeting 
Attended the Valleyview Recreation Board Meeting 
Attended the AAMDC Zone 4 District Meeting 
Met with Minister of Seniors in conjunction with Heart River Housing 
Attended the Northern Gateway BBQ 
Attended the Heart River Housing Meeting 
Attended the Amber Ball 
Attended the Dino Track Tour 
 

 COUNCILLOR LES URNESS 
Attended the Greenview BBQ Challenge 
Attended the Valleyview Multiplex Tour 
Attended the New Fish Creek Open House 
Attended the Redwillow Lodge Steak & Bake 
Attended the Dino Track Tour 
 

 COUNCILLOR GEORGE DELORME 
Nothing to report. 
 

 9.1  REEVE’S REPORT: 
 

 REEVE DALE GERVAIS 
Attended the Valleyview Multiplex Tour 
Attended the Golden Triangle Consortium Meeting 
Attended the Seven Generations Energy Golf Tournament 
Attended the Amber Ball 
Attended the Ronald McDonald House Fundraiser 
Attended the Redwillow Steak & Bake 
Attended the Dino Track Tour 
 

 MOTION: 16.09.356. Moved by: COUNCILLOR DAVE HAY  
That Council approve Greenview to fund the installation cost of an internet 
service connection to the Sunset House Community Hall. 
     DEFEATED 
 

#10 
CORRESPONDENCE 

10.0 CORRESPONDENCE  

 MOTION: 16.09.357. Moved by: DEPUTY REEVE TOM BURTON  
That Council accept for information the correspondence presented. 
   CARRIED 
 

14



 Minutes of a Regular Council Meeting  September 13, 2016 
M.D. of Greenview No. 16 
Page 13 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
         
 
 
 
 
 

#11 IN CAMERA 11.0 IN CAMERA 

IN CAMERA MOTION: 16.09.358. Moved by: COUNCILLOR ROXIE RUTT  
That the meeting go to In-Camera, at 3:20 p.m., pursuant to Section 197 of the 
Municipal Government Act, 2000, Chapter M-26 and amendments thereto, and 
Division 2 of Part 1 of the Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy 
Act, Revised Statutes of Alberta 2000, Chapter F-25 and amendments thereto, 
to discuss Privileged Information with regards to the In Camera. 
   CARRIED 
 

 11.1 DISCLOSURE HARMFUL TO BUSINESS INTERESTS OF A THIRD PARTY 
        (FOIPP; Section 16) 
 

 MOTION: 16.09.359. Moved by: COUNCILLOR DAVE HAY  
That, in compliance with Section 197(2) of the Municipal Government Act, this 
meeting come Out of Camera at 3:55 p.m. 
   CARRIED 
 

#12 
ADJOURNMENT 
 

12.0  ADJOURNMENT 
MOTION: 16.09.360. Moved by: COUNCILLOR BILL SMITH  
That this meeting adjourn at 3:55 p.m. 
   CARRIED 

 
 
 
__________________________________                                  ____________________________ 
CHIEF ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER                                                   REEVE 
 

15



   
 

REQUEST FOR DECISION 
   

 
 

Greenview, Alberta     1 

 
SUBJECT:  Canada Post Report  
SUBMISSION TO:  REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING REVIEWED  AND  APPROVED  FOR SUBMISSION 
MEETING DATE:  September 27, 2016  CAO: MH MANAGER: 
DEPARTMENT:  COMMUNITY SERVICES  GM: DM PRESENTER:
FILE NO./LEGAL:    LEGAL/ POLICY REVIEW:
STRATEGIC PLAN:    FINANCIAL REVIEW:

 
RELEVANT LEGISLATION: 

Provincial (cite) – N/A 
 
Council Bylaw / Policy (cite) – N/A 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
MOTION:  That Council accept for information the Canada Post report from Ellen Bowles, Vice President, Canadian 
Union of Postal Worker Local 744. 
 

BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL: 
 
Ellen Bowles is requesting that Greenview Council write a letter to the Honourable MaryAnn Mihychuk the Minister 
of  Employment, Work  Force Development  and  Labour  in  support  of  service  expansion  and  the  preservation  of 
Canada’s retail and logistics network. 
   
OPTIONS – BENEFITS / DISADVANTAGES: 
 
Options – N/A 
 
Benefits – N/A 
   
Disadvantages – N/A 
 
COSTS / SOURCE OF FUNDING: 
 
N/A 

ATTACHMENT(S): 
 

 Letter from Ellen Bowles, Vice President, CUPW Local 744 
 Letter of Support from Mayor Bill Given 

16



17



18



19



20



   
 

REQUEST FOR DECISION 
   

 
 

Greenview, Alberta     1 

 
SUBJECT:  Grande Prairie Stompede 
SUBMISSION TO:  REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING REVIEWED  AND  APPROVED  FOR SUBMISSION 
MEETING DATE:  September 27, 2016  CAO: MH MANAGER: 
DEPARTMENT:  COMMUNITY SERVICES  GM: DM PRESENTER:
FILE NO./LEGAL:    LEGAL/ POLICY REVIEW:
STRATEGIC PLAN:    FINANCIAL REVIEW:

 
RELEVANT LEGISLATION: 

Provincial (cite) – N/A 
 
Council Bylaw / Policy (cite) – N/A 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
MOTION:  That Council accept for information the presentation from the Grande Prairie Stompede. 
 

BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL: 
 
The Grande Prairie Stompede will be making a presentation in regards to their organization’s activities. 
   
OPTIONS – BENEFITS / DISADVANTAGES: 
 
Options – N/A 
 
Benefits – N/A 
   
Disadvantages – N/A 
 
COSTS / SOURCE OF FUNDING: 
 
N/A 

ATTACHMENT(S): 
 

 N/A 

21



Come Experience 
the 

Thrills & Spills of the 
Cowboy Way

22



About Grande Prairie Stompede

• Volunteer Board of Directors – Community Members
• Home to Professional Chuckwagons & ProRodeo
• Largest Northern Midway
• World  Entertainment & Beer Gardens
• Miss Grande Prairie Stompede
• Community Events
• Children Programs

23



History

• Established in 1977
• 1982 moved to Evergreen
• Averages #30,000 / year
• 1.1 Million Operations
• Funds $80,000 / year 

(to other non profits and clubs)

2016/2017

• 40th Anniversary 
• Processes being reviewed

(Operations, Bylaws & Budgets)

24



Home to STOMPEDE

25



Professional Rodeo

26



Professional Chuckwagons

88 Drivers 
3 Associations 

27



Largest Midway in Northern Alberta

Typically #12,000 people

Last year #8000

28



World Class Entertainment

29



Community Events

30



Classroom In The Dirt

180 Children from schools in the region 

• True Cowboy Roping Experience

• Draft Horse Rides 

• Stars of Tomorrow ‐Mini Chuckwagons

• Rodeo Royalty & Ricky Ticky

• Rodeo Athletes & Chuckwagon Drivers

• The Phillip J Currie Dinosaur Museum

31



Miss Grande Prairie Stompede

• Program Highlights

• Impact 

• Future Planning

32



Economic Impact

• Community

• Tourism

• Business

33



40th Anniversary Celebration

• Vision 

• Planning 

• Execution

What will this look like?

34



Partnerships

• Stompede Founders

• Evergreen Park 

• Municipalities

• Businesses & Sponsors

• Community Members & Tourists

• Contracted (WPCA, WCA, All Pro, Midway, CPRA, PRCA, others)

• User Groups (4H, Rotary Club, Aquarians, Horselake, 

Soccer, Taekwon‐Do, Drillers Football, Rugby,

GPRTA, Big Brothers Big Sisters, Beaverlodge Blades, 

Christian Fellowship Assembly)

35



May 31-June 4, 2017

Come Experience the Thrills & Spills of the Cowboy Way

36



   
 

REQUEST FOR DECISION 
   

 
 

Greenview, Alberta     1 

 
SUBJECT:  Mr. Wayne Drysdale MLA for Grande Prairie‐Wapiti
SUBMISSION TO:  REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING REVIEWED  AND  APPROVED  FOR SUBMISSION 
MEETING DATE:  September 27, 2016  CAO: MH MANAGER: 
DEPARTMENT:  CAO SERVICES  GM: PRESENTER:
FILE NO./LEGAL:    LEGAL/ POLICY REVIEW:
STRATEGIC PLAN:    FINANCIAL REVIEW:

 
RELEVANT LEGISLATION: 

Provincial (cite) – N/A 
 
Council Bylaw / Policy (cite) – N/A 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
MOTION:  That Council accept the MLA update from Mr. Wayne Drysdale, as information. 
 

BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL: 
 
The Grande Prairie‐Wapiti constituency office contacted administration regarding a visit from Mr. Drysdale to provide 
an update to Council. 
   
OPTIONS – BENEFITS / DISADVANTAGES: 
 
Options – N/A 
 
Benefits – N/A 
   
Disadvantages – N/A 
 
COSTS / SOURCE OF FUNDING: 
 
There are no costs to the recommended motion. 

ATTACHMENT(S): 
 

 None 

37



  REQUEST FOR DECISION 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Greenview, Alberta     1 

   

SUBJECT:  Bylaw 15‐742 Municipal Development Plan 2016 / 2nd & 3rd READINGS 
SUBMISSION TO:  Regular Council Meeting  REVIEWED AND APPROVED FOR SUBMISSION 

MEETING DATE:  September 27, 2016  CAO:  MH MANAGER:  SAR

DEPARTMENT:  Infrastructure & Planning / Planning & 
Development 

GM:  INT PRESENTER:  SAR

FILE NO./LEGAL:  0200‐M03‐01      LEGAL/ POLICY REVIEW:  INT
STRATEGIC PLAN:    FINANCIAL REVIEW:   

RELEVENT LEGISLATION: 

Provincial (cite) – Municipal Government Act, S. 187 Bylaw Readings; S. 189 Passing of Bylaw; S. 632 Municipal 
Development Plan requirements; and S. 692 Requirement to hold a Public Hearing for proposed bylaw to adopt a 
Municipal Development Plan. 
 
Council Bylaw / Policy (cite) – Municipal Development Plan Bylaw No. 03‐397. 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
MOTION:  That Council give Second Reading to Bylaw No. 15‐742, titled the Municipal Development Plan 
of the Municipal District of Greenview No. 16. 
 

MOTION: That Council give Third Reading to Bylaw No. 15‐742, titled the Municipal Development Plan of 
the Municipal District of Greenview No. 16. 
 

BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL: 
 
In follow‐up to the Public Hearing held on May 24, 2016, we are prepared for Council to consider giving the final 
readings for adoption of the Municipal Development Plan Bylaw 15‐742. 
 
Administration has updated Bylaw 15‐742 and provided the final Municipal Development Plan (MDP) (Attached 
Schedules ‘A’ & ‘B’) based on the outcome of comments reviewed at the Public Hearing.  In additional, there were 
comments received from Alberta Recreation and Tourism which have also been encompassed  in the summary 
and were noted in MDP. 
 
Dave McRae, ISL Engineering & Land Services has been working with Administration and he will be in attendance 
to answer any questions that Council may have for this Bylaw. 
 
 
 

38



 

2      

Following are the recent Summary of Revisions outlining all the changes to the specific sections of the MDP Plan: 
 

1. Revise 1.4.1(b)(iv) (“Growth Strategy) to read as follows: 
 
By promoting and accommodating developments which contribute to a diversification of the area’s economy 
including tourism. 

 
2. Revise the definition of “Intensive Livestock Operation” to read as follows: 

 
Means an agricultural operation that involves the rearing, confinement, and feeding of livestock, but does 
not meet the minimum threshold numbers requiring provincial approval as a Confined Feeding Operation 
under the Agriculture Operations Practices Act. 

 
3. Revise Policy 2.3.1 (“Resource Activity”) to read as follows:  

 
Greenview recognizes forestry, mining, oil and gas exploration, tourism, and recreation as acceptable uses 
within Greenview subject to the necessary government permits, which in turn would address environmental 
matters. 

 
4. Delete Policy 2.7.3 (“Private Recreation Facilities”) and replace with the following:  

 
The establishment of privately owned commercial recreation and tourism facilities is encouraged. 
 

5. Delete Policy 2.7.8 (“Historic Sites”) in its entirety. 
 

6. Revise Policy 3.4.1 (“Land Use on Better Agricultural Land”) to read as follows: 
 

The types of non‐agricultural uses that may be considered acceptable on better agricultural lands include: 
(a)  Agricultural industry which directly benefit and serve the rural community; 
(b)  Natural resource extractive industries; 
(c)  Temporary storage of oilfield related equipment and pipe; 
(d)  Recreational and tourism uses. 
 

7.  Revise Policy 3.6.1 (“Support for Confined Feeding Operations”) to read as follows: 
 

Applications to the Natural Resources Conservation Board (NRCB) for the establishment or expansion of 
CFOs shall not be supported by Greenview unless they are compatible with adjacent land uses and do not 
generate adverse health or environmental effects. 

 
7. Delete Policy 3.6.2 (“Establishment and Expansion of CFOs”) and replace with the following: 

 
Notwithstanding the requirements of the Agricultural Operation Practices Act, the expansion or 
establishment of CFOs will not be supported by Greenview: 

39



 
 

Greenview, Alberta     3 

(a) Unless the proposed CFO conforms to the required Minimum Distance Separation determined by the 
NRCB in accordance with the Agricultural Operations and Practices Act; or 

(b)  If the proposed CFO is proposed in an area in which intensive agriculture is precluded by the provisions 
of an approved ASP, other Statutory Plan, or Concept Plan. 

 
8. Delete Policy 3.6.3 (“Minimum Distance Separations”) in its entirety, and renumber Policies 3.6.4, 3.6.5, and 

3.6.6 to 3.6.3, 3.6.4, and 3.6.5. 
 
9. Revise Policy 3.6.5 (“Intensive Livestock Operations”) to read as follows: 

 
(a) Greenview shall approve intensive livestock operations that meet the requirements of the LUB. 
(b)  Policy 3.6.3 (“Contamination of Runoff”) shall apply in the consideration of an application for an 

intensive livestock operation. 
 
10. Delete Map 3 (“Land Use Concept (Hamlets)”) and replace with new version (attached) to address land use 

changes in the Hamlet of DeBolt. 
 

11. Revise Policy 5.3.3 (“Land Uses”) to read as follows: 
 

Greenview shall encourage commercial, industrial and institutional uses that intend to serve the rural area 
to locate in or in proximity to hamlets where possible. 

 
12. Revise Section 6.1 (“Introduction”) to read as follows: 

 
Industrial and commercial development in Greenview ranges in scope from major industries to home‐based 
businesses. Local industrial development has grown and diversified to serve several resource sectors, 
including agriculture, forestry, mining, and oil and gas. The majority of this activity, including recreation and 
tourism, is based on provincial Crown Lands. 

 
13. Revise Policy 8.3.1 (“Land Uses on Crown Land”) to read as follows: 

 
Lands within the Crown Land Policy Area are primarily reserved for resource management, grazing, 
recreation, environmental protection, recreation and tourism, and associated activities. 

 
14. Revise Policy 9.4.6(b) (“Connection to Municipal Systems”) to read as follows: 

 
“Notwithstanding (a), connection to municipal water or sewer systems will not be required if the systems 
are determined by Greenview to not have the capacity available to accommodate the development.” 
 

 
A separate Municipal Development Plan (Schedule ‘C’) has been provided with markings noted in red to identify 
the recent revisions. 
 

40



 

4      

In accordance with the provisions of the Municipal Government Act, all the legislative requirements have been 
met to ensure the Bylaw adoption can take place. 
 
   
OPTIONS – BENEFITS / DISADVANTAGES: 
 
Option – 1. That Council give Second Reading to Bylaw No. 15‐742, titled the Municipal Development Plan of 
the Municipal District of Greenview No. 16. 
 
Option – 2. That Council give Third Reading to Bylaw No. 15‐742, titled the Municipal Development Plan of the 
Municipal District of Greenview No. 16 for final adoption of the Bylaw. 
 
Option – 3. That Council motion to table Bylaw No. 15‐742 subject to additional information. 
 
Benefits – The benefits  to  the update of  the Municipal Development Plan  (MDP) will ensure  the Plan  is 
compliant with new provincial legislation to ensure the policies within the MDP are current and best able to 
direct development within the Municipal District in a sustainable manner that meets the evolving needs of 
the community. 

 
Disadvantages – The disadvantage of giving the Bylaw second and third reading is that developers will have 
to follow new legislation which could in some instances cause frustration due to interpretation of the newly 
adopted Municipal Development Plan. Administration will  advertise  these  changes  as well  as work with 
developers. The benefits of the updates MDP are believed to outweigh this disadvantage. 
 
__________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
COSTS / SOURCE OF FUNDING: 

Source funding has been provided in the Planning & Development Budget. 
   
ATTACHMENT(S): 
 

 Schedule ‘A’ – Bylaw 15‐742 
 Schedule ‘B’ – Final Municipal Development Plan 
 Schedule ‘C’ – Mark‐up Municipal Development Plan 

 

 

41



 
 

 

 

 

 

 

MUNICIPAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN 

Bylaw No. 15-742 
 

 

 

 

 

 

September 2016

42



Municipal District of Greenview No. 16 
Municipal Development Plan Bylaw No. 15-742 

September 2016          Table of Contents 

 

 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
SECTION 1 INTRODUCTION............................................................................................................. 1 

1.1 General Overview ................................................................................................................... 1 
1.2 Legislative Context.................................................................................................................. 2 
1.3 Goals of the Plan .................................................................................................................... 3 
1.4 Growth Strategy ...................................................................................................................... 4 
1.5 Definitions ............................................................................................................................... 5 

SECTION 2 NATURAL ENVIRONMENT ........................................................................................... 7 
2.1 Introduction ............................................................................................................................. 7 
2.2 Objectives ............................................................................................................................... 7 
2.3 General ................................................................................................................................... 7 
2.4 Hazard Lands ......................................................................................................................... 8 
2.5 Groundwater Evaluation and Protection .................................................................................. 9 
2.6 Firesmart .............................................................................................................................. 10 

SECTION 3 AGRICULTURE ............................................................................................................ 12 
3.1 Introduction ........................................................................................................................... 12 
3.2 Objectives ............................................................................................................................. 12 
3.3 General ................................................................................................................................. 12 
3.4 Better Agricultural Land ........................................................................................................ 12 
3.5 Other Agricultural Lands ....................................................................................................... 15 
3.6 Confined Feeding Operations ............................................................................................... 15 

SECTION 4 COUNTRY RESIDENTIAL............................................................................................ 17 
4.1 Introduction ........................................................................................................................... 17 
4.2 Objectives ............................................................................................................................. 17 
4.3 Policies ................................................................................................................................. 17 

SECTION 5 HAMLETS AND SETTLEMENTS ................................................................................. 20 
5.1 Introduction ........................................................................................................................... 20 
5.2 Objectives ............................................................................................................................. 20 
5.3 Policies ................................................................................................................................. 20 

SECTION 6 INDUSTRY AND COMMERCE ..................................................................................... 22 
6.1 Introduction ........................................................................................................................... 22 
6.2 Objectives ............................................................................................................................. 22 
6.3 Industrial Development ......................................................................................................... 22 
6.4 Commercial Development ..................................................................................................... 24 
6.5 Home-Based Business ......................................................................................................... 25 
6.6 Resource Extraction on Private Lands .................................................................................. 25 

SECTION 7 INTERMUNICIPAL AND INTERGOVERNMENTAL RELATIONS ............................... 27 
7.1 Introduction ........................................................................................................................... 27 
7.2 Objectives ............................................................................................................................. 27 
7.3 Policies ................................................................................................................................. 27 

SECTION 8  CROWN LAND ............................................................................................................. 29 
8.1 Introduction ........................................................................................................................... 29 
8.2 Objective ............................................................................................................................... 29 
8.3 Policies ................................................................................................................................. 29 

43



Municipal District of Greenview No. 16 
Municipal Development Plan Bylaw No. 15-742 

September 2016          Table of Contents 

 

 
 
SECTION 9 TRANSPORTATION AND SERVICING ....................................................................... 31 

9.1 Introduction ........................................................................................................................... 31 
9.2 Objectives ............................................................................................................................. 31 
9.3 Transportation ....................................................................................................................... 31 
9.4 Municipal Services ................................................................................................................ 32 

SECTION 10 IMPLEMENTATION .................................................................................................. 3534 
10.1 Introduction ....................................................................................................................... 3534 
10.2 Land Use Bylaw ................................................................................................................ 3534 
10.3 Subdivision and Development Requirements.................................................................... 3534 
10.4 Municipal Reserve ............................................................................................................ 3736 
10.5 Monitoring and Review ..................................................................................................... 3938 

 
 

Maps 
 

Map 1 Geographic Context      Following Page 1 
Map 2 Future Land Use Concept     Following Page 4 
Map 3 Future Land Use Concept (Hamlets)    Following Page 19 
Map 4 Future Land Use Concept (Grande Cache Area)   Following Page 19 
Map 5 Transportation Network      Following Page 30 

 

44



Municipal District of Greenview No. 16 
Municipal Development Plan Bylaw No. 15-742 

September 2016           Page 1 

 

SECTION 1 INTRODUCTION 

1.1 GENERAL OVERVIEW 

1.1.1 The Municipal District of Greenview No. 16 (“Greenview”) is located in the southern portion of the 
Peace River Region as illustrated on Map 1 (Geographic Context). Its location is strategic as most 
goods bound for points north will pass through Greenview. There is a wide diversity of resources 
from oil and gas to lumber and mining, as well as tourism opportunities. Rapid development in 
these resource sectors has resulted in Greenview being host to a strong and diverse economic 
base. There is also a good deal of arable agricultural land, but the amount of agricultural land is 
finite so steps should be taken to limit its loss. With the wide variety of resources and opportunity 
available there is a need to ensure that future development is managed effectively. 

 
1.1.2 This Municipal Development Plan (“MDP”) encourages growth towards our hamlets as logical 

centres for future residential and commercial development. The infrastructure requirements 
associated with our hamlets will in many cases require additional upgrading and expansion to meet 
future needs. 

 
1.1.3 The MDP also provides a framework for future decisions on land use that will ultimately affect the 

economic development of Greenview. The MDP will attempt to achieve this while balancing the 
need for growth with measures to protect our limited agricultural and environmental resources. 

 
1.1.4 Greenview’s previous MDP (Bylaw 03-397) was adopted in 2003. Best practice directs regular 

reviews of the MDP in order that its policies remain current and responsive to community needs. 
The preparation of this new MDP is timely and required to: 

(a) Bring clarity to some existing policies in the 2003 MDP that remain valid but require more 
substance to improve their interpretation and enforceability; 
 

(b) Achieve compliance with the Province’s Land-use Framework and the Alberta Land 
Stewardship Act. The MDP must conform to the requirements of these new provincial 
initiatives. In addition, there is an opportunity for the new MDP to influence the direction for 
growth management in the future Upper Peace Regional Plan; 
 

(c) Align MDP policies with the strategic priorities and initiatives contained in Council’s 2014 
Strategic Directions Plan; 
 

(d) To strengthen policy for the protection of groundwater and the coordination of energy 
exploration and extraction activities; 
 

(e) Reinforce policy to emphasize agriculture as the priority land use in Greenview: 
 

(f) Clarify MDP policies regarding requirements for country residential subdivisions and developer 
responsibilities for all subdivision; 
 

(g) Enhance existing policies on lakeshore development and protection of riparian areas; 
 

(h) Update policies respecting relationships and agreements with the urban municipalities located 
within Greenview. 

  

45



Municipal District of Greenview No. 16 
Municipal Development Plan Bylaw No. 15-742 

September 2016           Page 2 

 

1.2 LEGISLATIVE CONTEXT 

1.2.1 Municipal Government Act 

This MDP has been prepared in accordance with Section 632 of the Municipal Government Act. The Act 
requires that all municipalities with a population of 3,500 or more must adopt a MDP. 
 
The Act requires that, at a minimum, the MDP address: 

 

 land use and the manner of future development; 

 local transportation systems; 

 the provision of municipal services and utilities; 

 policies respecting municipal reserve; 

 the protection of agricultural operations; and 

 the coordination of land use, infrastructure and growth patterns with adjacent municipalities. 
 
An illustration of where the MDP fits into the hierarchy of Alberta planning documents is provided in 
Figure 1. 

Figure 1: Planning Document Hierarchy

 

1.2.2 Alberta Land-use Framework  

The Alberta Land-use Framework was approved by the provincial government in 2008 to create a new 
regional land use planning policy framework for Alberta.  The regional planning framework was then 
refined further through the subsequent adoption of the Alberta Land Stewardship Act. The guiding 
strategies for regional plan preparation are as follows: 

 

 develop new regional plans based on seven new land-use regions; 

 create a Land Use Secretariat and establish a Regional Advisory Council for each region; 

 use cumulative effects management methods to address the impacts of development; 

 develop strategies for conservation and stewardship on public and private lands; 

 promote the efficient use of land to reduce the footprint of activity on the landscape; 

 establish a system to improve information gathering in order to improve decision-making; 

46



Municipal District of Greenview No. 16 
Municipal Development Plan Bylaw No. 15-742 

September 2016           Page 3 

 

 include aboriginal peoples in land use planning. 
 
Greenview is located within the area proposed for the Upper Peace Regional Plan, the preparation of 
which has not yet commenced. If any policies of this MDP are determined to be at variance with the 
Upper Peace Regional Plan, this MDP will be amended as required to ensure consistency with the 
regional plan. 

1.2.3 Greenview 2014 Strategic Directions Plan 

Council’s current Strategic Plan was approved 2013, and is Greenview Council’s guiding document for 
the immediate term. The key goals contained in the Strategic Plan that helped inform the development of 
this MDP are as follows:  
 

Regional Utilities 
2.1 Develop a Greenview Utilities Master Plan that will include long term utility plans for each 

population area served. 
2.2  Develop a municipal corporation jointly owned by Greenview and the Towns of Fox Creek, 

Grande Cache and Valleyview to gain financial stability and operational efficiencies and 
effectiveness in the operation of water and wastewater systems within the region. 

2.3  Undertake an update of the Area Structure Plan for the Grovedale area that includes planning 
of the utility network to serve existing and future development. 

 
Agriculture 
3.1  Support agriculture as our primary long term industry and fund initiatives that will benefit our 

agricultural community. 
 

Enhanced Community Development 
4.1  Develop hamlets and areas of active development in a manner that ensures healthy and 

sustainable communities through the updating and provision of Area Structure Plans.   
4.2 Take a leadership position in Alberta on working with our urban partners to support their 

community goals in providing healthy and sustainable communities. 
4.7 Ensure that services provided by Greenview recognize the needs of the increasing older 

adult population. 
4.8 Continue to support community organizations, fire departments, and volunteers as an 

essential part of providing healthy and sustainable communities. 
4.10 Implement a Greenview Road Master Plan supported by a road rating system, road criteria, 

and pre-designed safety and construction standards, which is regularly updated with current 
traffic counts. 

4.12 Continue to place a high priority on the protection and enhancement of our natural 
environment. 

 
Tourism and Recreation 
5.1 Continued support for increased recreation and leisure opportunities through the 

development and enhancement of community and regional facilities. 
5.4 Develop a Community Facilities Plan, encompassing all communities, on the ongoing support 

of Greenview community halls, recreation, and leisure facilities, the development of new 
hiking trails, outdoor facilities and wilderness access locations, etc. 

1.3 GOALS OF THE PLAN 

1.3.1 It is intended that this MDP achieve the following goals: 
 

(a) To provide a framework for the future growth and development of the Municipal District in a 
sustainable fashion and that is consistent with its strategic priorities; 

47



Municipal District of Greenview No. 16 
Municipal Development Plan Bylaw No. 15-742 

September 2016           Page 4 

 

 
(b) Maintain the long term viability of Greenview's agricultural land base; 
 
(c) Allowing for population growth by increasing densities without negatively impacting on 

agricultural land through measures which: 
 

(i) conserve agricultural land by limiting the acreage removed for other uses, 
 

(ii) provide for development and employment opportunities in the rural area, 
 
(iii) allow for higher densities of residential development when they can be located in nodes or 

in areas of limited agricultural capacity, and 
 
(iv) provide the opportunity for families to care for the aging or disabled members of the 

community in a home setting; 
 

(d) Minimize the possibility of conflicts between potentially incompatible land uses; 
 
(e) Ensure that services and infrastructure are provided to meet the demand created by growth; 

 
(f) Facilitate inter-municipal and inter-jurisdictional cooperation in matters affecting development in 

the region; and 
 
(g) Ensure that the natural environment is protected and that significant environmental features are 

preserved. 

1.4 GROWTH STRATEGY 

1.4.1 The growth strategy for Greenview is based upon the desire to promote and accommodate growth 
that will preserve and strengthen the positive attributes of Greenview. 

 
(a) The future use of land within Greenview is to be consistent with the general policy areas as 

illustrated on Map 2, the Future Land Use Concept. This MDP contains policies respecting each 
type of land use which are presented in subsequent sections of this MDP. 

 
(b) Greenview shall accommodate growth: 

 
(i) By supporting agricultural production through the opening of new agricultural lands; 
 
(ii) Through the development of uses which support and benefit agriculture; 
 
(iii) By supporting the exploration and responsible extraction of natural resources; 
 
(iv) By promoting and accommodating developments which contribute to a diversification of 

the area’s economy including tourism; 
 
(v) By supporting the expansion of the rural population base in appropriate locations; 
 
(vi) By supporting the improvement of transportation and utility infrastructure; 
 
(vii) By promoting and supporting the long term viability of its hamlets and other settlements, 

and the Urban Municipalities; and 
 
(viii) By establishing policies and guidelines to direct the development of non-agricultural uses. 

48



Municipal District of Greenview No. 16 
Municipal Development Plan Bylaw No. 15-742 

September 2016           Page 5 

 

1.5 DEFINITIONS 

1.5.1 For the purpose of interpreting this MDP, the following definitions shall apply: 
 

Access Means the provision of legal and/or physical road access to a 
proposed development to the satisfaction of the Municipal District. 
A site has legal access if it abuts a municipal road, undeveloped 
road allowance, or service road, or is subject to a joint access 
easement agreement. Physical access refers to the construction of 
an approach to a developed municipal road or service road. 
 

Act Means the Municipal Government Act, Chapter M-26, RSA 2000. 
 

Better Agricultural Land Means cultivated or improved land which has a Rural Farmland 
Assessment (RFA) Rating of 28% or higher, or Canada Land 
Inventory (CLI) Class 4 for unimproved land. This rating is subject 
to confirmation by more current assessment ratings conducted by 
Greenview’s Assessment Department, independent soils analysis, 
site inspections or a combination thereof. The definition may 
exclude any land which by reason of physical features, slope, 
configuration, surrounding land use, size, physical severance, or 
lands that are identified for development in an approved Area 
Structure Plan may impair the ability of the land to be economically 
farmed. 
 

Concept Plan Means a non-statutory land use plan that is prepared in 
accordance with Greenview’s Area Structure Plan and Concept 
Plan Policy 6001. 
 

Environmentally 
Sensitive Area 

Means an area that is identified by the Province as an 
Environmentally Significant Area, or is generally recognized to 
consist of unique topographical features, sensitive ecological 
habitat, or important wildlife habitat and corridors. 

  
Fragmented Parcel Means a portion of a parcel of land that is physically severed from 

the balance by a road, railway, water body, watercourse, ravine or 
similar feature that limits the agricultural productivity or viability of 
the severed portion. 
 

Hazard Land Means land which may be prone to flooding, shoreline erosion or 
slope instability, or other natural hazard that may result in life loss 
or injury, property damage, social and economic disruption or 
environmental degradation. Hazards may include surface and 
subsurface features such as active and abandoned gas/oil wells, 
mines, unstable slopes, areas exhibiting subsidence and other 
natural or man-made features. 
 

Intensive Livestock 
Operation 
 

Means an agricultural operation that involves the rearing, 
confinement, and feeding of livestock, but does not meet the 
minimum threshold numbers requiring provincial approval as is not 
large enough to be considered a Confined Feeding Operation 
under the Agriculture Operations Practices Act. 
 

Multi-Lot Subdivision Means a subdivision that results in the creation of two (2) or more 
parcels for residential, commercial or industrial use. 

  

49



Municipal District of Greenview No. 16 
Municipal Development Plan Bylaw No. 15-742 

September 2016           Page 6 

 

Rural Municipality(ies) Means Birch Hills County, the County of Grande Prairie No. 1, Big 
Lakes County, Municipal District of Smoky River No. 130, 
Woodlands County, and Yellowhead County. 
 

Statutory Plan Means a Municipal Development Plan (“MDP”), Intermunicipal 
Development Plan (“IDP”), or Area Structure Plan (“ASP”) 
prepared and adopted in accordance with the Act. 
 

Urban Municipality(ies) Means the Towns of Fox Creek, Grande Cache, and Valleyview. 
 

 
1.5.2 All other words or expressions contained in this MDP shall have the meanings respectively 

assigned to them in the Act, the Subdivision and Development Regulation, and the Land Use Bylaw 
(“LUB”).  

50



Municipal District of Greenview No. 16 
Municipal Development Plan Bylaw No. 15-742 

September 2016           Page 7 

 

SECTION 2 NATURAL ENVIRONMENT 

2.1 INTRODUCTION 

An important resource to Greenview is its natural environment. The Eastern Slopes, Waskahigan River 
Natural Area, and Kakwa Falls are examples of the wealth of recreational and environmental resources in 
Greenview. Greenview’s wetlands, riparian areas, lakes, water courses, forests, and ground water 
resources are invaluable and are strong contributors to the quality of life enjoyed by Greenview residents. 
In addition, the protection of ecological systems is necessary to support the long term health of the land, 
flora and fauna.  Responsible stewardship of these ecological features is essential to retain their integrity 
and value. 

2.2 OBJECTIVES 

(a) To protect and preserve sensitive environmental features such as water bodies and their 
shores and banks, as well as other features such as flood plains, steep slopes or special 
habitat features. 

 
(b) To ensure the patterns of human settlement and activity can take place safely while limiting the 

impact to the natural environment. 

2.3 GENERAL 

Resource Activity 
 

2.3.1 Greenview recognizes forestry, mining, oil and gas exploration, 
tourism, and recreation as acceptable uses within Greenview 
subject to the necessary government permits, which in turn would 
address environmental matters. 
 

   
Environmentally 
Sensitive Lands 
 

2.3.2 Features such as, but not limited to river valleys, lakes, drainage 
areas, wildlife areas, and historic sites may be considered to be 
individually, or in combination thereof to be environmentally 
sensitive recreational areas and/or hazard lands. The actual 
sensitivity of each feature and its development constraints shall be 
confirmed with the applicable government department at the time 
that development or subdivision applications are considered. 
 

   
Compatible Uses 
 

2.3.3 The type of development that may be considered compatible 
within or adjacent to areas that are deemed to be environmentally 
sensitive are those that 
  
(a) Promote the area to remain in its natural state; 
 
(b) Shall not lead to overuse or deterioration of the feature; 
 
(c) Will be associated with appropriate environmental impact 

assessments or reviews as may be required by Greenview; 
 
(d) Provide for the adequate rehabilitation of a site; and 
 

51



Municipal District of Greenview No. 16 
Municipal Development Plan Bylaw No. 15-742 

September 2016           Page 8 

 

(e) Provide sufficient setbacks as may be recommended by the 
applicable government department. 

 
Wetland Assessment 2.3.4 Further to Policy 2.3.3(c) (“Compatible Uses”), a wetland 

assessment, prepared by a qualified professional, shall be 
prepared for any development or subdivision proposal that is 
deemed to affect or potentially affect a wetland in accordance with 
the Alberta Wetland Policy.  

   
   
Intensive 
Agricultural Uses 
 

2.3.5 With the exception of confined feeding operations, the 
development of intensive agricultural uses such as market gardens 
may be permitted within environmentally sensitive areas such as 
river valleys. 

   
 

Preparation of Plans 
 

2.3.6 Greenview supports the preparation of ASPs, integrated resource 
management plans, or land reservations depending upon the 
jurisdiction for the management of recreational and/or 
environmental features such as Kakwa Falls, Highway No. 40 
corridor, Sturgeon Lake-Puskwaskau East Area, Fox Creek-Knight 
Area, and the Grande Cache Area.

   
 

Watershed 
Management 
 

2.3.7 All Greenview policies shall be consistent with modern watershed 
management policies, processes and science. Greenview shall 
work with landowners, government agencies, neighbouring 
municipalities and other stakeholders to protect and enhance 
wetlands, riparian areas, forests, native range lands, groundwater 
and surface water bodies, in order to minimize negative impacts 
on watersheds in Greenview. 

2.4 HAZARD LANDS 

Development 
Setbacks Required 
 

2.4.1 Greenview shall require that developers provide development 
setbacks from water bodies, water courses, slopes, and other 
hazard lands to protect against erosion, flooding, loss of fish and 
wildlife habitat, and damage to natural features. Such setbacks 
shall be provided in accordance with the requirements of the LUB. 
 

   
Flood-Prone Lands 
 

2.4.2 New development or the expansion of existing development shall 
not be permitted on lands that are contained within the flood plains 
of the Wapiti, Smoky, Little Smoky or Simonette Rivers, or other 
lands known to be flood-prone, unless sufficient flood protection 
measures designed by a professional engineer registered to 
practice in Alberta are provided by the developer. 
 

   
Slopes 
 

2.4.3 Permanent development shall not be permitted on slopes 
exceeding 15% or on land that is subject to erosion. Development 
on such lands may only be considered after sufficient geo-
technical investigation has demonstrated that the site in question 
is suitable for development. 
 

52



Municipal District of Greenview No. 16 
Municipal Development Plan Bylaw No. 15-742 

September 2016           Page 9 

 

   
Environmental 
Reserve Dedication 
 

2.4.4 As a condition of subdivision approval, lands that are subject to 
flood hazard, contain sensitive habitat, or are subject to potential 
erosion due to steep or unstable slopes, shall be dedicated as 
Environmental Reserve (“ER”). Greenview may require that ER be 
dedicated either in parcel or easement form as provided in the Act. 
 

   
Determination of 
Environmental 
Reserve 
 

2.4.5 Further to Policy 2.4.4 (“Environmental Reserve Dedication”), an 
ER setback or easement shall be provided from the top of the 
bank of a river or stream and/or the high water mark of a wetland 
or lake. The specific setback requirement may, at the discretion of 
Greenview, be determined by a qualified professional including 
geotechnical and hydrogeological studies to establish a site 
specific setback requirement.  
 

   
Confirmation of 
Environmental 
Reserve 
 

2.4.6 Where the need for ER requires confirmation, or situations arise 
where the amount of ER proposed to be dedicated exceeds the 
allocations identified in the Act, Greenview shall require that a 
geotechnical report, biophysical assessment, and/or 
hydrogeological study be prepared by a qualified professional to 
support the proposed dedication. 
 

   
Conservation 
Easements 
 

2.4.7 Greenview shall encourage and promote the use of Conservation 
Easements as a voluntary means of protecting environmentally 
sensitive features on private lands that 
 
(a) Are not subject to subdivision and therefore eligible for 

dedication under Policy 2.4.4 (“Environmental Reserve 
Dedication”); or 

 
(b) Do not meet the requirements of Policies 2.4.4 (“Environmental 

Reserve Dedication”) or 2.4.5 (“Determination of 
Environmental Reserve”), but have environmental or ecological 
value to the owner. 

2.5 GROUNDWATER EVALUATION AND PROTECTION 

Groundwater 
Evaluation 
 

2.5.1 To protect the quality and quantity of surface water bodies and 
groundwater, at a minimum, Alberta Environment’s Interim 
Guidelines for Evaluation of Groundwater Supply for 
Unserviced Residential Subdivisions, and any subsequent 
amendments, as well as the groundwater evaluation and licensing 
requirements of the Water Act shall be applied to all applications 
for unserviced subdivisions. 
 

   
Protection of Water 
 

2.5.2 Greenview shall not approve development that will negatively 
affect surface water bodies and groundwater quality and quantity. 
In order to ensure the protection of surface water, groundwater 
and alluvial aquifers, the following provisions shall apply: 
 

53



Municipal District of Greenview No. 16 
Municipal Development Plan Bylaw No. 15-742 

September 2016           Page 10 

 

(a) Sand and gravel operations shall be required to submit, prior to 
an application being considered for approval, a 
hydrogeological assessment prepared by a qualified engineer 
to confirm the depth of the aquifer and identify mitigative 
measures that will be undertaken to ensure that the integrity of 
the alluvial aquifer will not be compromised by pit activities; 

 
(b) Industrial development that has the potential to impact surface 

water quality or groundwater quality or supply shall not be 
allowed unless a hydrogeological assessment prepared by a 
qualified engineer demonstrates that surface water bodies and 
groundwater will not be negatively affected. 

 
   
Proof of Water 
Supply 
 

2.5.3 Greenview shall require that developers submit with their 
subdivision and/or development applications proof of water supply 
if accessing groundwater, or identify the proposed method of water 
servicing, for all residential, industrial, and commercial 
developments.   

2.6 FIRESMART 

Design Principles 
 

2.6.1 Greenview shall encourage developers to recognize FireSmart: 
Protecting Your Community from Wildfire design principles when 
preparing Area Structure Plans and multi-lot subdivision proposals 
in order to mitigate the potential for forest and grassland fire 
damage. 
 

   
Damage Mitigation 
 

2.6.2 Subdivision and development proposals shall be designed so as to 
mitigate the potential for forest and grassland wildfire damage 
through: 
 
(a) The provision of Municipal Reserve along the outer perimeter 

of the development so that the developed portions may be 
separated from natural areas; 

 
(b) The provision of a fire guard which will serve as a buffer 

between development and the surrounding natural areas; and, 
 
(c) The development of roads and trails between developments 

and surrounding forested areas and grasslands which may be 
used in an emergency for fire prevention purposes. 

 
   
Multi-Lot Residential 
Development 
 

2.6.3 Greenview shall encourage developers to adhere to the practices 
as outlined below for multi-lot residential development which may 
be determined to be too remote to be adequately protected by 
existing firefighting services: 
 
(a) The provision of adequate on-site water supplies for firefighting 

purposes; 
 
(b) The use of fire resistant building methods;  
 

54



Municipal District of Greenview No. 16 
Municipal Development Plan Bylaw No. 15-742 

September 2016           Page 11 

 

(c) The installation of spark arresters on all chimneys; and 
 
(d) The provision of an emergency access to developments to 

help prevent property damage and the potential for loss of life. 

2.7 RECREATION AND HISTORIC SITES 

Recreation Master 
Plan 
 

2.7.1 Greenview may prepare a Recreation and Open Space Master 
Plan, which shall be used as the basis for recreation and tourist 
planning in Greenview. The Plan may include, but not be limited to, 
the identification of recreation sites and the identification of all-
terrain vehicle and snowmobile trail systems. 
 

   
Community 
Associations 
 

2.7.2 Greenview strongly encourages the involvement of community 
associations in the provision, financing and maintenance of 
recreation facilities. 
 

   
Private Recreation 
Facilities 
 

2.7.3 The establishment of privately owned commercial recreational and 
tourism facilities operated on a for-profit basis is encouraged. 
 

   
Eco- and Agri-
Tourism 
 

2.7.4 Greenview supports eco-tourism and agri-tourism as a means to 
create employment opportunities and diversify the municipality’s 
economy. 
 

   
Passive Recreation 
 

2.7.5 Greenview supports the use of lake shores, river corridors and 
other environmentally sensitive areas for passive recreational 
purposes. All recreational activities occurring in these areas shall 
be undertaken in an environmentally responsible fashion. 
 

   
Public Access 
 

2.7.6 Through the subdivision process, public access to shoreline areas 
shall be accommodated through the dedication of Environmental 
and/or Municipal Reserve. 
 

   
Historical Resources 
 

2.7.7 In the preservation and promotion of historical resources, 
Greenview may refer proposed development applications that may 
affect historical resources to Alberta Culture for its comments and 
recommendations respecting the preparation of a Historic 
Resources Impact Assessment. 
 

   
Historic Sites 
 

2.7.8 Greenview supports the identification and appropriate 
development of historical sites such as the Edson Trail and the 
Hinton Trail. 

 
 

  

55



Municipal District of Greenview No. 16 
Municipal Development Plan Bylaw No. 15-742 

September 2016           Page 12 

 

SECTION 3 AGRICULTURE 

3.1 INTRODUCTION 

The preservation and promotion of the agricultural land base are major goals of this MDP.  This involves 
limiting the types of non-agricultural activities allowed on better agricultural land. 

3.2 OBJECTIVES 

(a) To minimize the loss of better agricultural land to non-agricultural uses. 
 
(b) To encourage development of the agricultural community and promote the rights of farmers 

to continue normal agricultural operations. 
 
(c) Promote the construction of agriculture operations in a sustainable manner. 

3.3 GENERAL 

Agriculture as 
Priority Use 
 

3.3.1 On lands shown as “Agriculture Policy Area” on the Future Land 
Use Concept, agricultural uses shall have priority over all other 
uses except as provided for in this MDP. 
 

   
Non-Agricultural 
Uses 
 

3.3.2 The development of non-agricultural uses in the rural area shall 
not negatively impact existing agricultural operations. As new 
development occurs in the rural area, notice to developers 
respecting the presence of agricultural operations shall be made in 
accordance with the provisions of the LUB. 

3.4 BETTER AGRICULTURAL LAND 

Land Use on Better 
Agricultural Land 
 

3.4.1 The development of non-agricultural uses on better agricultural 
lands will not be permitted, except where Greenview determines 
that: 
 
(a) the proposed use has no suitable alternative location; 
 
(b) the proposed development will utilize a limited amount of 

agricultural land; 
 
(c) the proposed use will not interfere with or negatively affect 

existing nearby agricultural uses or adjacent residential uses; 
 
(d) the proposed development represents a logical extension to 

existing land use patterns; or 
 
(e) the proposed development promotes the efficiency of local 

servicing and transportation networks. 
 
The types of non-agricultural uses that may be considered 
acceptable on better agricultural lands include: 

56



Municipal District of Greenview No. 16 
Municipal Development Plan Bylaw No. 15-742 

September 2016           Page 13 

 

 
(a) Agricultural industry which directly benefit and serve the rural 

community; 
 
(b) Natural resource extractive industries; 
 
(c) Temporary storage of oilfield related equipment and pipe; 
 
(d) Recreational and tourism uses; 
 
(e) Public uses and public utility systems; and 
 
(f) Home-based business. 
 

   
Subdivision of 
Better Agricultural 
Land 
 

3.4.2 Greenview may support the subdivision of better agricultural land 
where the proposed subdivision is for: 
 
(a) A farmstead separation; 
 
(b) A first parcel out for residential purposes in accordance with 

Policy 3.4.3; 
 
(c) A fragmented parcel; 
 
(d) An agricultural industry; 
 
(e) An intensive agricultural parcel in accordance with Policy 3.4.7; 
 
(f) A natural resource extractive industry; 
 
(g) A public use or public utility; 
 
(h) A confined feeding operation or other intensive agricultural 

use; 
 
(i) A lot contained within an approved ASP or Concept Plan; or 
 
(j) Hamlet expansion. 
 

   
Vacant First Parcel 
Out 
 

3.4.3 Pursuant to Policy 3.4.2(b) (“Subdivision of Better Agricultural 
Land”), the subdivision of one vacant parcel out of a previously 
unsubdivided quarter section for a residential use shall only be 
allowed if the following criteria are met to the satisfaction of  
Greenview: 
 
(a) The proposed subdivision boundary and building site adheres 

to Provincial Regulations regarding setback distances between 
property lines, buildings, water sources and private sewage 
disposal systems;  
 

(b) Legal and physical access to a developed Municipal District 
road is provided; 
 

57



Municipal District of Greenview No. 16 
Municipal Development Plan Bylaw No. 15-742 

September 2016           Page 14 

 

(c) The proposed use of the parcel does not negatively impact 
adjacent agricultural uses,  
 

(d) The proposed parcel is not located within the required 
Minimum Distance Separation of an established confined 
feeding operation (“CFO”), and will not be located so as to 
interfere with the future expansion of existing CFOs;  
 

(e) In the sole discretion of Greenview, the parcel is in a location 
that minimizes to the greatest extent  possible disturbance to 
and loss of environmentally significant areas, or other 
environmentally sensitive features such as wetlands, riparian 
vegetation, natural drainage courses and tree stands; and 
 

(f) Any other considerations as may be determined by Greenview. 
 

   
Parcel Location 
 

3.4.4 Where possible, subdivisions identified in 3.4.2 (“Subdivision of 
Better Agricultural Land”) will be encouraged to locate on portions 
of a quarter section that are:  
 
(a) Physically severed or are of lower agricultural capability; 

and/or 
 

(b) Adjacent to or near quarter section boundaries to minimize the 
fragmentation of agricultural land and without constraining or 
otherwise impacting agricultural operations on the quarter 
section. 

 
   
Fragmented Parcels 
 

3.4.5 The subdivision of a fragmented parcel may be approved if: 
 
(a) The proposed parcel(s) can be adequately serviced; 
 
(b) It does not conflict with adjacent uses; 
 
(c) A suitable building site is present; and 
 
(d) There is legal and physical access to the proposed parcel. 
 

   
Consolidation of 
Fragmented Parcels 
 

3.4.6 Where possible, the consolidation of fragmented agricultural 
parcels with adjacent lands should be encouraged. 
 

   
Intensive 
Agricultural Parcel 

3.4.7 Greenview may allow the subdivision of an intensive agricultural 
parcel if: 
 
(a) The use proposed for the parcel is an intensive agricultural 

operation and represents a more intensive use of the land than 
typical extensive agricultural uses; 
 

(b) The applicant demonstrates to the satisfaction of Greenview 
that the proposed operation will result in the lands being used 
intensively for commercial agricultural pursuits; and  

 

58



Municipal District of Greenview No. 16 
Municipal Development Plan Bylaw No. 15-742 

September 2016           Page 15 

 

(c) The applicant demonstrates to the satisfaction of Greenview 
that the proposed agricultural operation is viable and the 
amount of land required is appropriate to the character of the 
operation. 

 
   
Parcel Size 
Requirements 
 

3.4.8 (a) The size of a farmstead separation shall be at the discretion of 
Greenview based on the location of the existing buildings, 
fences, shelter belts and required setback distances for the 
existing private sewage system. 

 
(b) The size of a subdivided lot approved under Policy 3.4.3 

(“Vacant First Parcel Out”) shall be in accordance with LUB 
requirements. 
 

(c) The size of a Fragmented Parcel approved under Policy 3.4.5 
(“Fragmented Parcels”) shall be determined by the size of the 
fragment itself which must contain the entire fragmented 
portion of the quarter section. 
 

(d) The size of a parcel approved under Policy 3.4.7 (“Intensive 
Agricultural”) shall not exceed 12.1 ha (30 ac). The 
resubdivision of an Intensive Agricultural parcel into smaller 
lots for non-agricultural purposes shall not be supported. 

3.5 OTHER AGRICULTURAL LANDS 

Subdivision of 
Agricultural Land 
 

3.5.1 On those lands that are not defined as better agricultural lands, or 
that are considered exceptions by Greenview to the definition of 
better agricultural land by virtue of slope, configuration, 
surrounding land use or size, Greenview may allow the subdivision 
and/or development of non-agricultural uses. 
 

   
Non-Agricultural 
Uses 
 

3.5.2 Proposals for non-agricultural uses may be supported depending 
upon the merits of the proposal as determined under Section 10.3 
(“Subdivision and Development Requirements”), and its effect on 
the farming area. 

3.6 CONFINED FEEDING OPERATIONS 

Support for 
Confined Feeding 
Operations 
 

3.6.1 Applications to the Natural Resources Conservation Board 
(NRCB) for the establishment or expansion of CFOs shall not be 
supported by Greenview unless they are compatible with adjacent 
land uses and do not generate adverse health or environmental 
effects. 
 

   
Establishment and 
Expansion of CFOs 
 

3.6.2 Notwithstanding the requirements of the Agricultural Operation 
Practices Act, the expansion or establishment of CFOs will not be 
supported by Greenview: 
 
(a) Unless the proposed CFO conforms to the required Minimum 

Distance Separation determined by the NRCB in accordance 

59



Municipal District of Greenview No. 16 
Municipal Development Plan Bylaw No. 15-742 

September 2016           Page 16 

 

with the Agricultural Operations and Practices Act Within 3.2 
km (2 miles) of a recreation or community facility, or the 
boundaries of a hamlet; or 
 

(b) In areas designated for country residential development in an 
ASP or Concept Plan; 

 
(c) In areas identified for potential annexation in an IDP; 

 
(d)  Within 3.2 km (2 miles) of an environmentally sensitive area, 

water body, watercourse, recreational area or drainage 
channel unless measures are employed to prevent negative 
impacts on these features to the satisfaction of Greenview; or 
 

(b)  If the proposed CFO is proposed in an areas in which 
intensive agriculture is precluded by the provisions of an 
approved ASP, other Statutory Plan, or Concept Plan. 

 
   
Minimum Distance 
Separations 

3.6.3 Where possible, the Minimum Distance Separation for CFOs 
should be accommodated on land owned by the operator. 
 

   
Contamination of 
Runoff 

3.6.34 CFOs should not be established or expanded where there is any 
risk that runoff will contaminate ground or surface water supplies.  
  

   
Protection of 
Existing CFOs 
 

3.6.45 Greenview shall protect existing CFOs by refusing development 
permits for new residences proposed to be located within the 
Minimum Distance Separation of these operations as defined by 
Agricultural Operations and Practices Act. 
 

   
Intensive Livestock 
Operations 

3.6.56 (a)  Greenview shallmay approve intensive livestock operations 
that meet in accordance with the requirements of the LUB. 

 
(b)  Policy 3.6.34 (“Contamination of Runoff”) shall apply in the 

consideration of an application for an intensive livestock 
operation. 

  

60



Municipal District of Greenview No. 16 
Municipal Development Plan Bylaw No. 15-742 

September 2016           Page 17 

 

SECTION 4 COUNTRY RESIDENTIAL 

4.1 INTRODUCTION 

Multi-lot country residential subdivisions are an important component of Greenview’s residential land use 
pattern. Due to the proximity of employment opportunities in Grande Prairie, Valleyview and Fox Creek, it 
is anticipated that country residential demand within commuting distance of these centres will continue to 
grow, or in the case of Fox Creek, present future country residential development opportunities. 

4.2 OBJECTIVES 

(a) To ensure that multi-lot country residential developments are properly serviced and situated 
in appropriate locations. 

 
(b) To meet the need and demand for properly serviced country residential lots throughout 

Greenview. 
 
(c) To ensure that country residential development does not negatively impact surrounding land 

uses or local infrastructure. 

4.3 POLICIES 

Better Agricultural 
Land 
 

4.3.1 Except where exempted under Policy 3.4.3 (“Vacant First Parcel 
Out”) country residential subdivision shall not occur on Better 
Agricultural Land. 
 

   
Parcel Size 
 

4.3.2 Proposed country residential parcels shall be in accordance with 
the requirements of the LUB. Country residential parcels of a size 
in excess of that permitted under the LUB shall only be considered 
if, in the opinion of Greenview the additional lands are warranted 
by site-specific topographic or geographic constraints, or the 
location of existing buildings, shelterbelts and other improvements. 
 

   
Proximity to 
Intensive Agriculture 
 

4.3.3 Proposals for country residential subdivisions shall not be 
supported in proximity to existing CFOs and other intensive 
agricultural uses. 
 

  	
Cluster Development 
 

4.3.4 In order to protect environmentally sensitive areas and to preserve 
agricultural land for agricultural use, Greenview shall encourage 
applicants for subdivision to incorporate cluster design as a means 
of minimizing potential impacts and promoting efficiency of 
development. 
 

   
Restrictions on 
Location 
 

4.3.5 Greenview shall direct the development of multi-lot country 
residential subdivisions away from: 
 
(a) Urban fringe areas except where allowed in an IDP; 
 

61



Municipal District of Greenview No. 16 
Municipal Development Plan Bylaw No. 15-742 

September 2016           Page 18 

 

(b) Waste transfer stations and active, abandoned or un-reclaimed 
sanitary landfills; 

 
(c) Environmentally sensitive lands; 
 
(d) Existing confined feeding operations; 
 
(e) Highways, unless accommodated in an approved ASP; 
 
(f) Existing sand and gravel extraction sites;  
 
(e) Sour gas facilities or other potentially hazardous industrial 

operations; and 
 

(f) Gun ranges. 
 

   
Evaluation of 
Residential 
Subdivision  
Proposals 
 

4.3.6 Multi-lot country residential subdivisions shall only be supported if 
the following conditions are met: 

 
(a) The proposal complies with Policy 4.3.1 (“Better Agricultural 

Land”); 
 
(b) The proposed subdivision is contiguous to other country 

residential development to encourage cluster development 
unless it cannot be supported due to environmental 
constraints; 

 
(c) The land has a demonstrated ability to accommodate on-site 

water services, unless the proposed subdivision is to be 
served by a municipal water supply. For any proposal that 
proposes to utilize wells or groundwater-fed dugouts for water 
supply, the applicant shall submit to Greenview a 
hydrogeological assessment prepared by a qualified 
professional engineer that determines the availability of an 
onsite water supply that does not negatively impact 
neighbouring licensed wells and is adequate for domestic 
purposes in accordance with guidelines from Alberta 
Environment and Parks (“AEP”); 

 
(d) The land has a demonstrated ability to accommodate on-site 

sewer services, unless the proposed subdivision is to be 
served by a municipal sewer system. For any proposal that 
proposes to utilize on-site sewage disposal systems, the 
applicant shall submit to Greenview soils tests prepared by a 
qualified professional engineer that demonstrates the presence 
of suitable soil conditions in accordance with the requirements 
of Alberta Municipal Affairs;  

 
(e) The proposal does not conflict with existing surrounding 

agricultural uses; 
 
(f) The subject lots contain a suitable building site; 
 
(g) Significant recreational or environmental areas are not be 

negatively impacted; 

62



Municipal District of Greenview No. 16 
Municipal Development Plan Bylaw No. 15-742 

September 2016           Page 19 

 

 
(h) The site has legal and physical access to the satisfaction of  

Greenview; and 
 
(i) The proposed development does not unduly hinder the future 

extraction of known natural resources. 
 

   
Resubdivision of 
Lots 
 

4.3.7 The resubdivision of a country residential parcel will not be allowed 
unless the applicant can demonstrate to Greenview that the 
proposal will meet the criteria under Policy 4.3.5 (“Evaluation of 
Development Proposals”). 

 
  

63



Municipal District of Greenview No. 16 
Municipal Development Plan Bylaw No. 15-742 

September 2016           Page 20 

 

SECTION 5 HAMLETS AND SETTLEMENTS 

5.1 INTRODUCTION 

Hamlets play an important role in Greenview as they provide services, minor commercial uses, schools 
and recreation activities to rural residents. Although they contain only a small portion of Greenview’s 
population, they are the focus for much of the extensively developed farming areas. In many cases 
hamlets also serve as retirement centres for the aging farming population of the area. As such, hamlets 
need to be well planned and serviced to meet the needs of the local population. In addition, there are 
several settlements in Greenview, namely Nose Creek, Aspen Grove and the Grande Cache Co-ops that 
are home to native communities. 

5.2 OBJECTIVES 

(a) To support and strengthen the role of hamlets and other settlements as the primary locations 
for community services and facilities. 

 
(b) To allow for the continued, orderly growth of hamlets in Greenview. 

5.3 POLICIES 

Designated Hamlets 
 

5.3.1 Grovedale, Landry Heights, Ridgevalley, Little Smoky and DeBolt 
are designated as hamlets as shown on Map 2, the Future Land 
Use Concept, and the boundaries and existing land uses for the 
subject hamlets are noted on Map 3, Future Land Use Concept - 
Hamlets.  The locations of all other settlements are also illustrated 
on Maps 2 and 4 (Future Land Use Concept – Grande Cache 
Area). 
 

   
Hamlet Development 
 

5.3.2 Hamlet development may occur as infilling of vacant sites, 
rehabilitation of deteriorating buildings, relocation and 
redevelopment of inappropriate uses, or a hamlet expansion.  
Each of the above hamlet growth options will be considered on its 
own merits. 
 

   
Land Uses 
 

5.3.3 Greenview shall encourage commercial, industrial and institutional 
uses that intend to serve the rural area to locate in or in proximity 
to hamlets where possible. 
 

   
Preferred 
Development 
 

5.3.4 Within hamlets the following types of development shall be 
encouraged by Greenview: 
 
(a) Residential uses, including single and multi-family dwellings 

and manufactured homes; 
 
(b) Convenience commercial uses; 
 
(c) Institutional uses such as churches, seniors housing, 

residential care facilities, community halls, and schools; 

64



Municipal District of Greenview No. 16 
Municipal Development Plan Bylaw No. 15-742 

September 2016           Page 21 

 

 
(d) Industrial uses developed in accordance with Policy 5.3.6 

(“Industrial Development”); and 
 
(e) Recreational uses. 
 

   
Buffers 
 

5.3.5 In order to ensure that future hamlet development is compatible 
with existing uses, Greenview shall ensure that adequate distance 
separations or landscaped buffers and fencing are provided 
between residential and non-residential uses. 
 

   
Industrial 
Development 
 

5.3.6 The types of industrial uses permitted in or in close proximity to 
hamlets shall be limited to light industrial development and small 
scale industries which are compatible with residential 
development. 

 
   
Lot Sizes 
 

5.3.7 Residential lot sizes in hamlets shall be urban in nature and be 
serviced with municipal water and sewer services where available. 
 

   
Hamlet Plans 
 

5.3.8 Greenview may prepare new Area Redevelopment Plans or ASPs, 
or review existing Plans as required, for its hamlets. 
 

   
Development in 
Proximity to Hamlets 
 

5.3.9 In order to help maintain the long term sustainability of its hamlets, 
Greenview may allow country residential subdivisions and 
industrial and commercial uses that are compatible with residential 
development to be located adjacent to these communities.   
 

   
Aboriginal 
Communities 
 

5.3.10 Greenview supports the continuing development of the Grande 
Cache co-operatives as indicated in Map 4 (Future Land Use 
Concept – Grande Cache Area), provided such development does 
not negatively impact surrounding uses. 

  

65



Municipal District of Greenview No. 16 
Municipal Development Plan Bylaw No. 15-742 

September 2016           Page 22 

 

SECTION 6 INDUSTRY AND COMMERCE 

6.1 INTRODUCTION 

Industrial and commercial development in Greenview ranges in scope from major industries to home-
based businesses. Local industrial development has grown and diversified to serve several resource 
sectors, including agriculture, forestry, mining, and oil and gas. The majority of this activity, including 
recreation and tourism, is based on provincial Crown Lands. 
 
Commercial development in Greenview is more limited, with some located adjacent to primary highways, 
as well as in hamlets. Home-based businesses, of both an industrial and commercial nature, are 
commonplace throughout Greenview. 

6.2 OBJECTIVES 

(a) To promote and accommodate the development of industrial and commercial uses at 
appropriate locations. 

 
(b) To accommodate the growth and development of home-based business. 

6.3 INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT 

Industrial Uses 
Supported 
 

6.3.1 The types of industry which may be supported in Greenview 
include those that: 
 
(a) Cater to the needs of agriculture, forestry, or natural resource 

extraction; 
 
(b) Have comparatively large land requirements; 
 
(c) Are not suited to an urban area; 
 
(d) Do not conflict with adjacent land uses in terms of appearance, 

emissions, noise, or traffic generation, unless suitable buffers 
are provided; 

 
(e) Are located on sites that are suitable for the proposed 

development in terms of soil stability, groundwater level, and 
drainage; and 

 
(f)  Have minimal servicing requirements. 
 

   
Location of 
Development 

6.3.2 (a)  With the exception of farm-based industries or major home 
occupations, industrial development proposals should 
wherever possible locate in an industrial park setting, or in 
proximity to other industrial uses where feasible to minimize 
impacts on potentially incompatible uses such as agricultural 
operations and country residential development. 

 
(b) Greenview may permit the establishment of industrial uses in 

agricultural areas if the proposed development: 

66



Municipal District of Greenview No. 16 
Municipal Development Plan Bylaw No. 15-742 

September 2016           Page 23 

 

(i) is a small scale industrial pursuit as defined in the LUB; or 
(ii) is associated with an existing or planned agricultural 

operation; or 
(iii) is not located on Better Agricultural Land unless the 

development is dependent on a specific site for its 
operations; 

(iv) is compatible with existing or planned land uses on 
adjacent lands; 

(v) does not impact a wetland or other environmentally 
sensitive feature; 

(vi) is located on a high grade road and does not negatively 
impact the integrity of Greenview’s road network; 

(vii) does not negatively impact the quantity of flow and quality 
of water to adjacent lands; and 

(viii) is located on a site on which private water and sewer 
services can be provided in accordance with provincial 
standards and guidelines.  

 
   
Evaluation of 
Industrial 
Development 
Proposals 
 

6.3.3 All industrial development proposals will be evaluated according to 
the following: 

 
(a) Potential impact on quality and quantity of water supplies and 

water courses and conformity with guidelines, policies and 
conditions as required by  the applicable provincial 
departments or agencies; 

 
(b) Proximity to residential, recreational, and public uses, and 

environmentally sensitive areas; 
 
(c) The proposal does not interfere with agricultural operations; 
 
(d) Impacts on the local road network; 
 
(e) Provision for stormwater management and control of surface 

runoff; 
 
(f) Sufficiency of on-site water storage for fire protection purposes 

in accordance with National Fire Protection Association 
guidelines (NFPA 1142 or successor documents) and Alberta 
Safety Code requirements; and 

 
(g)  Conformity with relevant Statutory Plans and the LUB. 

   
   
Oil and Gas 
Facilities 
 

6.3.4 When reviewing subdivision and/or development applications, 
Greenview shall apply setback regulations and guidelines provided 
by the Alberta Energy Regulator to all applications in close 
proximity to sour gas and other oil and gas facilities, including 
pipelines. 
 

   
Dangerous Goods 6.3.5 Greenview may support the storage and processing of dangerous 

goods subject to the following: 
 

67



Municipal District of Greenview No. 16 
Municipal Development Plan Bylaw No. 15-742 

September 2016           Page 24 

 

(a) The proposed location is isolated in nature and located away 
from residential, institutional or recreational development; 

 
(b) Public access to the site is restricted; 
 
(c) That the facility receives approval from the applicable licensing 

agency; and 
 
(d) Preparation of an emergency response plan. 
 

6.4 COMMERCIAL DEVELOPMENT 

Commercial 
Development 
Supported 
 

6.4.1 Greenview supports the development of highway commercial and 
local commercial developments at appropriate locations. 
 

   
Location of 
Development 
 

6.4.2 The location of local commercial uses should be limited to existing 
commercial areas in hamlets and rural settlements, or in close 
proximity to existing highway commercial sites. 
 

   
Better Agricultural 
Land 
 

6.4.3 With the exception of homed-based businesses, commercial 
development shall not be permitted to locate on better agricultural 
land, unless no suitable alternative location is available. 
 

   
Evaluation of 
Commercial 
Development 
Proposals  
 

6.4.4 Highway commercial development proposals will be evaluated 
according to the following: 
 
(a) Proximity to urban centres; 
 
(b) The type of commercial use proposed; 
 
(c) Suitability of the site in terms of soil stability, groundwater 

level, and drainage; 
 
(d) Provisions for access and impacts on the transportation 

network; and 
 
(f) Conformity with relevant Statutory Plans and the LUB. 
 

   
Hamlet Commercial 
 

6.4.5 All commercial development proposals in hamlets will be evaluated 
according to the following: 
 
(a) Proposed location as such developments should be situated 

on the main street, and not dispersed throughout residential 
areas;  

 
(b) Compatibility with surrounding land uses; 
 
(c) Suitability of access and impacts on the local road network; 
 

68



Municipal District of Greenview No. 16 
Municipal Development Plan Bylaw No. 15-742 

September 2016           Page 25 

 

(d) Adequate provision for parking; and 
 
(e) Provision for landscaping, fencing and buffering. 

 

6.5 HOME-BASED BUSINESS 

Home-Based 
Business Supported 
 

6.5.1 Greenview supports and encourages the continued development 
of home-based businesses provided that: 
 
(a) The scale of the proposed business is appropriate for the 

character of the neighbourhood; 
 

(b) It is compatible with the uses in the area where it is located; 
 

(c) There is, in the opinion of Greenview, negligible impact on the 
environment, water, municipal infrastructure or neighbouring 
properties; 
 

(d) It is clearly secondary in nature to the residential or agricultural 
use of the property; and 
 

(e) In the case of small scale industrial pursuits as defined in the 
LUB and other similar industrial uses, that the proposed 
development site is rezoned to the applicable land use district. 

 
   
Scale of Use 
 

6.5.2 The establishment of home-based businesses shall only be 
supported if they do not negatively impact adjacent land uses. If 
Greenview determines that, in its opinion a home-based business 
has exceeded the capacity of the site and/or is determined to have 
a detrimental impact on the neighbourhood or adjacent properties, 
measures shall be undertaken to direct the home business use to 
relocate on appropriately zoned commercial or industrial lands.  
 

   
Bed and Breakfast 
 

6.5.3 Bed and breakfast establishments and guest ranches shall be 
encouraged by allowing such uses in accordance with the LUB. 

6.6 RESOURCE EXTRACTION ON PRIVATE LANDS 

Location Criteria 
 

6.6.1 Resource extraction activities that are proposed to be located on 
private lands and subject to municipal approval shall not be 
allowed: 

 
(a) In close proximity to hamlets and Urban Municipalities; and 

 
(b) In areas which are known to possess unique historical and/or 

environmental features that would be disturbed or destroyed 
by resource extraction, or in areas that are deemed to be 
environmentally sensitive. 
 

In addition, support for resource extraction operations shall be 
contingent on the mitigation or minimization of the cumulative 

69



Municipal District of Greenview No. 16 
Municipal Development Plan Bylaw No. 15-742 

September 2016           Page 26 

 

adverse impacts upon adjacent land uses, soil, water, and 
agricultural operations. 

 
Proximity to New 
Development 
 

 
6.6.2 

 
New subdivision and development, particularly residential, may be 
directed away from active and potential nonrenewable surface 
resource extraction areas to minimize the potential for conflict 
between incompatible land uses. 
 

   
Permitting and 
Licensing 
 

6.6.3 The permitting and licensing process for sand and gravel 
operations will be coordinated between Greenview and AEP. 
 

   
Sand and Gravel 
Operations 
 

6.6.4 The development of sand and gravel extraction operations is 
subject to reclamation in accordance with the Code of Practice for 
Pits as set out by AEP. 

 
  

70



Municipal District of Greenview No. 16 
Municipal Development Plan Bylaw No. 15-742 

September 2016           Page 27 

 

SECTION 7 INTERMUNICIPAL AND INTERGOVERNMENTAL RELATIONS 

7.1 INTRODUCTION 

7.1.1 The facilitation and implementation of inter-municipal planning and cooperation is a significant 
thrust of the Act. Although Greenview has entered into IDPs with the Towns of Valleyview, Fox 
Creek and Grande Cache, it is important that the spirit and intent of these documents be 
incorporated into the MDP. In addition, Greenview believes that strong, reciprocal inter-municipal 
relationships are critical to the long term sustainability of all of the communities, and that the MDP 
needs to reflect this. It is also necessary for Greenview to recognize its relationships with its rural 
neighbours. 

 
7.1.2 Greenview also recognizes that the planning requirements of the Alberta Land-use Framework 

and Alberta Land Stewardship Act need to be complied with through participation in the 
development of the Upper Peace Regional Plan. 

7.2 OBJECTIVES 

(a) To support and implement the IDPs which are in place with its Urban Municipalities. 
 

(b) To foster a cooperative approach to inter-municipal community development, and to continue 
to support administrative and funding agreements with the Urban Municipalities. 

 
(c) To support and encourage intergovernmental cooperation and partnership with the Urban 

and Rural Municipalities and other levels of government regarding regional development 
issues. 

 
(d) To establish protocols for planning referrals with the Rural Municipalities. 
 
(e) To cooperate with the Province in future regional planning initiatives. 

7.3 POLICIES 

Intermunicipal 
Development Plans 
 

7.3.1 Greenview shall continue to support its IDPs with the Urban 
Municipalities. Greenview agrees to participate in the monitoring 
and review of these Plans to ensure they remain current and 
reflect the needs of the respective municipalities and area 
residents. 
 

   
IDP Compliance 
 

7.3.2 Greenview shall not approve any development proposal in 
contravention of an IDP. If such a development is proposed and 
deemed to have merit, then an amendment to the IDP may be 
pursued in accordance with the provisions of the IDP. 
 

   
Rural Fringe 
 

7.3.3 Greenview shall establish a 3.2 km (2 mile) fringe zone adjacent to 
its boundaries with neighbouring Rural Municipalities. In this zone, 
Greenview shall circulate the following to the affected municipality 
for review and comment:  
 

71



Municipal District of Greenview No. 16 
Municipal Development Plan Bylaw No. 15-742 

September 2016           Page 28 

 

(a) Subdivision applications, with the exception of applications for 
farmstead separations, boundary adjustments and public uses; 

 
(b) Development permit applications for discretionary uses under 

the LUB; 
 
(c) Transportation and utility master plans; and 
 
(d) Statutory Plan and LUB amendments. 
 

   
Annexation 
 

7.3.4 Greenview will support the annexation of lands into neighbouring 
Urban Municipalities provided that the following criteria are met: 

 
(a) The proposal conforms to the relevant IDP; 
 
(b) The lands in question represent a logical extension to existing 

urban land use patterns and servicing networks, and are 
identified as suitable areas for long term expansion in the MDP 
of the Urban Municipality or an approved area structure plan; 
and 

 
(c) There is agreement to the proposed annexation from a 

majority of the affected landowners. 
 

   
Inter-Municipal 
Agreements 
 

7.3.5 Greenview supports the continuing use of inter-municipal 
agreements as means of delivering services in a co-operative 
manner and maximizing available resources. 
 

   
Joint Development 
Areas 
 

7.3.6 Greenview shall explore, with the Urban Municipalities, the 
establishment of joint development areas to assist with the funding 
of community facilities and programs in accordance with the Act.  
 

   
Upper Peace 
Regional Plan 
 

7.3.7 Greenview shall cooperate with the Province and other 
municipalities in the region in the preparation of the Upper Peace 
Regional Plan.  

 
  

72



Municipal District of Greenview No. 16 
Municipal Development Plan Bylaw No. 15-742 

September 2016           Page 29 

 

SECTION 8  CROWN LAND 

8.1 INTRODUCTION 

The use, disposition and protection of provincially controlled Crown lands is a significant issue in 
Greenview, as these areas constitute approximately 85 percent of its land base.  These lands are also 
significant as they accommodate a diversity of major economic activities, including oil and gas, forestry, 
sand and gravel extraction, and agriculture. They also contain Greenview’s major environmental features 
including rivers and lake shores. As a result, the development of Crown lands is an important land use 
issue, but Greenview’s role is limited due to Provincial control of these lands. 

8.2 OBJECTIVE 

(a) To cooperate with provincial government departments in the planning and development 
processes affecting Crown lands. 

8.3 POLICIES 

Land Uses on Crown 
Land 
 

8.3.1 Lands within the Crown Land Policy Area are primarily reserved for 
resource management, grazing, recreation, environmental 
protection, recreation and tourism, and associated activities. 
 

   
Review of 
Development 
Proposals 
 

8.3.2 When reviewing proposals for development on Crown land, 
consideration shall be given to the following: 
 
(a) Adjacent land uses; 
 
(b) Provision of water, sewer, and emergency and community 

services; 
 
(c) Access; and 
 
(d) Environmental impacts. 
 

   
New Agricultural 
Lands 
 

8.3.3 Greenview shall consider the following factors when reviewing and 
commenting on proposals to open up new agricultural lands: 
 
(a) The impact on the existing road system and the cost of 

constructing roads, if any, into the new areas; and 
 
(b) The potential loss of alternative resource development, 

recreational opportunities, or environmentally sensitive lands. 
 

   
Involvement in 
Approval Processes 
 

8.3.4 As a means of ensuring that the interests of Greenview are 
recognized and reflected in the development of Crown lands, the 
following measures are supported and encouraged by Greenview: 
 
(a) Participation in the province’s Integrated Resource Plan 

process; and 

73



Municipal District of Greenview No. 16 
Municipal Development Plan Bylaw No. 15-742 

September 2016           Page 30 

 

 
(b) Involvement and cooperation in provincial approval processes 

for proposed leases and other dispositions, serving as a 
means for conveying the concerns of residents to the 
appropriate provincial agencies, and active participation in the 
review processes utilized by the Alberta Energy Regulator and 
the Natural Resources Conservation Board. 

 
 
 
  

74



Municipal District of Greenview No. 16 
Municipal Development Plan Bylaw No. 15-742 

September 2016           Page 31 

 

SECTION 9 TRANSPORTATION AND SERVICING 

9.1 INTRODUCTION 

The residents of Greenview are served by an extensive network of highways and local roads, and 
maintaining the integrity, safety and quality of the road network is a high priority. With the exception of the 
provincial highway system, the road network is the responsibility of Greenview. As a result of increased 
residential and industrial development activity in the rural area, clearly defined transportation policies are 
required. In addition, policies respecting other forms of infrastructure (water, sewer, waste disposal) are 
required to ensure that all new developments are adequately serviced and the needs of residents are 
met. 
 
Map 5 illustrates Greenview’s overall transportation network. 

9.2 OBJECTIVES 

(a) To ensure that Greenview maintains a safe and efficient transportation network. 
 
(b) To ensure that all development is serviced to the satisfaction of Greenview. 

9.3 TRANSPORTATION 

Capital Plan 
 

9.3.1 Greenview shall regularly review and update its 10-Year Capital 
Plan as a means of budgeting and prioritizing future road 
construction and maintenance requirements. 

   
   
Road Access 
 

9.3.2 All subdivision and development proposals shall have access to 
developed roads. The construction of roads within a proposed 
subdivision and approaches to individual developments are the 
sole responsibility of the developer. In addition, all road 
improvements that are required as a result of proposed subdivision 
or development shall be constructed in accordance with 
Greenview’s standards. 
 

   
Alberta 
Transportation 
Requirements 
 

9.3.3 All development proposals located in proximity to a highway shall 
meet the requirements of Alberta Transportation.  Greenview shall 
refer all subdivision, development permit, and LUB amendment 
applications located within 0.8 km (0.5 mi) of a highway to Alberta 
Transportation for review and advice prior to making a decision. 
 

   
Proximity to 
Highways 
 

9.3.4 Developments that are expected to generate relatively large traffic 
volumes will be encouraged to locate near highways in 
accordance with Alberta Transportation requirements. 
 

   

  

75



Municipal District of Greenview No. 16 
Municipal Development Plan Bylaw No. 15-742 

September 2016           Page 32 

 

Traffic Impact 
Assessments 
 

9.3.5 Applicants for major development proposals and multi-lot 
subdivision applications may be required to prepare traffic impact 
assessments (“TIA”) as a means of determining road access and 
roadway improvement and upgrading requirements. If required, 
TIAs shall be submitted prior to subdivision or development permit 
approval. 
 

   
Joint Infrastructure 
Planning 
 

9.3.6 Greenview shall collaborate with other area municipalities to 
establish processes for joint planning of future road and other 
infrastructure improvements when required. 
 

   
Road Widening 
 

9.3.7 Road widening for municipal roads shall be dedicated at the time 
of subdivision in accordance with Greenview’s operational 
requirements and engineering standards. Road widening shall be 
provided by caveat or plan of survey at the discretion of Greenview 
along the frontage of both the subdivision and the balance of the 
quarter section. 
 

   
Road Use 
Agreements 
 

9.3.8 Road Use Agreements will be required with industry at the 
discretion of Greenview to address haul routes, maintenance 
and/or upgrading if necessary, dust control, and any other matters 
relative to the road use. 

9.4 MUNICIPAL SERVICESSERVICING 

Private Water and 
Sewer Services 
 

 9.4.1 With the exception of development located within the 
serviced area of a hamlet or in proximity to municipal or 
regional water or sewer lines pursuant to Policy 9.4.6 
(“Connection to Municipal Systems”), all developments in 
Greenview are required to provide private water and sewer 
services in accordance with provincial standards. 
 

    
On-Site Sewage 
Systems 
 

 9.4.2 As part of the development permit approval process, 
Greenview shall require that developers submit a site 
location plan for any proposed sewage disposal system. 
Greenview may require that soil percolation tests be 
undertaken by the developer to determine that the soils are 
suitable to accommodate on-site sewage disposal systems. 
 

    
Communal Sewage 
Systems 
 

 9.4.3 Greenview may allow developments to be serviced with 
central (communal) sewage collection, provided that such 
systems are constructed and maintained by the developer 
in accordance with provincial standards. 
 

    
Proof of Water 
Supply 
 

 9.4.4 Greenview shall, for all industrial, highway commercial, and 
multiple parcel country residential developments, require 
that the developer demonstrate that a sufficient and 
suitable groundwater supply is available to service the 
proposal. 

76



Municipal District of Greenview No. 16 
Municipal Development Plan Bylaw No. 15-742 

September 2016           Page 33 

 

 

  

77



Municipal District of Greenview No. 16 
Municipal Development Plan Bylaw No. 15-742 

September 2016           Page 34 

 

Utility Master Plan  
 
 

9.4.5 Greenview shall prepare a Utility Master Plan to guide future 
investment in water and sanitary sewer infrastructure to 
accommodate future growth and to protect public health and 
the environment. 
 

   
Connection to 
Municipal Systems 
 

9.4.6 (a)  Greenview shall require developers to connect to municipal or 
regional water distribution and sewage collection systems 
where:  
(i) The services abut the lands that are the subject of the 

development; or 
(ii) Connection is required in accordance with an approved 

Area Structure Plan; or 
(iii)  The proposed development is located within a hamlet 

where municipal services are present. 
 
(b)  Notwithstanding (a), connection to municipal water or sewer 

systems will not be required if the systems are determined by 
Greenview to not have the capacity available to accommodate 
the development.  

 
   
Solid Waste 
 

9.4.7 Greenview shall, in cooperation with other local authorities, 
continue to establish and encourage the use of solid waste 
disposal sites and transfer stations.  

  

Formatted: Font color: Red

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0", Hanging:  0.24", Tab stops:
Not at  0"

78



Municipal District of Greenview No. 16 
Municipal Development Plan Bylaw No. 15-742 

September 2016           Page 35 

 

SECTION 10   IMPLEMENTATION 

10.1  INTRODUCTION 

The purpose of this Section is to outline the mechanisms to be used in the implementation of the policies 
contained in this MDP. 

10.2  LAND USE BYLAW 

Land Use Bylaw 
Amendments 
 

10.2.1 (a) All amendments to the LUB shall be consistent with this MDP. 
If a proposed amendment is contrary to this MDP, but is 
deemed desirable by Council, this MDP shall be amended as 
required to ensure that consistency is maintained. 

(b) If an amendment to the LUB is required to accommodate a 
proposed subdivision, the amendment shall receive third 
reading from Council prior to subdivision approval taking place. 

10.3  SUBDIVISION AND DEVELOPMENT REQUIREMENTS 

Evaluation of 
Applications 
 

10.3.1 All applications for LUB amendments, subdivisions and 
development permits shall be evaluated by Greenview according 
to the following criteria: 
 
(a) Compliance with the Act, Regulation, LUB, and any other 

Statutory Plans or Concept Plans that are in effect; 
 
(b) Adequacy of road access and off-site traffic impacts generated 

by the proposed development; 
 
(c) Proposed methods of water supply, sewage disposal and 

storm drainage, supported by hydrogeological and 
geotechnical testing provided by the developer with the 
application; 

 
(d) Compatibility with adjacent land uses, including the potential 

impact on agricultural operations; 
 
(e) Site suitability in terms of soils, topography, and size; 
 
(f) Environmental factors including the potential for erosion, 

flooding, or watercourse contamination; and 
 
(g) The quality of agricultural land, and the fragmentation and loss 

of agricultural lands. 
 

   
Area Structure Plans 
and Concept Plans 
Prepared by 
Developer 
 

10.3.2 Greenview shall require the adoption of an ASP, prepared in 
accordance with Section 633 of the Act and Area Structure Plan 
and Concept Plan Policy 6001, or a Concept Plan prepared in 
accordance with Area Structure Plan and Concept Plan Policy 
6001,  prior to the approval of: 

79



Municipal District of Greenview No. 16 
Municipal Development Plan Bylaw No. 15-742 

September 2016           Page 36 

 

 
(a) An industrial or commercial subdivision exceeding one (1) lot; 

 
(b) A country residential subdivision resulting in a cumulative 

density of four (4) or more lots on the subject quarter section; 
 

(c) Any multi-lot country residential subdivision or recreational 
resort located adjacent to a lake or other watercourse; or 

 
(d) Any subdivision located in proximity to a highway when 

requested by Alberta Transportation. 
 
A plan prepared under this policy may be referred to as a “Minor” 
ASP. 
 

   
Area Structure Plans 
Prepared by  
Municipal District 
 

10.3.3 (a) Greenview may undertake the preparation of ASPs for its 
hamlets and other areas within Greenview that may be of 
strategic development interest, including but not limited to 
i) the Hamlets of DeBolt and Little Smoky, 
ii) Crooked Creek/Ridgevalley, and 
iii) the Grande Cache airport.  
 
A plan prepared under this policy may be referred to as a 
“Major” ASP. 

 
(b) Major ASPs shall address the criteria identified in Policy 10.3.4 

(“Area Structure Plan Content”), and will generally exceed one 
quarter section in size. Such plans may be undertaken in 
partnership with neighbouring municipalities, developers or 
industry partners.  

 
(c) Greenview shall commit to the review and update of the 

Sturgeon Lake ASP and Grovedale ASP as required. 
 

   
Area Structure Plan 
and Concept Plan 
Content 
 

10.3.4 The preparation of a Minor ASP or Concept Plan required under 
Policy 10.3.2 (“Area Structure Plans Prepared by Developer”) shall 
be the responsibility of the developer, based on Terms of 
Reference prepared by Greenview in accordance with Area 
Structure Plan and Concept Plan Policy 6001, and should address 
the following matters to the satisfaction of Greenview: 
 
(a) Conformity with this MDP, other Statutory Plans, other non-

statutory documents and the LUB; 
 

(b) Proposed land uses, population and employment projections 
for those land uses; 
 

(c) Proposed lot layout and phasing; 
 

(d) Impacts on adjacent uses, environmentally sensitive areas, 
and recreational uses, including provision for buffers and 
development setbacks; 

 

80



Municipal District of Greenview No. 16 
Municipal Development Plan Bylaw No. 15-742 

September 2016           Page 37 

 

(e) Proposed methods of water supply, stormwater management 
and sewage disposal, supported by report requirements 
contained in Policy 10.3.5 (“Supporting Technical Reports”); 

 
(f) Access point(s) and internal circulation network and impacts 

on the external existing transportation network; 
 
(g) Allocation of MR and ER; 

 
(h) Suitability of the site for development in terms of soil stability, 

groundwater level, and drainage; 
 

(i) Confirmation of the location and geographic extent of any 
environmentally significant areas, environmentally sensitive 
areas, riparian areas, surface water bodies, forests, wildlife 
corridors, hazard lands, and historic or archaeological sites. 
Any detailed scientific or engineering analysis that may be 
required by Greenview shall be undertaken by qualified 
technical Professionals with all costs borne by the developer; 
 

(j) Integration of natural areas into the design of developments to 
form part of a future linked and integrated parks and open 
space system, including the retention of forests, wildlife 
corridors, wetland areas, and the provision of stormwater 
ponds and parks to form continuous open spaces; and 
 

(k) Any other matters identified by Greenview.  
 

   
Supporting 
Technical Reports 

10.3.5 All ASPs, Concept Plans, and applications for rezoning and multi-
lot subdivisions shall be accompanied by the necessary 
professional technical reports including but not limited to 
Engineering Servicing Design Reports, Geotechnical Reports, 
Hydrogeological Reports, and Environmental Impact Assessments 
as determined by Greenview. 
 

   
Development 
Agreements 
 

10.3.6 As a condition of subdivision or development permit approval, 
Greenview may require the developer to enter into a development 
agreement with respect to the provision of all infrastructure 
required to service the site.   
 

   
Developer 
Responsibility 

10.3.7 Developers shall be responsible for all infrastructure and utility 
costs associated with development, including the payment of 
offsite levies. 

10.4 MUNICIPAL RESERVE 

Municipal Reserve 
Required 
 

10.4.1 As a condition of subdivision, Greenview shall require that ten 
percent (10%) of the developable lands be dedicated as MR as 
provided for under the Act. 
 

   

81



Municipal District of Greenview No. 16 
Municipal Development Plan Bylaw No. 15-742 

September 2016           Page 38 

 

Municipal Reserve 
Dedication 
 

10.4.2 Greenview shall require that MR be dedicated as cash-in-lieu in all 
cases except as follows: 
 
(a) Where the subdivision results in the creation of a multi-parcel 

country residential development, all or a portion of MR owing 
may be dedicated in parcel form if required for community 
open space; 

 
(b) In industrial or other non-residential subdivisions, all or a 

portion of MR may be dedicated in parcel form to serve as 
buffers from incompatible land uses; 

 
(c) Where it may be dedicated in parcel form or deferred to the 

balance in accordance with an approved ASP or Concept Plan; 
 
(d) When subdivision occurs in an urban expansion area as 

defined in an IDP, MR shall be deferred in order to allow the 
affected urban municipality to optimize the available lands after 
annexation takes place; or 

 
(e) In the event that the amount of MR owing is relatively small, it 

may be deferred to the balance. 
 

   
Cash-in-Lieu Value 
 

10.4.3 If the applicant for a subdivision and Greenview cannot agree on a 
land value to determine the amount of cash-in-lieu of land for MR 
dedication, the applicant shall provide a market value appraisal 
certified by a qualified appraiser, pursuant to the Act. Alternatively, 
the rate of payment may be based on the assessed value of the 
subject land as determined by Greenview’s assessors. 
 

   
Use of Municipal 
Reserve Funds 
 

10.4.4 Greenview shall use the funds generated through MR dedication to 
acquire lands for recreational purposes, for the purchase of 
associated equipment or facilities, or to contribute to regional 
recreational facilities. 
 

   
Land Quality 
 

10.4.5 Land dedicated as MR should be of similar quality as the land 
being subjected to development. Land that is deemed to be 
undevelopable in its natural state or is otherwise more suited as 
ER, will not be accepted as MR. 
 

   
Public Access 
 

10.4.6 For new residential subdivisions adjacent to lakeshores, rivers or 
stream banks, MR should be used to supplement shoreline ER 
parcels to enhance public access to the water body, where 
appropriate. The location and configuration of MR lands should 
recognize its potential public access function. 
 

   
Municipal Reserve 
Disposal 
 

10.4.7 MR parcels which serve no existing or potential open space or 
school purpose may be disposed of and sold, or allocated as 
Community Service Reserve. Moneys obtained from the sale of 
surplus MR lands shall be allocated to Greenview’s MR reserve 

82



Municipal District of Greenview No. 16 
Municipal Development Plan Bylaw No. 15-742 

September 2016           Page 39 

 

fund for the purposes outlined in Policy 10.4.4 (“Use of Municipal 
Reserve Funds”). 
 

10.5 MONITORING AND REVIEW  

Five Year Reviews 
 

10.5.1 To ensure that this MDP continues to be current and relevant, it 
should be reviewed at five year intervals unless changing 
conditions warrant a review prior to that time. Such reviews may 
reflect such factors as legislative change, changes to the local 
development climate, the impact of new major projects, or Council 
philosophy. 
 

   
Plan Amendments 
 

10.5.2 If a significant change in policy direction is desired, or if 
subsequent studies indicate the need for a change to this MDP, it 
shall be amended in accordance with the Act. 

 

 

 

83



 
  

Bylaw 15-742 

BYLAW NO. 15-742 

of the Municipal District of Greenview No. 16 
 

 

A Bylaw of the Municipal District of Greenview No. 16, in the Province of  
Alberta, to repeal Bylaw 03-397, being the Municipal Development Plan for the 

Municipal District of Greenview No. 16 

 

Whereas, the Council of the Municipal District of Greenview No. 16, Province of Alberta, has adopted a 
Municipal Development Plan; and 
 
Whereas, it is deemed feasible to amend the Municipal Development Plan; 
 
Therefore, the Council of the Municipal District of Greenview No. 16, duly assembled, hereby enacts the 
following: 
 

1. That the Municipal Development Plan attached hereto is hereby adopted as the “Municipal 
Development Plan of the Municipal District of Greenview No. 16”. 

 
2. That this Bylaw shall come into effect upon the date of the final passage thereof. 
 
3. That this Bylaw shall replace the Municipal Development Plan adopted under Bylaw 03-397, 

which is hereby repealed in its entirety. 
 

This Bylaw shall come into force and effect upon the third and final reading. 
 
Read a first time this 24th day of March , A.D., 2015. 
 
Read a second time this 27th day of September, A.D., 2016. 
 
Read a third time and passed this 27th day of September , A.D., 2016. 
 

       
REEVE       

  
       
CHIEF ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER   

 

84



MUNICIPAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN 

Bylaw No. 15�742 

September 2016

85



86



Municipal District of Greenview No. 16 
Municipal Development Plan Bylaw No. 15�742 

September 2016 Table of Contents 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

SECTION 1 INTRODUCTION ............................................................................................................... 1 
1.1 General Overview...................................................................................................................... 1 
1.2 Legislative Context .................................................................................................................... 2 
1.3 Goals of the Plan ....................................................................................................................... 3 
1.4 Growth Strategy ........................................................................................................................ 4 
1.5 Definitions .................................................................................................................................. 5 

SECTION 2 NATURAL ENVIRONMENT ............................................................................................. 7 
2.1 Introduction ................................................................................................................................ 7 
2.2 Objectives .................................................................................................................................. 7 
2.3 General ...................................................................................................................................... 7 
2.4 Hazard Lands ............................................................................................................................ 8 
2.5 Groundwater Evaluation and Protection ................................................................................... 9 
2.6 Firesmart ................................................................................................................................. 10 

SECTION 3 AGRICULTURE .............................................................................................................. 12 
3.1 Introduction .............................................................................................................................. 12 
3.2 Objectives ................................................................................................................................ 12 
3.3 General .................................................................................................................................... 12 
3.4 Better Agricultural Land ........................................................................................................... 12 
3.5 Other Agricultural Lands ......................................................................................................... 15 
3.6 Confined Feeding Operations ................................................................................................. 15 

SECTION 4 COUNTRY RESIDENTIAL ............................................................................................. 17 
4.1 Introduction .............................................................................................................................. 17 
4.2 Objectives ................................................................................................................................ 17 
4.3 Policies .................................................................................................................................... 17 

SECTION 5 HAMLETS AND SETTLEMENTS ................................................................................... 20 
5.1 Introduction .............................................................................................................................. 20 
5.2 Objectives ................................................................................................................................ 20 
5.3 Policies .................................................................................................................................... 20 

SECTION 6 INDUSTRY AND COMMERCE ....................................................................................... 22 
6.1 Introduction .............................................................................................................................. 22 
6.2 Objectives ................................................................................................................................ 22 
6.3 Industrial Development ........................................................................................................... 22 
6.4 Commercial Development ....................................................................................................... 24 
6.5 Home2Based Business ............................................................................................................ 25 
6.6 Resource Extraction on Private Lands .................................................................................... 25 

SECTION 7 INTERMUNICIPAL AND INTERGOVERNMENTAL RELATIONS ................................ 27 
7.1 Introduction .............................................................................................................................. 27 
7.2 Objectives ................................................................................................................................ 27 
7.3 Policies .................................................................................................................................... 27 

SECTION 8 CROWN LAND ............................................................................................................... 29 
8.1 Introduction .............................................................................................................................. 29 
8.2 Objective ................................................................................................................................. 29 
8.3 Policies .................................................................................................................................... 29 

87



Municipal District of Greenview No. 16 
Municipal Development Plan Bylaw No. 15�742 

September 2016 Table of Contents 

SECTION 9 TRANSPORTATION AND SERVICING ......................................................................... 31 
9.1 Introduction .............................................................................................................................. 31 
9.2 Objectives ................................................................................................................................ 31 
9.3 Transportation ......................................................................................................................... 31 
9.4 Municipal Services .................................................................................................................. 32 

SECTION 10 IMPLEMENTATION ........................................................................................................ 34 
10.1 Introduction .............................................................................................................................. 34 
10.2 Land Use Bylaw ...................................................................................................................... 34 
10.3 Subdivision and Development Requirements ......................................................................... 34 
10.4 Municipal Reserve ................................................................................................................... 36 
10.5 Monitoring and Review ............................................................................................................ 38 

Maps 

Map 1 Geographic Context Following Page 1 
Map 2 Future Land Use Concept Following Page 4 
Map 3 Future Land Use Concept (Hamlets) Following Page 19 
Map 4 Future Land Use Concept (Grande Cache Area) Following Page 19 
Map 5 Transportation Network  Following Page 30 

88



Municipal District of Greenview No. 16 
Municipal Development Plan Bylaw No. 15�742 

September 2016 Page 1 

SECTION 1 INTRODUCTION 

1.1 GENERAL OVERVIEW 

1.1.1 The Municipal District of Greenview No. 16 (“Greenview”) is located in the southern portion of the 
Peace River Region as illustrated on Map 1 (Geographic Context). Its location is strategic as most 
goods bound for points north will pass through Greenview. There is a wide diversity of resources 
from oil and gas to lumber and mining, as well as tourism opportunities. Rapid development in 
these resource sectors has resulted in Greenview being host to a strong and diverse economic 
base. There is also a good deal of arable agricultural land, but the amount of agricultural land is 
finite so steps should be taken to limit its loss. With the wide variety of resources and opportunity 
available there is a need to ensure that future development is managed effectively. 

1.1.2 This Municipal Development Plan (“MDP”) encourages growth towards our hamlets as logical 
centres for future residential and commercial development. The infrastructure requirements 
associated with our hamlets will in many cases require additional upgrading and expansion to meet 
future needs. 

1.1.3 The MDP also provides a framework for future decisions on land use that will ultimately affect the 
economic development of Greenview. The MDP will attempt to achieve this while balancing the 
need for growth with measures to protect our limited agricultural and environmental resources. 

1.1.4 Greenview’s previous MDP (Bylaw 032397) was adopted in 2003. Best practice directs regular 
reviews of the MDP in order that its policies remain current and responsive to community needs. 
The preparation of this new MDP is timely and required to: 

(a) Bring clarity to some existing policies in the 2003 MDP that remain valid but require more 
substance to improve their interpretation and enforceability; 

(b) Achieve compliance with the Province’s Land2use Framework and the Alberta Land 
Stewardship Act. The MDP must conform to the requirements of these new provincial 
initiatives. In addition, there is an opportunity for the new MDP to influence the direction for 
growth management in the future Upper Peace Regional Plan; 

(c) Align MDP policies with the strategic priorities and initiatives contained in Council’s 2014 
Strategic Directions Plan; 

(d) To strengthen policy for the protection of groundwater and the coordination of energy 
exploration and extraction activities; 

(e) Reinforce policy to emphasize agriculture as the priority land use in Greenview: 

(f) Clarify MDP policies regarding requirements for country residential subdivisions and developer 
responsibilities for all subdivision; 

(g) Enhance existing policies on lakeshore development and protection of riparian areas; 

(h) Update policies respecting relationships and agreements with the urban municipalities located 
within Greenview. 

89



90



#
#

#

#

#

#

#

#

#

#

#

#

#

#

#

#

#

#

*
*

*

*

*

*

*

*

*

*

*

*

*

*

*

*

*

*

!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

(

(
(

(
(

(

(

(

(
(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

!(

!(

!(
!(

!(

Gr
an
de
 C
ac
he

Fo
x C
re
ek

Va
lle
yv
iew

 S
tu

rg
e
o
n
 L

a
k
e

IR
 #

1
5
4

 A
le

x
a
n
d

e
r 

IR
 #

1
3
4
A

DeB
olt

Gr
ov
ed
ale

Rid
gev
alle
y

Lit
tle
 Sm
ok
y

La
nd
ry 
He
igh
ts

C
al

ai
s

Jo
ac

hi
m

G
oo

dw
in

P
u
s
k
w

a
s
k
a
u

P
in

e
s

N
o

s
e
 C

re
e
k

O
'B

ri
e
n

S
us

a 
C
re

ek

S
w

e
a
th

o
u
s
e

A
s
p

e
n
 G

ro
v
e

Vic
to

r L
ak

e

T
w

o
 L

a
k
e
s

S
u
n
s
e
t

H
o

u
s
e

W
ill
ia
m

so
n

S
o
u
th

v
ie

w

S
im

on
et

te

C
ro

ok
ed

C
re

ek

W
a
s
k
a

h
ig

a
n

N
e

w
 F

is
h

 C
re

e
k

S
m

o
k
e
 L

a
k
e

W
an

ya
nd

ie
 E

as
t

M
u

s
k
e
e
g

 S
e
e
p
e
e

W
an

ya
nd

ie
 W

es
t

S
he

ep
 C

re
ek

K
a
k
w

a
 R

iv
e
rM
u

s
re

a
u
 L

a
k
e

Io
s
e
g

u
n
 L

a
k
e

S
tu

rg
eo

n 
H
ei
gh

ts

S
ul
ph

ur
 G

at
es

S
h
u
tt
le

r 
F

la
ts

S
m

ok
y 
R
iv
er

 S
ou

th
P

ie
rr

e
 G

re
y
's

L
a
k
e
s

B
ig

 M
o
u
n
ta

in
C

re
e
k

Yo
un

g'
s 

P
oi
nt

G
ra

nd
e 

C
ac

he
 L

ak
e

K
a
k
w

a
W

ild
la

n
d

P
ro

v
in

c
ia

l
P

a
rk

S
tu

rg
eo

n 
La

ke

S
et

tle
m

en
t

73
6

4
0

4
0

4
3

4
3

4
9

94
7

67
6

66
6

66
566

9
66

5

Mu
nic
ipa
l D
ist
ric
t o
f G
ree
nv
iew
 N
o. 
16

Mu
nic
ipa
l D
ev
elo
pm
en
t P
lan

Ma
p 1
 – 
Ge
og
rap
hic
 C
on
tex
t

R
a

ilw
a

y

T
w

in
n
e

d
 H

ig
h

w
a
y

T
w

o
-l

a
n

e
 H

ig
h

w
a

y

F
o

re
s
tr

y
 T

ru
n

k
 R

o
a

d

T
o

w
n

In
d
ia

n
 R

e
s
e

rv
e

W
ild

la
n
d

 P
ro

v.
 P

a
rk

P
ro

v.
 G

re
e

n
 A

re
a

P
ro

v.
 W

h
it
e

 A
re

a

!(
H

a
m

le
t

!(
L
o

c
a

lit
y

!(
C

o
-o

p
e
ra

ti
v
e

# *
P

ro
v.

 P
a

rk
/R

e
c
re

a
ti
o

n
 A

re
a

²

²

91



92



Municipal District of Greenview No. 16 
Municipal Development Plan Bylaw No. 15�742 

September 2016 Page 2 

1.2 LEGISLATIVE CONTEXT 

1.2.1 Municipal Government Act 

This MDP has been prepared in accordance with Section 632 of the Municipal Government Act. The Act 
requires that all municipalities with a population of 3,500 or more must adopt a MDP. 

The Act requires that, at a minimum, the MDP address: 

• land use and the manner of future development;

• local transportation systems;

• the provision of municipal services and utilities;

• policies respecting municipal reserve;

• the protection of agricultural operations; and

• the coordination of land use, infrastructure and growth patterns with adjacent municipalities.

An illustration of where the MDP fits into the hierarchy of Alberta planning documents is provided in 
Figure 1. 

Figure 1: Planning Document Hierarchy

1.2.2 Alberta Land3use Framework 

The Alberta Land2use Framework was approved by the provincial government in 2008 to create a new 
regional land use planning policy framework for Alberta.  The regional planning framework was then 
refined further through the subsequent adoption of the Alberta Land Stewardship Act. The guiding 
strategies for regional plan preparation are as follows: 

• develop new regional plans based on seven new land2use regions;

• create a Land Use Secretariat and establish a Regional Advisory Council for each region;

• use cumulative effects management methods to address the impacts of development;

• develop strategies for conservation and stewardship on public and private lands;

• promote the efficient use of land to reduce the footprint of activity on the landscape;

• establish a system to improve information gathering in order to improve decision2making;

93



Municipal District of Greenview No. 16 
Municipal Development Plan Bylaw No. 15�742 

September 2016           Page 3 

 

• include aboriginal peoples in land use planning. 
 
Greenview is located within the area proposed for the Upper Peace Regional Plan, the preparation of 
which has not yet commenced. If any policies of this MDP are determined to be at variance with the 
Upper Peace Regional Plan, this MDP will be amended as required to ensure consistency with the 
regional plan. 

1.2.3 Greenview 2014 Strategic Directions Plan 

Council’s current Strategic Plan was approved 2013, and is Greenview Council’s guiding document for 
the immediate term. The key goals contained in the Strategic Plan that helped inform the development of 
this MDP are as follows:  
 

Regional Utilities 
2.1 Develop a Greenview Utilities Master Plan that will include long term utility plans for each 

population area served. 
2.2  Develop a municipal corporation jointly owned by Greenview and the Towns of Fox Creek, 

Grande Cache and Valleyview to gain financial stability and operational efficiencies and 
effectiveness in the operation of water and wastewater systems within the region. 

2.3  Undertake an update of the Area Structure Plan for the Grovedale area that includes planning 
of the utility network to serve existing and future development. 

 
Agriculture 
3.1  Support agriculture as our primary long term industry and fund initiatives that will benefit our 

agricultural community. 
 

Enhanced Community Development 
4.1  Develop hamlets and areas of active development in a manner that ensures healthy and 

sustainable communities through the updating and provision of Area Structure Plans.   
4.2 Take a leadership position in Alberta on working with our urban partners to support their 

community goals in providing healthy and sustainable communities. 
4.7 Ensure that services provided by Greenview recognize the needs of the increasing older 

adult population. 
4.8 Continue to support community organizations, fire departments, and volunteers as an 

essential part of providing healthy and sustainable communities. 
4.10 Implement a Greenview Road Master Plan supported by a road rating system, road criteria, 

and pre2designed safety and construction standards, which is regularly updated with current 
traffic counts. 

4.12 Continue to place a high priority on the protection and enhancement of our natural 
environment. 

 
Tourism and Recreation 
5.1 Continued support for increased recreation and leisure opportunities through the 

development and enhancement of community and regional facilities. 
5.4 Develop a Community Facilities Plan, encompassing all communities, on the ongoing support 

of Greenview community halls, recreation, and leisure facilities, the development of new 
hiking trails, outdoor facilities and wilderness access locations, etc. 

1.3 GOALS OF THE PLAN 

1.3.1 It is intended that this MDP achieve the following goals: 
 

(a) To provide a framework for the future growth and development of the Municipal District in a 
sustainable fashion and that is consistent with its strategic priorities; 

94



Municipal District of Greenview No. 16 
Municipal Development Plan Bylaw No. 15�742 

September 2016 Page 4 

(b) Maintain the long term viability of Greenview's agricultural land base; 

(c) Allowing for population growth by increasing densities without negatively impacting on 
agricultural land through measures which: 

(i) conserve agricultural land by limiting the acreage removed for other uses, 

(ii) provide for development and employment opportunities in the rural area, 

(iii) allow for higher densities of residential development when they can be located in nodes or 
in areas of limited agricultural capacity, and 

(iv) provide the opportunity for families to care for the aging or disabled members of the 
community in a home setting; 

(d) Minimize the possibility of conflicts between potentially incompatible land uses; 

(e) Ensure that services and infrastructure are provided to meet the demand created by growth; 

(f) Facilitate inter2municipal and inter2jurisdictional cooperation in matters affecting development in 
the region; and 

(g) Ensure that the natural environment is protected and that significant environmental features are 
preserved. 

1.4 GROWTH STRATEGY 

1.4.1 The growth strategy for Greenview is based upon the desire to promote and accommodate growth 
that will preserve and strengthen the positive attributes of Greenview. 

(a) The future use of land within Greenview is to be consistent with the general policy areas as 
illustrated on Map 2, the Future Land Use Concept. This MDP contains policies respecting each 
type of land use which are presented in subsequent sections of this MDP. 

(b) Greenview shall accommodate growth: 

(i) By supporting agricultural production through the opening of new agricultural lands; 

(ii) Through the development of uses which support and benefit agriculture; 

(iii) By supporting the exploration and responsible extraction of natural resources; 

(iv) By promoting and accommodating developments which contribute to a diversification of 
the area’s economy including tourism; 

(v) By supporting the expansion of the rural population base in appropriate locations; 

(vi) By supporting the improvement of transportation and utility infrastructure; 

(vii) By promoting and supporting the long term viability of its hamlets and other settlements, 
and the Urban Municipalities; and 

(viii) By establishing policies and guidelines to direct the development of non2agricultural uses. 

95



96



!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

Gr
ov
ed
ale
 A
SP

Gr
an
de
 C
ac
he
 ID
P

St
ur
ge
on

La
ke
 A
SP

Fo
x C
ree
k I
DP

Va
lle
yv
iew

ID
P

De
Bo
lt (
se
e M
ap
 3)

Gr
ov
ed
ale
 (s
ee
 M
ap
 3)

Ri
dg
ev
all
ey

(se
e M
ap
 3)

Lit
tle
 Sm
ok
y

(se
e M
ap
 3)

La
nd
ry 
He
igh
ts  
(s e
e M
ap
 3)

Co
-op
era
tiv
es

(s e
e M
ap
 4)

73
6

4
0

4
0

4
3

4
3

4
9

94
7

67
6

66
6

66
566

9

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

4
0

To
wn
 of

Gr
an
de

Ca
ch
e

Sm
ok

y R
ive

r

Jo
ac
him
 (s
ee

Ma
p 4
)

Su
sa
 C
ree
k

(se
e M
ap
 4)

Vic
to
r L
ak
e

Wa
ny
an
die
 Ea
st

(se
e M
ap
 4)

Mu
sk
ee
g S
ee
pe
e

(se
e M
ap
 4)

Wa
ny
an
die
 W
es
t

(se
e M
ap
 4)

Gr
an
de
 C
ac
he
 La
ke

(se
e M
ap
 4)

4
3

4
9

66
9

4
3To
wn
 of

Va
lle
yv
iew

4
3

To
wn
 of

Fo
x C
re
ek

Ios
eg

un
 La

ke
Ra

spb
err

y L
ak

e

Mu
nic
ipa
l D
ist
ric
t o
f G
ree
nv
iew
 N
o. 
16

Mu
nic
ipa
l D
ev
elo
pm
en
t P
lan

Ma
p 2
 – 
La
nd
 U
se
 C
on
ce
pt

A
g

ri
c
u

lt
u

re
 P

o
lic

y
 A

re
a

C
ro

w
n

 L
a

n
d

 P
o

lic
y
 A

re
a

!
C

o
m

m
u
n

it
y

In
te

rm
u

n
ic

ip
a

l 
D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

P
la

n
 (

ID
P

)

A
re

a
 S

tr
u
c
tu

re
 P

la
n

 (
A

S
P

)

T
o

w
n

In
d
ia

n
 R

e
s
e

rv
e

R
a

ilw
a

y

T
w

in
n
e

d
 H

ig
h

w
a
y

T
w

o
-l

a
n

e
 H

ig
h

w
a

y

F
o

re
s
tr

y
 T

ru
n

k
 R

o
a

d

²

97



98



Municipal District of Greenview No. 16 
Municipal Development Plan Bylaw No. 15�742 

September 2016 Page 5 

1.5 DEFINITIONS 

1.5.1 For the purpose of interpreting this MDP, the following definitions shall apply: 

Access Means the provision of legal and/or physical road access to a 
proposed development to the satisfaction of the Municipal District. A 
site has legal access if it abuts a municipal road, undeveloped road 
allowance, or service road, or is subject to a joint access easement 
agreement. Physical access refers to the construction of an 
approach to a developed municipal road or service road. 

Act Means the Municipal Government Act, Chapter M226, RSA 2000. 

Better Agricultural Land Means cultivated or improved land which has a Rural Farmland 
Assessment (RFA) Rating of 28% or higher, or Canada Land 
Inventory (CLI) Class 4 for unimproved land. This rating is subject to 
confirmation by more current assessment ratings conducted by 
Greenview’s Assessment Department, independent soils analysis, 
site inspections or a combination thereof. The definition may exclude 
any land which by reason of physical features, slope, configuration, 
surrounding land use, size, physical severance, or lands that are 
identified for development in an approved Area Structure Plan may 
impair the ability of the land to be economically farmed. 

Concept Plan Means a non2statutory land use plan that is prepared in accordance 
with Greenview’s Area Structure Plan and Concept Plan Policy 
6001. 

Environmentally 
Sensitive Area 

Means an area that is identified by the Province as an 
Environmentally Significant Area, or is generally recognized to 
consist of unique topographical features, sensitive ecological habitat, 
or important wildlife habitat and corridors. 

Fragmented Parcel Means a portion of a parcel of land that is physically severed from 
the balance by a road, railway, water body, watercourse, ravine or 
similar feature that limits the agricultural productivity or viability of the 
severed portion. 

Hazard Land Means land which may be prone to flooding, shoreline erosion or 
slope instability, or other natural hazard that may result in life loss or 
injury, property damage, social and economic disruption or 
environmental degradation. Hazards may include surface and 
subsurface features such as active and abandoned gas/oil wells, 
mines, unstable slopes, areas exhibiting subsidence and other 
natural or man2made features. 

Intensive Livestock 
Operation 

Means an agricultural operation that involves the rearing, 
confinement, and feeding of livestock, but does not meet the 
minimum threshold numbers requiring provincial approval as a 
Confined Feeding Operation under the Agriculture Operations 
Practices Act. 

Multi�Lot Subdivision Means a subdivision that results in the creation of two (2) or more 
parcels for residential, commercial or industrial use. 

Rural Municipality(ies) Means Birch Hills County, the County of Grande Prairie No. 1, Big 

99



Municipal District of Greenview No. 16 
Municipal Development Plan Bylaw No. 15�742 

September 2016 Page 6 

Lakes County, Municipal District of Smoky River No. 130, 
Woodlands County, and Yellowhead County. 

Statutory Plan Means a Municipal Development Plan (“MDP”), Intermunicipal 
Development Plan (“IDP”), or Area Structure Plan (“ASP”) prepared 
and adopted in accordance with the Act. 

Urban Municipality(ies) Means the Towns of Fox Creek, Grande Cache, and Valleyview. 

1.5.2 All other words or expressions contained in this MDP shall have the meanings respectively 
assigned to them in the Act, the Subdivision and Development Regulation, and the Land Use Bylaw 
(“LUB”). 

100



Municipal District of Greenview No. 16 
Municipal Development Plan Bylaw No. 15�742 

September 2016 Page 7 

SECTION 2 NATURAL ENVIRONMENT 

2.1 INTRODUCTION 

An important resource to Greenview is its natural environment. The Eastern Slopes, Waskahigan River 
Natural Area, and Kakwa Falls are examples of the wealth of recreational and environmental resources in 
Greenview. Greenview’s wetlands, riparian areas, lakes, water courses, forests, and ground water 
resources are invaluable and are strong contributors to the quality of life enjoyed by Greenview residents. 
In addition, the protection of ecological systems is necessary to support the long term health of the land, 
flora and fauna.  Responsible stewardship of these ecological features is essential to retain their integrity 
and value. 

2.2 OBJECTIVES 

(a) To protect and preserve sensitive environmental features such as water bodies and their 
shores and banks, as well as other features such as flood plains, steep slopes or special 
habitat features. 

(b) To ensure the patterns of human settlement and activity can take place safely while limiting the 
impact to the natural environment. 

2.3 GENERAL 

Resource Activity 2.3.1 Greenview recognizes forestry, mining, oil and gas exploration, 
tourism, and recreation as acceptable uses within Greenview subject 
to the necessary government permits, which in turn would address 
environmental matters. 

Environmentally 
Sensitive Lands 

2.3.2 Features such as, but not limited to river valleys, lakes, drainage 
areas, wildlife areas, and historic sites may be considered to be 
individually, or in combination thereof to be environmentally sensitive 
recreational areas and/or hazard lands. The actual sensitivity of 
each feature and its development constraints shall be confirmed with 
the applicable government department at the time that development 
or subdivision applications are considered. 

Compatible Uses 2.3.3 The type of development that may be considered compatible within 
or adjacent to areas that are deemed to be environmentally sensitive 
are those that 

(a) Promote the area to remain in its natural state; 

(b) Shall not lead to overuse or deterioration of the feature; 

(c) Will be associated with appropriate environmental impact 
assessments or reviews as may be required by Greenview; 

(d) Provide for the adequate rehabilitation of a site; and 

(e) Provide sufficient setbacks as may be recommended by the 

101



Municipal District of Greenview No. 16 
Municipal Development Plan Bylaw No. 15�742 

September 2016 Page 8 

applicable government department. 

Wetland Assessment 2.3.4 Further to Policy 2.3.3(c) (“Compatible Uses”), a wetland 
assessment, prepared by a qualified professional, shall be prepared 
for any development or subdivision proposal that is deemed to affect 
or potentially affect a wetland in accordance with the Alberta 
Wetland Policy.  

Intensive 
Agricultural Uses 

2.3.5 With the exception of confined feeding operations, the development 
of intensive agricultural uses such as market gardens may be 
permitted within environmentally sensitive areas such as river 
valleys. 

Preparation of Plans 2.3.6 Greenview supports the preparation of ASPs, integrated resource 
management plans, or land reservations depending upon the 
jurisdiction for the management of recreational and/or environmental 
features such as Kakwa Falls, Highway No. 40 corridor, Sturgeon 
Lake2Puskwaskau East Area, Fox Creek2Knight Area, and the 
Grande Cache Area. 

Watershed 
Management 

2.3.7 All Greenview policies shall be consistent with modern watershed 
management policies, processes and science. Greenview shall work 
with landowners, government agencies, neighbouring municipalities 
and other stakeholders to protect and enhance wetlands, riparian 
areas, forests, native range lands, groundwater and surface water 
bodies, in order to minimize negative impacts on watersheds in 
Greenview. 

2.4 HAZARD LANDS 

Development 
Setbacks Required 

2.4.1 Greenview shall require that developers provide development 
setbacks from water bodies, water courses, slopes, and other 
hazard lands to protect against erosion, flooding, loss of fish and 
wildlife habitat, and damage to natural features. Such setbacks shall 
be provided in accordance with the requirements of the LUB. 

Flood�Prone Lands 2.4.2 New development or the expansion of existing development shall not 
be permitted on lands that are contained within the flood plains of 
the Wapiti, Smoky, Little Smoky or Simonette Rivers, or other lands 
known to be flood2prone, unless sufficient flood protection measures 
designed by a professional engineer registered to practice in Alberta 
are provided by the developer. 

Slopes 2.4.3 Permanent development shall not be permitted on slopes exceeding 
15% or on land that is subject to erosion. Development on such 
lands may only be considered after sufficient geo2technical 
investigation has demonstrated that the site in question is suitable 
for development. 

102



Municipal District of Greenview No. 16 
Municipal Development Plan Bylaw No. 15�742 

September 2016 Page 9 

Environmental 
Reserve Dedication 

2.4.4 As a condition of subdivision approval, lands that are subject to flood 
hazard, contain sensitive habitat, or are subject to potential erosion 
due to steep or unstable slopes, shall be dedicated as 
Environmental Reserve (“ER”). Greenview may require that ER be 
dedicated either in parcel or easement form as provided in the Act. 

Determination of 
Environmental 
Reserve 

2.4.5 Further to Policy 2.4.4 (“Environmental Reserve Dedication”), an ER 
setback or easement shall be provided from the top of the bank of a 
river or stream and/or the high water mark of a wetland or lake. The 
specific setback requirement may, at the discretion of Greenview, be 
determined by a qualified professional including geotechnical and 
hydrogeological studies to establish a site specific setback 
requirement.  

Confirmation of 
Environmental 
Reserve 

2.4.6 Where the need for ER requires confirmation, or situations arise 
where the amount of ER proposed to be dedicated exceeds the 
allocations identified in the Act, Greenview shall require that a 
geotechnical report, biophysical assessment, and/or hydrogeological 
study be prepared by a qualified professional to support the 
proposed dedication. 

Conservation 
Easements 

2.4.7 Greenview shall encourage and promote the use of Conservation 
Easements as a voluntary means of protecting environmentally 
sensitive features on private lands that 

(a) Are not subject to subdivision and therefore eligible for 
dedication under Policy 2.4.4 (“Environmental Reserve 
Dedication”); or 

(b) Do not meet the requirements of Policies 2.4.4 (“Environmental 
Reserve Dedication”) or 2.4.5 (“Determination of Environmental 
Reserve”), but have environmental or ecological value to the 
owner. 

2.5 GROUNDWATER EVALUATION AND PROTECTION 

Groundwater 
Evaluation 

2.5.1 To protect the quality and quantity of surface water bodies and 
groundwater, at a minimum, Alberta Environment’s Interim 
Guidelines for Evaluation of Groundwater Supply for 
Unserviced Residential Subdivisions, and any subsequent 
amendments, as well as the groundwater evaluation and licensing 
requirements of the Water Act shall be applied to all applications for 
unserviced subdivisions. 

Protection of Water 2.5.2 Greenview shall not approve development that will negatively affect 
surface water bodies and groundwater quality and quantity. In order 
to ensure the protection of surface water, groundwater and alluvial 
aquifers, the following provisions shall apply: 

(a) Sand and gravel operations shall be required to submit, prior to 
an application being considered for approval, a hydrogeological 

103



Municipal District of Greenview No. 16 
Municipal Development Plan Bylaw No. 15�742 

September 2016 Page 10 

assessment prepared by a qualified engineer to confirm the 
depth of the aquifer and identify mitigative measures that will be 
undertaken to ensure that the integrity of the alluvial aquifer will 
not be compromised by pit activities; 

(b) Industrial development that has the potential to impact surface 
water quality or groundwater quality or supply shall not be 
allowed unless a hydrogeological assessment prepared by a 
qualified engineer demonstrates that surface water bodies and 
groundwater will not be negatively affected. 

Proof of Water 
Supply 

2.5.3 Greenview shall require that developers submit with their subdivision 
and/or development applications proof of water supply if accessing 
groundwater, or identify the proposed method of water servicing, for 
all residential, industrial, and commercial developments.   

2.6 FIRESMART 

Design Principles 2.6.1 Greenview shall encourage developers to recognize FireSmart: 
Protecting Your Community from Wildfire design principles when 
preparing Area Structure Plans and multi2lot subdivision proposals in 
order to mitigate the potential for forest and grassland fire damage. 

Damage Mitigation 2.6.2 Subdivision and development proposals shall be designed so as to 
mitigate the potential for forest and grassland wildfire damage 
through: 

(a) The provision of Municipal Reserve along the outer perimeter of 
the development so that the developed portions may be 
separated from natural areas; 

(b) The provision of a fire guard which will serve as a buffer between 
development and the surrounding natural areas; and, 

(c) The development of roads and trails between developments and 
surrounding forested areas and grasslands which may be used 
in an emergency for fire prevention purposes. 

Multi�Lot Residential 
Development 

2.6.3 Greenview shall encourage developers to adhere to the practices as 
outlined below for multi2lot residential development which may be 
determined to be too remote to be adequately protected by existing 
firefighting services: 

(a) The provision of adequate on2site water supplies for firefighting 
purposes; 

(b) The use of fire resistant building methods; 

(c) The installation of spark arresters on all chimneys; and 

(d) The provision of an emergency access to developments to help 
prevent property damage and the potential for loss of life. 

104



Municipal District of Greenview No. 16 
Municipal Development Plan Bylaw No. 15�742 

September 2016 Page 11 

2.7 RECREATION AND HISTORIC SITES 

Recreation Master 
Plan 

2.7.1 Greenview may prepare a Recreation and Open Space Master Plan, 
which shall be used as the basis for recreation and tourist planning 
in Greenview. The Plan may include, but not be limited to, the 
identification of recreation sites and the identification of all2terrain 
vehicle and snowmobile trail systems. 

Community 
Associations 

2.7.2 Greenview strongly encourages the involvement of community 
associations in the provision, financing and maintenance of 
recreation facilities. 

Private Recreation 
Facilities 

2.7.3 The establishment of privately owned commercial recreation and 
tourism facilities is encouraged. 

Eco� and Agri�
Tourism 

2.7.4 Greenview supports eco2tourism and agri2tourism as a means to 
create employment opportunities and diversify the municipality’s 
economy. 

Passive Recreation 2.7.5 Greenview supports the use of lake shores, river corridors and other 
environmentally sensitive areas for passive recreational purposes. 
All recreational activities occurring in these areas shall be 
undertaken in an environmentally responsible fashion. 

Public Access 2.7.6 Through the subdivision process, public access to shoreline areas 
shall be accommodated through the dedication of Environmental 
and/or Municipal Reserve. 

Historical Resources 2.7.7 In the preservation and promotion of historical resources, Greenview 
may refer proposed development applications that may affect 
historical resources to Alberta Culture for its comments and 
recommendations respecting the preparation of a Historic Resources 
Impact Assessment. 

105



106



Municipal District of Greenview No. 16 
Municipal Development Plan Bylaw No. 15�742 

September 2016 Page 12 

SECTION 3 AGRICULTURE 

3.1 INTRODUCTION 

The preservation and promotion of the agricultural land base are major goals of this MDP.  This involves 
limiting the types of non2agricultural activities allowed on better agricultural land. 

3.2 OBJECTIVES 

(a) To minimize the loss of better agricultural land to non2agricultural uses. 

(b) To encourage development of the agricultural community and promote the rights of farmers 
to continue normal agricultural operations. 

(c) Promote the construction of agriculture operations in a sustainable manner. 

3.3 GENERAL 

Agriculture as 
Priority Use 

3.3.1 On lands shown as “Agriculture Policy Area” on the Future Land Use 
Concept, agricultural uses shall have priority over all other uses 
except as provided for in this MDP. 

Non�Agricultural 
Uses 

3.3.2 The development of non2agricultural uses in the rural area shall not 
negatively impact existing agricultural operations. As new 
development occurs in the rural area, notice to developers 
respecting the presence of agricultural operations shall be made in 
accordance with the provisions of the LUB. 

3.4 BETTER AGRICULTURAL LAND 

Land Use on Better 
Agricultural Land 

3.4.1 The development of non2agricultural uses on better agricultural lands 
will not be permitted, except where Greenview determines that: 

(a) the proposed use has no suitable alternative location; 

(b) the proposed development will utilize a limited amount of 
agricultural land; 

(c) the proposed use will not interfere with or negatively affect 
existing nearby agricultural uses or adjacent residential uses; 

(d) the proposed development represents a logical extension to 
existing land use patterns; or 

(e) the proposed development promotes the efficiency of local 
servicing and transportation networks. 

The types of non2agricultural uses that may be considered 
acceptable on better agricultural lands include: 

107



Municipal District of Greenview No. 16 
Municipal Development Plan Bylaw No. 15�742 

September 2016 Page 13 

(a) Agricultural industry which directly benefit and serve the rural 
community; 

(b) Natural resource extractive industries; 

(c) Temporary storage of oilfield related equipment and pipe; 

(d) Recreational and tourism uses; 

(e) Public uses and public utility systems; and 

(f) Home2based business. 

Subdivision of Better 
Agricultural Land 

3.4.2 Greenview may support the subdivision of better agricultural land 
where the proposed subdivision is for: 

(a) A farmstead separation; 

(b) A first parcel out for residential purposes in accordance with 
Policy 3.4.3; 

(c) A fragmented parcel; 

(d) An agricultural industry; 

(e)  A intensive agircultural parcel in accordance with Policy 3.4.7;

(f)   A natural resource extractive industry; 

(g) A public use or public utility; 

(h) A confined feeding operation or other intensive agricultural use; 

(i) A lot contained within an approved ASP or Concept Plan; or 

(j) Hamlet expansion. 

Vacant First Parcel 
Out 

3.4.3 Pursuant to Policy 3.4.2(b) (“Subdivision of Better Agricultural 
Land”), the subdivision of one vacant parcel out of a previously 
unsubdivided quarter section for a residential use shall only be 
allowed if the following criteria are met to the satisfaction of  
Greenview: 

(a) The proposed subdivision boundary and building site adheres to 
Provincial Regulations regarding setback distances between 
property lines, buildings, water sources and private sewage 
disposal systems;  

(b) Legal and physical access to a developed Municipal District road 
is provided; 

(c) The proposed use of the parcel does not negatively impact 
adjacent agricultural uses, 

108



Municipal District of Greenview No. 16 
Municipal Development Plan Bylaw No. 15�742 

September 2016 Page 14 

(d) The proposed parcel is not located within the required Minimum 
Distance Separation of an established confined feeding 
operation (“CFO”), and will not be located so as to interfere with 
the future expansion of existing CFOs;  

(e) In the sole discretion of Greenview, the parcel is in a location 
that minimizes to the greatest extent  possible disturbance to and 
loss of environmentally significant areas, or other 
environmentally sensitive features such as wetlands, riparian 
vegetation, natural drainage courses and tree stands; and 

(f) Any other considerations as may be determined by Greenview. 

Parcel Location 3.4.4 Where possible, subdivisions identified in 3.4.2 (“Subdivision of 
Better Agricultural Land”) will be encouraged to locate on portions of 
a quarter section that are:  

(a) Physically severed or are of lower agricultural capability; and/or 

(b) Adjacent to or near quarter section boundaries to minimize the 
fragmentation of agricultural land and without constraining or 
otherwise impacting agricultural operations on the quarter 
section. 

Fragmented Parcels 3.4.5 The subdivision of a fragmented parcel may be approved if: 

(a) The proposed parcel(s) can be adequately serviced; 

(b) It does not conflict with adjacent uses; 

(c) A suitable building site is present; and 

(d) There is legal and physical access to the proposed parcel. 

Consolidation of 
Fragmented Parcels 

3.4.6 Where possible, the consolidation of fragmented agricultural parcels 
with adjacent lands should be encouraged. 

Intensive Agricultural 
Parcel

3.4.7 Greenview may allow the subdivision of an intensive agricultural parcel if:

(a) The use proposed for the parcel is an intensive agricultural 
operation and represents a more intensive use of the land than 
typical extensive agricultural uses; 

(b) The applicant demonstrates to the satisfaction of Greenview that 
the proposed operation will result in the lands being used 
intensively for commercial agricultural pursuits; and  

(c) The applicant demonstrates to the satisfaction of Greenview that 
the proposed agricultural operation is viable and the amount of 
land required is appropriate to the character of the operation. 

109



Municipal District of Greenview No. 16 
Municipal Development Plan Bylaw No. 15�742 

September 2016 Page 15 

Parcel Size 
Requirements 

3.4.8 (a) The size of a farmstead separation shall be at the discretion of 
Greenview based on the location of the existing buildings, 
fences, shelter belts and required setback distances for the 
existing private sewage system. 

(b) The size of a subdivided lot approved under Policy 3.4.3 
(“Vacant First Parcel Out”) shall be in accordance with LUB 
requirements. 

(c) The size of a Fragmented Parcel approved under Policy 3.4.5 
(“Fragmented Parcels”) shall be determined by the size of the 
fragment itself which must contain the entire fragmented portion 
of the quarter section. 

(d ) The size of a parcel approved under Policy 3.4.7 (“Intensive 
Agricultural Parcel”) shall not exceed 12.1 ha (30 ac). The 
resubdivision of an intensive agricutlural parcel into smaller 
lots for non2agricultural purposes shall not be supported. 

3.5 OTHER AGRICULTURAL LANDS 

Subdivision of 
Agricultural Land 

3.5.1 On those lands that are not defined as better agricultural lands, or 
that are considered exceptions by Greenview to the definition of 
better agricultural land by virtue of slope, configuration, surrounding 
land use or size, Greenview may allow the subdivision and/or 
development of non2agricultural uses. 

Non�Agricultural 
Uses 

3.5.2 Proposals for non2agricultural uses may be supported depending 
upon the merits of the proposal as determined under Section 10.3 
(“Subdivision and Development Requirements”), and its effect on the 
farming area. 

3.6 CONFINED FEEDING OPERATIONS 

Support for Confined 
Feeding Operations 

3.6.1 Applications to the Natural Resources Conservation Board (NRCB) 
for the establishment or expansion of CFOs shall not be supported 
by Greenview unless they are compatible with adjacent land uses 
and do not generate adverse health or environmental effects. 

Establishment and 
Expansion of CFOs 

3.6.2 Notwithstanding the requirements of the Agricultural Operation 
Practices Act, the expansion or establishment of CFOs will not be 
supported by Greenview: 

(a) Unless the proposed CFO conforms to the required Minimum 
Distance Separation determined by the NRCB in accordance 
with the Agricultural Operations and Practices Act; or 

(b)  If the proposed CFO is proposed in an area in which intensive 
agriculture is precluded by the provisions of an approved ASP, 
other Statutory Plan, or Concept Plan. 

110



Municipal District of Greenview No. 16 
Municipal Development Plan Bylaw No. 15�742 

September 2016 Page 16 

Contamination of 
Runoff 

3.6.3 CFOs should not be established or expanded where there is any risk 
that runoff will contaminate ground or surface water supplies.  

Protection of 
Existing CFOs 

3.6.4 Greenview shall protect existing CFOs by refusing development 
permits for new residences proposed to be located within the 
Minimum Distance Separation of these operations as defined by 
Agricultural Operations and Practices Act. 

Intensive Livestock 
Operations 

3.6.5 (a)  Greenview shall approve intensive livestock operations that 
meet the requirements of the LUB. 

(b)  Policy 3.6.3 (“Contamination of Runoff”) shall apply in the 
consideration of an application for an intensive livestock 
operation. 

111



112



Municipal District of Greenview No. 16 
Municipal Development Plan Bylaw No. 15�742 

September 2016 Page 17 

SECTION 4 COUNTRY RESIDENTIAL 

4.1 INTRODUCTION 

Multi2lot country residential subdivisions are an important component of Greenview’s residential land use 
pattern. Due to the proximity of employment opportunities in Grande Prairie, Valleyview and Fox Creek, it 
is anticipated that country residential demand within commuting distance of these centres will continue to 
grow, or in the case of Fox Creek, present future country residential development opportunities. 

4.2 OBJECTIVES 

(a) To ensure that multi2lot country residential developments are properly serviced and situated 
in appropriate locations. 

(b) To meet the need and demand for properly serviced country residential lots throughout 
Greenview. 

(c) To ensure that country residential development does not negatively impact surrounding land 
uses or local infrastructure. 

4.3 POLICIES 

Better Agricultural 
Land 

4.3.1 Except where exempted under Policy 3.4.3 (“Vacant First Parcel 
Out”) country residential subdivision shall not occur on Better 
Agricultural Land. 

Parcel Size 4.3.2 Proposed country residential parcels shall be in accordance with the 
requirements of the LUB. Country residential parcels of a size in 
excess of that permitted under the LUB shall only be considered if, in 
the opinion of Greenview the additional lands are warranted by site2
specific topographic or geographic constraints, or the location of 
existing buildings, shelterbelts and other improvements. 

Proximity to 
Intensive Agriculture 

4.3.3 Proposals for country residential subdivisions shall not be supported 
in proximity to existing CFOs and other intensive agricultural uses. 

Cluster Development 4.3.4 In order to protect environmentally sensitive areas and to preserve 
agricultural land for agricultural use, Greenview shall encourage 
applicants for subdivision to incorporate cluster design as a means 
of minimizing potential impacts and promoting efficiency of 
development. 

Restrictions on 
Location 

4.3.5 Greenview shall direct the development of multi2lot country 
residential subdivisions away from: 

(a) Urban fringe areas except where allowed in an IDP; 

(b) Waste transfer stations and active, abandoned or un2reclaimed 

113



Municipal District of Greenview No. 16 
Municipal Development Plan Bylaw No. 15�742 

September 2016 Page 18 

sanitary landfills; 

(c) Environmentally sensitive lands; 

(d) Existing confined feeding operations; 

(e) Highways, unless accommodated in an approved ASP; 

(f) Existing sand and gravel extraction sites;  

(e) Sour gas facilities or other potentially hazardous industrial 
operations; and 

(f) Gun ranges. 

Evaluation of 
Residential 
Subdivision  
Proposals 

4.3.6 Multi2lot country residential subdivisions shall only be supported if 
the following conditions are met: 

(a) The proposal complies with Policy 4.3.1 (“Better Agricultural 
Land”); 

(b) The proposed subdivision is contiguous to other country 
residential development to encourage cluster development 
unless it cannot be supported due to environmental constraints; 

(c) The land has a demonstrated ability to accommodate on2site 
water services, unless the proposed subdivision is to be served 
by a municipal water supply. For any proposal that proposes to 
utilize wells or groundwater2fed dugouts for water supply, the 
applicant shall submit to Greenview a hydrogeological 
assessment prepared by a qualified professional engineer that 
determines the availability of an onsite water supply that does 
not negatively impact neighbouring licensed wells and is 
adequate for domestic purposes in accordance with guidelines 
from Alberta Environment and Parks (“AEP”); 

(d) The land has a demonstrated ability to accommodate on2site 
sewer services, unless the proposed subdivision is to be served 
by a municipal sewer system. For any proposal that proposes to 
utilize on2site sewage disposal systems, the applicant shall 
submit to Greenview soils tests prepared by a qualified 
professional engineer that demonstrates the presence of suitable 
soil conditions in accordance with the requirements of Alberta 
Municipal Affairs;  

(e) The proposal does not conflict with existing surrounding 
agricultural uses; 

(f) The subject lots contain a suitable building site; 

(g) Significant recreational or environmental areas are not be 
negatively impacted; 

(h) The site has legal and physical access to the satisfaction of 
Greenview; and 

114



Municipal District of Greenview No. 16 
Municipal Development Plan Bylaw No. 15�742 

September 2016 Page 19 

(i) The proposed development does not unduly hinder the future 
extraction of known natural resources. 

Resubdivision of 
Lots 

4.3.7 The resubdivision of a country residential parcel will not be allowed 
unless the applicant can demonstrate to Greenview that the proposal 
will meet the criteria under Policy 4.3.5 (“Evaluation of Development 
Proposals”). 

115



116



Municipal District of Greenview No. 16 
Municipal Development Plan Bylaw No. 15�742 

September 2016 Page 20 

SECTION 5 HAMLETS AND SETTLEMENTS 

5.1 INTRODUCTION 

Hamlets play an important role in Greenview as they provide services, minor commercial uses, schools 
and recreation activities to rural residents. Although they contain only a small portion of Greenview’s 
population, they are the focus for much of the extensively developed farming areas. In many cases 
hamlets also serve as retirement centres for the aging farming population of the area. As such, hamlets 
need to be well planned and serviced to meet the needs of the local population. In addition, there are 
several settlements in Greenview, namely Nose Creek, Aspen Grove and the Grande Cache Co2ops that 
are home to native communities. 

5.2 OBJECTIVES 

(a) To support and strengthen the role of hamlets and other settlements as the primary locations 
for community services and facilities. 

(b) To allow for the continued, orderly growth of hamlets in Greenview. 

5.3 POLICIES 

Designated Hamlets 5.3.1 Grovedale, Landry Heights, Ridgevalley, Little Smoky and DeBolt 
are designated as hamlets as shown on Map 2, the Future Land Use 
Concept, and the boundaries and existing land uses for the subject 
hamlets are noted on Map 3, Future Land Use Concept 2 Hamlets.  
The locations of all other settlements are also illustrated on Maps 2 
and 4 (Future Land Use Concept – Grande Cache Area). 

Hamlet Development 5.3.2 Hamlet development may occur as infilling of vacant sites, 
rehabilitation of deteriorating buildings, relocation and 
redevelopment of inappropriate uses, or a hamlet expansion.  Each 
of the above hamlet growth options will be considered on its own 
merits. 

Land Uses 5.3.3 Greenview shall encourage commercial, industrial and institutional 
uses that intend to serve the rural area to locate in or in proximity to 
hamlets where possible. 

Preferred 
Development 

5.3.4 Within hamlets the following types of development shall be 
encouraged by Greenview: 

(a) Residential uses, including single and multi2family dwellings and 
manufactured homes; 

(b) Convenience commercial uses; 

(c) Institutional uses such as churches, seniors housing, residential 
care facilities, community halls, and schools; 

117



118



Mu
nic
ipa
l D
ist
ric
t o
f G
ree
nv
iew
 N
o. 
16

Mu
nic
ipa
l D
ev
elo
pm
en
t P
lan

Ma
p 3
 – 
La
nd
 U
se
 C
on
ce
pt 
(H
am
let
s)

H
a

m
le

t 
B

o
u
n

d
a

ry

R
e

s
id

e
n
ti
a
l

C
o

m
m

e
rc

ia
l

In
d

u
s
tr

ia
l

P
u

b
lic

 U
s
e

*

A
g

ri
c
u

lt
u

re
²

De
Bo
lt

Ri
dg
ev
all
ey

Lit
tle
 Sm
ok
y

Gr
ov
ed
ale

La
nd
ry 
He
igh
ts

*"
Pu

bli
c U

se
" in

clu
de

s i
ns

titu
tio

na
l, u

tili
ty,

 pa
rk 

an
d o

pe
n s

pa
ce

 la
nd

 us
es

.

119



120



Su
sa
 C
ree
k

Vic
tor
 La
ke

Mu
sk
ee
g-S
ee
pe
e

Wa
ny
an
die
 Fl
ats
 W
es
t

Jo
ac
him

Wa
ny
an
die
 Fl
ats
 Ea
st

Gr
an
de
 C
ac
he
 La
ke

4
0

4
0

4
0

G
ra
nd
e 
C
ac
he
 I
nt
er
m
un
ic
ip
al
 D
ev
el
op
m
en
t 
Pl
an

Mu
nic
ipa
l D
ist
ric
t o
f G
ree
nv
iew
 N
o. 
16

Mu
nic
ipa
l D
ev
elo
pm
en
t P
lan

Ma
p 4
 – 
La
nd
 U
se
 C
on
ce
pt

(G
ran
de
 C
ac
he
 A
rea
)

C
ro

w
n

 L
a

n
d
 P

o
lic

y
 A

re
a

In
te

rm
u
n

ic
ip

a
l 
D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

P
la

n

T
o
w

n
 o

f 
G

ra
n
d
e

 C
a
c
h
e

C
o
-o

p
e

ra
ti
v
e

R
a
ilw

a
y

H
ig

h
w

a
y
 (

1
-2

1
6

 S
e
ri

e
s
)

F
o
re

s
tr

y
 T

ru
n
k
 R

o
a
d

O
th

e
r 

R
o
a
d
s

²

121



122



Municipal District of Greenview No. 16 
Municipal Development Plan Bylaw No. 15�742 

September 2016 Page 21 

(d) Industrial uses developed in accordance with Policy 5.3.6 
(“Industrial Development”); and 

(e) Recreational uses. 

Buffers 5.3.5 In order to ensure that future hamlet development is compatible with 
existing uses, Greenview shall ensure that adequate distance 
separations or landscaped buffers and fencing are provided between 
residential and non2residential uses. 

Industrial 
Development 

5.3.6 The types of industrial uses permitted in or in close proximity to 
hamlets shall be limited to light industrial development and small 
scale industries which are compatible with residential development. 

Lot Sizes 5.3.7 Residential lot sizes in hamlets shall be urban in nature and be 
serviced with municipal water and sewer services where available. 

Hamlet Plans 5.3.8 Greenview may prepare new Area Redevelopment Plans or ASPs, 
or review existing Plans as required, for its hamlets. 

Development in 
Proximity to Hamlets 

5.3.9 In order to help maintain the long term sustainability of its hamlets, 
Greenview may allow country residential subdivisions and industrial 
and commercial uses that are compatible with residential 
development to be located adjacent to these communities.   

Aboriginal 
Communities 

5.3.10 Greenview supports the continuing development of the Grande 
Cache co2operatives as indicated in Map 4 (Future Land Use 
Concept – Grande Cache Area), provided such development does 
not negatively impact surrounding uses. 

123



124



Municipal District of Greenview No. 16 
Municipal Development Plan Bylaw No. 15�742 

September 2016 Page 22 

SECTION 6 INDUSTRY AND COMMERCE 

6.1 INTRODUCTION 

Industrial and commercial development in Greenview ranges in scope from major industries to home2
based businesses. Local industrial development has grown and diversified to serve several resource 
sectors, including agriculture, forestry, mining, and oil and gas. The majority of this activity, including 
recreation and tourism, is based on provincial Crown Lands. 

Commercial development in Greenview is more limited, with some located adjacent to primary highways, 
as well as in hamlets. Home2based businesses, of both an industrial and commercial nature, are 
commonplace throughout Greenview. 

6.2 OBJECTIVES 

(a) To promote and accommodate the development of industrial and commercial uses at 
appropriate locations. 

(b) To accommodate the growth and development of home2based business. 

6.3 INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT 

Industrial Uses 
Supported 

6.3.1 The types of industry which may be supported in Greenview include 
those that: 

(a) Cater to the needs of agriculture, forestry, or natural resource 
extraction; 

(b) Have comparatively large land requirements; 

(c) Are not suited to an urban area; 

(d) Do not conflict with adjacent land uses in terms of appearance, 
emissions, noise, or traffic generation, unless suitable buffers are 
provided; 

(e) Are located on sites that are suitable for the proposed 
development in terms of soil stability, groundwater level, and 
drainage; and 

(f)  Have minimal servicing requirements. 

Location of 
Development 

6.3.2 (a)  With the exception of farm2based industries or major home 
occupations, industrial development proposals should wherever 
possible locate in an industrial park setting, or in proximity to 
other industrial uses where feasible to minimize impacts on 
potentially incompatible uses such as agricultural operations and 
country residential development. 

(b) Greenview may permit the establishment of industrial uses in 
agricultural areas if the proposed development: 

125



Municipal District of Greenview No. 16 
Municipal Development Plan Bylaw No. 15�742 

September 2016 Page 23 

(i) is a small scale industrial pursuit as defined in the LUB; or 
(ii) is associated with an existing or planned agricultural 

operation; or 
(iii) is not located on Better Agricultural Land unless the 

development is dependent on a specific site for its 
operations; 

(iv) is compatible with existing or planned land uses on 
adjacent lands; 

(v) does not impact a wetland or other environmentally 
sensitive feature; 

(vi) is located on a high grade road and does not negatively 
impact the integrity of Greenview’s road network; 

(vii) does not negatively impact the quantity of flow and quality 
of water to adjacent lands; and 

(viii) is located on a site on which private water and sewer 
services can be provided in accordance with provincial 
standards and guidelines.  

Evaluation of 
Industrial 
Development 
Proposals 

6.3.3 All industrial development proposals will be evaluated according to 
the following: 

(a) Potential impact on quality and quantity of water supplies and 
water courses and conformity with guidelines, policies and 
conditions as required by  the applicable provincial departments 
or agencies; 

(b) Proximity to residential, recreational, and public uses, and 
environmentally sensitive areas; 

(c) The proposal does not interfere with agricultural operations; 

(d) Impacts on the local road network; 

(e) Provision for stormwater management and control of surface 
runoff; 

(f) Sufficiency of on2site water storage for fire protection purposes in 
accordance with National Fire Protection Association guidelines 
(NFPA 1142 or successor documents) and Alberta Safety Code 
requirements; and 

(g)  Conformity with relevant Statutory Plans and the LUB. 

Oil and Gas Facilities 6.3.4 When reviewing subdivision and/or development applications, 
Greenview shall apply setback regulations and guidelines provided 
by the Alberta Energy Regulator to all applications in close proximity 
to sour gas and other oil and gas facilities, including pipelines. 

Dangerous Goods 6.3.5 Greenview may support the storage and processing of dangerous 
goods subject to the following: 

(a) The proposed location is isolated in nature and located away 
from residential, institutional or recreational development; 

126



Municipal District of Greenview No. 16 
Municipal Development Plan Bylaw No. 15�742 

September 2016 Page 24 

(b) Public access to the site is restricted; 

(c) That the facility receives approval from the applicable licensing 
agency; and 

(d) Preparation of an emergency response plan. 

6.4 COMMERCIAL DEVELOPMENT 

Commercial 
Development 
Supported 

6.4.1 Greenview supports the development of highway commercial and 
local commercial developments at appropriate locations. 

Location of 
Development 

6.4.2 The location of local commercial uses should be limited to existing 
commercial areas in hamlets and rural settlements, or in close 
proximity to existing highway commercial sites. 

Better Agricultural 
Land 

6.4.3 With the exception of homed2based businesses, commercial 
development shall not be permitted to locate on better agricultural 
land, unless no suitable alternative location is available. 

Evaluation of 
Commercial 
Development 
Proposals  

6.4.4 Highway commercial development proposals will be evaluated 
according to the following: 

(a) Proximity to urban centres; 

(b) The type of commercial use proposed; 

(c) Suitability of the site in terms of soil stability, groundwater level, 
and drainage; 

(d) Provisions for access and impacts on the transportation network; 
and 

(f) Conformity with relevant Statutory Plans and the LUB. 

Hamlet Commercial 6.4.5 All commercial development proposals in hamlets will be evaluated 
according to the following: 

(a) Proposed location as such developments should be situated on 
the main street, and not dispersed throughout residential areas; 

(b) Compatibility with surrounding land uses; 

(c) Suitability of access and impacts on the local road network; 

(d) Adequate provision for parking; and 

(e) Provision for landscaping, fencing and buffering. 

127



Municipal District of Greenview No. 16 
Municipal Development Plan Bylaw No. 15�742 

September 2016 Page 25 

6.5 HOME3BASED BUSINESS 

Home�Based 
Business Supported 

6.5.1 Greenview supports and encourages the continued development of 
home2based businesses provided that: 

(a) The scale of the proposed business is appropriate for the 
character of the neighbourhood; 

(b) It is compatible with the uses in the area where it is located; 

(c) There is, in the opinion of Greenview, negligible impact on the 
environment, water, municipal infrastructure or neighbouring 
properties; 

(d) It is clearly secondary in nature to the residential or agricultural 
use of the property; and 

(e) In the case of small scale industrial pursuits as defined in the 
LUB and other similar industrial uses, that the proposed 
development site is rezoned to the applicable land use district. 

Scale of Use 6.5.2 The establishment of home2based businesses shall only be 
supported if they do not negatively impact adjacent land uses. If 
Greenview determines that, in its opinion a home2based business 
has exceeded the capacity of the site and/or is determined to have a 
detrimental impact on the neighbourhood or adjacent properties, 
measures shall be undertaken to direct the home business use to 
relocate on appropriately zoned commercial or industrial lands.  

Bed and Breakfast 6.5.3 Bed and breakfast establishments and guest ranches shall be 
encouraged by allowing such uses in accordance with the LUB. 

6.6 RESOURCE EXTRACTION ON PRIVATE LANDS 

Location Criteria 6.6.1 Resource extraction activities that are proposed to be located on 
private lands and subject to municipal approval shall not be allowed: 

(a) In close proximity to hamlets and Urban Municipalities; and 

(b) In areas which are known to possess unique historical and/or 
environmental features that would be disturbed or destroyed by 
resource extraction, or in areas that are deemed to be 
environmentally sensitive. 

In addition, support for resource extraction operations shall be 
contingent on the mitigation or minimization of the cumulative 
adverse impacts upon adjacent land uses, soil, water, and 
agricultural operations. 

Proximity to New 
Development 

6.6.2 New subdivision and development, particularly residential, may be 
directed away from active and potential nonrenewable surface 

128



Municipal District of Greenview No. 16 
Municipal Development Plan Bylaw No. 15�742 

September 2016 Page 26 

resource extraction areas to minimize the potential for conflict 
between incompatible land uses. 

Permitting and 
Licensing 

6.6.3 The permitting and licensing process for sand and gravel operations 
will be coordinated between Greenview and AEP. 

Sand and Gravel 
Operations 

6.6.4 The development of sand and gravel extraction operations is subject 
to reclamation in accordance with the Code of Practice for Pits as 
set out by AEP. 

129



130



Municipal District of Greenview No. 16 
Municipal Development Plan Bylaw No. 15�742 

September 2016           Page 27 

 

SECTION 7 INTERMUNICIPAL AND INTERGOVERNMENTAL RELATIONS 

7.1 INTRODUCTION 

7.1.1 The facilitation and implementation of inter2municipal planning and cooperation is a significant 
thrust of the Act. Although Greenview has entered into IDPs with the Towns of Valleyview, Fox 
Creek and Grande Cache, it is important that the spirit and intent of these documents be 
incorporated into the MDP. In addition, Greenview believes that strong, reciprocal inter2municipal 
relationships are critical to the long term sustainability of all of the communities, and that the MDP 
needs to reflect this. It is also necessary for Greenview to recognize its relationships with its rural 
neighbours. 

 
7.1.2 Greenview also recognizes that the planning requirements of the Alberta Land2use Framework 

and Alberta Land Stewardship Act need to be complied with through participation in the 
development of the Upper Peace Regional Plan. 

7.2 OBJECTIVES 

(a) To support and implement the IDPs which are in place with its Urban Municipalities. 
 

(b) To foster a cooperative approach to inter2municipal community development, and to continue 
to support administrative and funding agreements with the Urban Municipalities. 

 
(c) To support and encourage intergovernmental cooperation and partnership with the Urban 

and Rural Municipalities and other levels of government regarding regional development 
issues. 

 
(d) To establish protocols for planning referrals with the Rural Municipalities. 
 
(e) To cooperate with the Province in future regional planning initiatives. 

7.3 POLICIES 

Intermunicipal 
Development Plans 
 

7.3.1 Greenview shall continue to support its IDPs with the Urban 
Municipalities. Greenview agrees to participate in the monitoring and 
review of these Plans to ensure they remain current and reflect the 
needs of the respective municipalities and area residents. 
 

   
IDP Compliance 
 

7.3.2 Greenview shall not approve any development proposal in 
contravention of an IDP. If such a development is proposed and 
deemed to have merit, then an amendment to the IDP may be 
pursued in accordance with the provisions of the IDP. 
 

   
Rural Fringe 
 

7.3.3 Greenview shall establish a 3.2 km (2 mile) fringe zone adjacent to 
its boundaries with neighbouring Rural Municipalities. In this zone, 
Greenview shall circulate the following to the affected municipality 
for review and comment:  
 
(a) Subdivision applications, with the exception of applications for 

farmstead separations, boundary adjustments and public uses; 

131



Municipal District of Greenview No. 16 
Municipal Development Plan Bylaw No. 15�742 

September 2016           Page 28 

 

 
(b) Development permit applications for discretionary uses under the 

LUB; 
 
(c) Transportation and utility master plans; and 
 
(d) Statutory Plan and LUB amendments. 
 

   
Annexation 
 

7.3.4 Greenview will support the annexation of lands into neighbouring 
Urban Municipalities provided that the following criteria are met: 

 
(a) The proposal conforms to the relevant IDP; 
 
(b) The lands in question represent a logical extension to existing 

urban land use patterns and servicing networks, and are 
identified as suitable areas for long term expansion in the MDP 
of the Urban Municipality or an approved area structure plan; 
and 

 
(c) There is agreement to the proposed annexation from a majority 

of the affected landowners. 
 

   
Inter�Municipal 
Agreements 
 

7.3.5 Greenview supports the continuing use of inter2municipal 
agreements as means of delivering services in a co2operative 
manner and maximizing available resources. 
 

   
Joint Development 
Areas 
 

7.3.6 Greenview shall explore, with the Urban Municipalities, the 
establishment of joint development areas to assist with the funding 
of community facilities and programs in accordance with the Act.  
 

   
Upper Peace 
Regional Plan 
 

7.3.7 Greenview shall cooperate with the Province and other 
municipalities in the region in the preparation of the Upper Peace 
Regional Plan.  

 
  

132



Municipal District of Greenview No. 16 
Municipal Development Plan Bylaw No. 15�742 

September 2016           Page 29 

 

SECTION 8  CROWN LAND 

8.1 INTRODUCTION 

The use, disposition and protection of provincially controlled Crown lands is a significant issue in 
Greenview, as these areas constitute approximately 85 percent of its land base.  These lands are also 
significant as they accommodate a diversity of major economic activities, including oil and gas, forestry, 
sand and gravel extraction, and agriculture. They also contain Greenview’s major environmental features 
including rivers and lake shores. As a result, the development of Crown lands is an important land use 
issue, but Greenview’s role is limited due to Provincial control of these lands. 

8.2 OBJECTIVE 

(a) To cooperate with provincial government departments in the planning and development 
processes affecting Crown lands. 

8.3 POLICIES 

Land Uses on Crown 
Land 
 

8.3.1 Lands within the Crown Land Policy Area are primarily reserved for 
resource management, grazing, recreation, environmental 
protection, recreation and tourism, and associated activities. 
 

   
Review of 
Development 
Proposals 
 

8.3.2 When reviewing proposals for development on Crown land, 
consideration shall be given to the following: 
 
(a) Adjacent land uses; 
 
(b) Provision of water, sewer, and emergency and community 

services; 
 
(c) Access; and 
 
(d) Environmental impacts. 
 

   
New Agricultural 
Lands 
 

8.3.3 Greenview shall consider the following factors when reviewing and 
commenting on proposals to open up new agricultural lands: 
 
(a) The impact on the existing road system and the cost of 

constructing roads, if any, into the new areas; and 
 
(b) The potential loss of alternative resource development, 

recreational opportunities, or environmentally sensitive lands. 
 

   
Involvement in 
Approval Processes 
 

8.3.4 As a means of ensuring that the interests of Greenview are 
recognized and reflected in the development of Crown lands, the 
following measures are supported and encouraged by Greenview: 
 
(a) Participation in the province’s Integrated Resource Plan process; 

and 

133



Municipal District of Greenview No. 16 
Municipal Development Plan Bylaw No. 15�742 

September 2016           Page 30 

 

 
(b) Involvement and cooperation in provincial approval processes for 

proposed leases and other dispositions, serving as a means for 
conveying the concerns of residents to the appropriate provincial 
agencies, and active participation in the review processes 
utilized by the Alberta Energy Regulator and the Natural 
Resources Conservation Board. 

 
 
 
  

134



Municipal District of Greenview No. 16 
Municipal Development Plan Bylaw No. 15�742 

September 2016 Page 31 

SECTION 9 TRANSPORTATION AND SERVICING 

9.1 INTRODUCTION 

The residents of Greenview are served by an extensive network of highways and local roads, and 
maintaining the integrity, safety and quality of the road network is a high priority. With the exception of the 
provincial highway system, the road network is the responsibility of Greenview. As a result of increased 
residential and industrial development activity in the rural area, clearly defined transportation policies are 
required. In addition, policies respecting other forms of infrastructure (water, sewer, waste disposal) are 
required to ensure that all new developments are adequately serviced and the needs of residents are 
met. 

Map 5 illustrates Greenview’s overall transportation network. 

9.2 OBJECTIVES 

(a) To ensure that Greenview maintains a safe and efficient transportation network. 

(b) To ensure that all development is serviced to the satisfaction of Greenview. 

9.3 TRANSPORTATION 

Capital Plan 9.3.1 Greenview shall regularly review and update its 102Year Capital Plan 
as a means of budgeting and prioritizing future road construction and 
maintenance requirements. 

Road Access 9.3.2 All subdivision and development proposals shall have access to 
developed roads. The construction of roads within a proposed 
subdivision and approaches to individual developments are the sole 
responsibility of the developer. In addition, all road improvements 
that are required as a result of proposed subdivision or development 
shall be constructed in accordance with Greenview's standards. 

Alberta 
Transportation 
Requirements 

9.3.3 All development proposals located in proximity to a highway shall 
meet the requirements of Alberta Transportation.  Greenview shall 
refer all subdivision, development permit, and LUB amendment 
applications located within 0.8 km (0.5 mi) of a highway to Alberta 
Transportation for review and advice prior to making a decision. 

Proximity to 
Highways 

9.3.4 Developments that are expected to generate relatively large traffic 
volumes will be encouraged to locate near highways in accordance 
with Alberta Transportation requirements. 

135



136



Ĵ

Ĵ

Ĵ

!(

!(

!(
!(

!(

Gr
an
de
 C
ac
he

Fo
x C
re
ek

Va
lle
yv
iew

DeB
olt

Gr
ov
ed
ale

Rid
gev
alle
y

Lit
tle
 Sm
ok
y

La
nd
ry 
He
igh
ts

73
6

4
0

4
0

4
3

4
3

4
9

94
7

67
6

66
6

66
566

9
66

5

Mu
nic
ipa
l D
ist
ric
t o
f G
ree
nv
iew
 N
o. 
16

Mu
nic
ipa
l D
ev
elo
pm
en
t P
lan

Ma
p 5
 – 
Tra
ns
po
rta
tio
n N
etw
or
k

Ĵ
M

u
n
ic

ip
a

l A
ir
p

o
rt

R
a

ilw
a

y

T
w

in
n
e

d
 H

ig
h

w
a
y

T
w

o
-l

a
n

e
 H

ig
h

w
a

y

F
o

re
s
tr

y
 T

ru
n

k
 R

o
a

d

P
a

v
e

d
 R

o
a

d

U
n

p
a

v
e

d
 R

o
a

d

!(
H

a
m

le
t

T
o

w
n

In
d
ia

n
 R

e
s
e

rv
e

²

²

137



138



Municipal District of Greenview No. 16 
Municipal Development Plan Bylaw No. 15�742 

September 2016 Page 32 

Traffic Impact 
Assessments 

9.3.5 Applicants for major development proposals and multi2lot subdivision 
applications may be required to prepare traffic impact assessments 
(“TIA”) as a means of determining road access and roadway 
improvement and upgrading requirements. If required, TIAs shall be 
submitted prior to subdivision or development permit approval. 

Joint Infrastructure 
Planning 

9.3.6 Greenview shall collaborate with other area municipalities to 
establish processes for joint planning of future road and other 
infrastructure improvements when required. 

Road Widening 9.3.7 Road widening for municipal roads shall be dedicated at the time of 
subdivision in accordance with Greenview's operational 
requirements and engineering standards. Road widening shall be 
provided by caveat or plan of survey at the discretion of Greenview 
along the frontage of both the subdivision and the balance of the 
quarter section. 

Road Use 
Agreements 

9.3.8 Road Use Agreements will be required with industry at the discretion 
of Greenview to address haul routes, maintenance and/or upgrading 
if necessary, dust control, and any other matters relative to the road 
use. 

9.4 SERVICING

Private Water and 
Sewer Services 

9.4.1 With the exception of development located within the serviced area 
of a hamlet or in proximity to municipal or regional water or sewer 
lines pursuant to Policy 9.4.6 (“Connection to Municipal Systems”), 
all developments in Greenview are required to provide private water 
and sewer services in accordance with provincial standards. 

On�Site Sewage 
Systems 

9.4.2 As part of the development permit approval process, Greenview 
shall require that developers submit a site plan for any proposed
sewage disposal system. Greenview may require that soil 
percolation tests be undertaken by the developer to determine that 
the soils are suitable to accommodate on2site sewage disposal 
systems. 

Communal Sewage 
Systems 

9.4.3 Greenview may allow developments to be serviced with central 
(communal) sewage collection, provided that such systems are 
constructed and maintained by the developer in accordance with 
provincial standards. 

Proof of Water 
Supply 

9.4.4 Greenview shall, for all industrial, highway commercial, and multiple 
parcel country residential developments, require that the developer 
demonstrate that a sufficient and suitable groundwater supply is 
available to service the proposal. 

139



Municipal District of Greenview No. 16 
Municipal Development Plan Bylaw No. 15�742 

September 2016 Page 33 

Utility Master Plan 9.4.5 Greenview shall prepare a Utility Master Plan to guide future 
investment in water and sanitary sewer infrastructure to 
accommodate future growth and to protect public health and 
the environment. 

Connection to 
Municipal Systems 

9.4.6 (a)  Greenview shall require developers to connect to municipal or 
regional water distribution and sewage collection systems where: 
(i) The services abut the lands that are the subject of the 

development; or 
(ii) Connection is required in accordance with an approved Area 

Structure Plan; or 
(iii)  The proposed development is located within a hamlet where 

municipal services are present; and

Solid Waste 9.4.7 Greenview shall, in cooperation with other local authorities, continue 
to establish and encourage the use of solid waste disposal sites and 
transfer stations.  

(b)  Notwithstanding (a), connection to municipal water or sewer
      systems will not be required if the systems are determined by
      Greenview to not have the capacity available to accommodate
      the development.

140



Municipal District of Greenview No. 16 
Municipal Development Plan Bylaw No. 15�742 

September 2016           Page 34 

 

SECTION 10   IMPLEMENTATION 

10.1  INTRODUCTION 

The purpose of this Section is to outline the mechanisms to be used in the implementation of the policies 
contained in this MDP. 

10.2  LAND USE BYLAW 

Land Use Bylaw 
Amendments 
 

10.2.1 (a) All amendments to the LUB shall be consistent with this MDP. If 
a proposed amendment is contrary to this MDP, but is deemed 
desirable by Council, this MDP shall be amended as required to 
ensure that consistency is maintained. 

(b) If an amendment to the LUB is required to accommodate a 
proposed subdivision, the amendment shall receive third reading 
from Council prior to subdivision approval taking place. 

10.3  SUBDIVISION AND DEVELOPMENT REQUIREMENTS 

Evaluation of 
Applications 
 

10.3.1 All applications for LUB amendments, subdivisions and development 
permits shall be evaluated by Greenview according to the following 
criteria: 
 
(a) Compliance with the Act, Regulation, LUB, and any other 

Statutory Plans or Concept Plans that are in effect; 
 
(b) Adequacy of road access and off2site traffic impacts generated 

by the proposed development; 
 
(c) Proposed methods of water supply, sewage disposal and storm 

drainage, supported by hydrogeological and geotechnical testing 
provided by the developer with the application; 

 
(d) Compatibility with adjacent land uses, including the potential 

impact on agricultural operations; 
 
(e) Site suitability in terms of soils, topography, and size; 
 
(f) Environmental factors including the potential for erosion, 

flooding, or watercourse contamination; and 
 
(g) The quality of agricultural land, and the fragmentation and loss of 

agricultural lands. 
 

   
Area Structure Plans 
and Concept Plans 
Prepared by 
Developer 
 

10.3.2 Greenview shall require the adoption of an ASP, prepared in 
accordance with Section 633 of the Act and Area Structure Plan and 
Concept Plan Policy 6001, or a Concept Plan prepared in 
accordance with Area Structure Plan and Concept Plan Policy 6001,  
prior to the approval of: 
 

141



Municipal District of Greenview No. 16 
Municipal Development Plan Bylaw No. 15�742 

September 2016           Page 35 

 

(a) An industrial or commercial subdivision exceeding one (1) lot; 
 

(b) A country residential subdivision resulting in a cumulative density 
of four (4) or more lots on the subject quarter section; 
 

(c) Any multi2lot country residential subdivision or recreational resort 
located adjacent to a lake or other watercourse; or 

 
(d) Any subdivision located in proximity to a highway when 

requested by Alberta Transportation. 
 
A plan prepared under this policy may be referred to as a “Minor” 
ASP. 
 

   
Area Structure Plans 
Prepared by  
Municipal District 
 

10.3.3 (a) Greenview may undertake the preparation of ASPs for its 
hamlets and other areas within Greenview that may be of 
strategic development interest, including but not limited to 
i) the Hamlets of DeBolt and Little Smoky, 
ii) Crooked Creek/Ridgevalley, and 
iii) the Grande Cache airport.  
 
A plan prepared under this policy may be referred to as a “Major” 
ASP. 

 
(b) Major ASPs shall address the criteria identified in Policy 10.3.4 

(“Area Structure Plan Content”), and will generally exceed one 
quarter section in size. Such plans may be undertaken in 
partnership with neighbouring municipalities, developers or 
industry partners.  

 
(c) Greenview shall commit to the review and update of the 

Sturgeon Lake ASP and Grovedale ASP as required. 
 

   
Area Structure Plan 
and Concept Plan 
Content 
 

10.3.4 The preparation of a Minor ASP or Concept Plan required under 
Policy 10.3.2 (“Area Structure Plans Prepared by Developer”) shall 
be the responsibility of the developer, based on Terms of Reference 
prepared by Greenview in accordance with Area Structure Plan and 
Concept Plan Policy 6001, and should address the following matters 
to the satisfaction of Greenview: 
 
(a) Conformity with this MDP, other Statutory Plans, other non2

statutory documents and the LUB; 
 

(b) Proposed land uses, population and employment projections for 
those land uses; 
 

(c) Proposed lot layout and phasing; 
 

(d) Impacts on adjacent uses, environmentally sensitive areas, and 
recreational uses, including provision for buffers and 
development setbacks; 

 
(e) Proposed methods of water supply, stormwater management 

and sewage disposal, supported by report requirements 

142



Municipal District of Greenview No. 16 
Municipal Development Plan Bylaw No. 15�742 

September 2016           Page 36 

 

contained in Policy 10.3.5 (“Supporting Technical Reports”); 
 
(f) Access point(s) and internal circulation network and impacts on 

the external existing transportation network; 
 
(g) Allocation of MR and ER; 

 
(h) Suitability of the site for development in terms of soil stability, 

groundwater level, and drainage; 
 

(i) Confirmation of the location and geographic extent of any 
environmentally significant areas, environmentally sensitive 
areas, riparian areas, surface water bodies, forests, wildlife 
corridors, hazard lands, and historic or archaeological sites. Any 
detailed scientific or engineering analysis that may be required 
by Greenview shall be undertaken by qualified technical 
Professionals with all costs borne by the developer; 
 

(j) Integration of natural areas into the design of developments to 
form part of a future linked and integrated parks and open space 
system, including the retention of forests, wildlife corridors, 
wetland areas, and the provision of stormwater ponds and parks 
to form continuous open spaces; and 
 

(k) Any other matters identified by Greenview.  
 

   
Supporting 
Technical Reports 

10.3.5 All ASPs, Concept Plans, and applications for rezoning and multi2lot 
subdivisions shall be accompanied by the necessary professional 
technical reports including but not limited to Engineering Servicing 
Design Reports, Geotechnical Reports, Hydrogeological Reports, 
and Environmental Impact Assessments as determined by 
Greenview. 
 

   
Development 
Agreements 
 

10.3.6 As a condition of subdivision or development permit approval, 
Greenview may require the developer to enter into a development 
agreement with respect to the provision of all infrastructure required 
to service the site.   
 

   
Developer 
Responsibility 

10.3.7 Developers shall be responsible for all infrastructure and utility costs 
associated with development, including the payment of offsite levies. 

10.4 MUNICIPAL RESERVE 

Municipal Reserve 
Required 
 

10.4.1 As a condition of subdivision, Greenview shall require that ten 
percent (10%) of the developable lands be dedicated as MR as 
provided for under the Act. 
 

   
Municipal Reserve 
Dedication 
 

10.4.2 Greenview shall require that MR be dedicated as cash2in2lieu in all 
cases except as follows: 
 
(a) Where the subdivision results in the creation of a multi2parcel 

143



Municipal District of Greenview No. 16 
Municipal Development Plan Bylaw No. 15�742 

September 2016           Page 37 

 

country residential development, all or a portion of MR owing 
may be dedicated in parcel form if required for community open 
space; 

 
(b) In industrial or other non2residential subdivisions, all or a portion 

of MR may be dedicated in parcel form to serve as buffers from 
incompatible land uses; 

 
(c) Where it may be dedicated in parcel form or deferred to the 

balance in accordance with an approved ASP or Concept Plan; 
 
(d) When subdivision occurs in an urban expansion area as defined 

in an IDP, MR shall be deferred in order to allow the affected 
urban municipality to optimize the available lands after 
annexation takes place; or 

 
(e) In the event that the amount of MR owing is relatively small, it 

may be deferred to the balance. 
 

   
Cash�in�Lieu Value 
 

10.4.3 If the applicant for a subdivision and Greenview cannot agree on a 
land value to determine the amount of cash2in2lieu of land for MR 
dedication, the applicant shall provide a market value appraisal 
certified by a qualified appraiser, pursuant to the Act. Alternatively, 
the rate of payment may be based on the assessed value of the 
subject land as determined by Greenview’s assessors. 
 

   
Use of Municipal 
Reserve Funds 
 

10.4.4 Greenview shall use the funds generated through MR dedication to 
acquire lands for recreational purposes, for the purchase of 
associated equipment or facilities, or to contribute to regional 
recreational facilities. 
 

   
Land Quality 
 

10.4.5 Land dedicated as MR should be of similar quality as the land being 
subjected to development. Land that is deemed to be undevelopable 
in its natural state or is otherwise more suited as ER, will not be 
accepted as MR. 
 

   
Public Access 
 

10.4.6 For new residential subdivisions adjacent to lakeshores, rivers or 
stream banks, MR should be used to supplement shoreline ER 
parcels to enhance public access to the water body, where 
appropriate. The location and configuration of MR lands should 
recognize its potential public access function. 
 

   
Municipal Reserve 
Disposal 
 

10.4.7 MR parcels which serve no existing or potential open space or 
school purpose may be disposed of and sold, or allocated as 
Community Service Reserve. Moneys obtained from the sale of 
surplus MR lands shall be allocated to Greenview’s MR reserve fund 
for the purposes outlined in Policy 10.4.4 (“Use of Municipal Reserve 
Funds”). 
 

144



Municipal District of Greenview No. 16 
Municipal Development Plan Bylaw No. 15�742 

September 2016           Page 38 

 

10.5 MONITORING AND REVIEW  

Five Year Reviews 
 

10.5.1 To ensure that this MDP continues to be current and relevant, it 
should be reviewed at five year intervals unless changing conditions 
warrant a review prior to that time. Such reviews may reflect such 
factors as legislative change, changes to the local development 
climate, the impact of new major projects, or Council philosophy. 
 

   
Plan Amendments 
 

10.5.2 If a significant change in policy direction is desired, or if subsequent 
studies indicate the need for a change to this MDP, it shall be 
amended in accordance with the Act. 

 

 

 

145



   
 

REQUEST FOR DECISION 
   

 
 

Greenview, Alberta     1 

 
SUBJECT:  Bylaw No 16‐772 Local Authorities Pension Plan 
SUBMISSION TO:  Choose a Meeting.  REVIEWED  AND  APPROVED  FOR SUBMISSION 
MEETING DATE:  September 27, 2016  CAO: MH MANAGER: 
DEPARTMENT:  CORPORATE SERVICES  GM: RO PRESENTER: EK
FILE NO./LEGAL:    LEGAL/ POLICY REVIEW:
STRATEGIC PLAN:    FINANCIAL REVIEW:

 
RELEVANT LEGISLATION: 

Provincial (cite) – If the RFD is following Provincial Legislation, place the corresponding information here. 
 
Council Bylaw / Policy (cite) – Bylaw No. 15‐739 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
MOTION:  That Council gives first reading to Bylaw No. 16‐772 Local Authorities Pension Plan (LAPP) as presented. 
 
MOTION:  That  Council  gives  second  reading  to  Bylaw  No.  16‐772  Local  Authorities  Pension  Plan  (LAPP)  as 
presented. 
 

BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL: 
 
The current bylaw was updated in January 2015 bringing it into compliance with LAPP regulations. It outlines that all 
staff who are regularly scheduled to work 30 hours per week or more must participate in the LAPP pension plan.  
 
Administration’s Concerns were: 
 

 Eligible part‐time employees were not being offered the optional enrollment that LAPP allows for. 
o Permanent part‐time Employees who are  regularly  scheduled  to work between 14 and 29 

hours per week can be given the option to participate in the Local Authorities Pension Plan. 
 Adding language to confirm that the hours must be regularly scheduled, meaning excluding overtime. 

 
Administration recommends that we proceed with offering eligible permanent part‐time employees with the option 
to enrol in the LAPP pension plan as it is Greenview’s choice to offer this option for staff in the 14 to 29 hours per 
week range. If Council does not wish to offer the optional pension to eligible part‐time employees then Administration 
still recommends amending the bylaw to clearly outline that Greenview does not offer an optional pension for those 
working less than 30 regularly scheduled hours a week.  
   
OPTIONS – BENEFITS / DISADVANTAGES: 
 

146



 

2      

Options – Council may decide not to pass the amended LAPP bylaw, or Council may choose to amend the attached bylaw. 
 
Benefits – By Council amending the attached bylaw, Council will ensure equity and fairness for all pension eligible staff 
and  will  maintain  Greenview’s  compliance  with  our  auditors  and  the  acceptable  guidelines  provided  by  the  Local 
Authorities Pension Plan Board of Trustees. The Bylaw provides additional clarity regarding Greenview’s Pension Program. 
   
Disadvantages – Offering optional Pension participation to part‐time staff will have a financial impact on Greenview 
of approximately $28,000.00 per year if all eligible staff participated. 
 
COSTS / SOURCE OF FUNDING: 
 
Funding to cover this cost will be included in the Operating Budget. 

ATTACHMENT(S): 
 

 Bylaw No. 15‐739 (LAPP) 
 LAPP at‐a‐glance document 

 

147



  
  

Bylaw           

BYLAW NO. 16‐772(LAPP) 
of the Municipal District of Greenview No. 16 

 

A Bylaw of the Municipal District of Greenview No. 16, in the Province of Alberta;  

Whereas, Section 180 (1), Municipal Government Act, Chapter M‐26, R. S. A. 2000, a Council may only 
act by resolution or bylaw; 
 
Whereas, the Council for the Municipal District of Greenview No. 16, directs Administration to contract 
for, and maintain a group pension plan in conjunction with a provincial plan for Greenview’s civic 
employees or any group thereof.  
 
Therefore,   
 
This bylaw shall be known as the Local Authorities Pension Plan Bylaw (LAPP); 
 
That the Municipal District of Greenview No. 16 participate in the Local Authorities Pension Plan; 
 
That all Permanent Employees who are  regularly scheduled  to work 30 hours or more per week must 
participate in the Local Authorities Pension Plan; 
 
That all Permanent Part Time Employees who are regularly scheduled to work between 14 and 29 hours 
per week be given the option to participate in the Local Authorities Pension Plan. The option to enroll will 
be available any time after becoming eligible. Once enrolled, unless an employee becomes ineligible, they 
must remain enrolled in the pension plan for the duration of their employment; 
 
That Permanent Part Time Employees who are regularly scheduled to work less than 14 hours per work 
are not eligible to participate in the Local Authorities Pension Plan; 
 
That the Municipal District of Greenview No. 16 contribute the employers share or pension contributions 
as established by the Local Authorities Pension Plan Board of Trustees for the Local Authorities Pension 
Plan; 
 
That Permanent Employees contribute to the Local Authorities Pension Plan, as established by the Board, 
for the Local Authorities Pension Plan; 
 
That an employee who is contributing to Local Authorities Pension Plan at the time of any leave, may have 
the option of continuing to pay the employee’s contribution of Local Authorities Pension Plan and the MD 
of Greenview No. 16 will contribute the employers portion as established by the Local Authorities Pension 
Plan Board of Trustees for the Local Authorities Pension Plan; 
 

148



 

2    Bylaw  

That  the Human  Resources  Coordinator,  Payroll  and  Benefits  for  the Municipal District  of Greenview 
No. 16  is hereby empowered  to  take deductions  from  salaries  for  the employee’s portion of pension 
contributions; 
 
Bylaw 15‐739 is hereby repealed in its entirety. 
 
 
 
 

This Bylaw shall come into force and effect upon the third and final reading. 
 
Read a first time this         day of                    , A.D.          . 
 
Read a second time this          day of                  , A.D.            . 
 
Read a third time and finally passed this        day of                      , A.D.             . 

           
REEVE           

 
           
CHIEF ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER   

 
 

149



The pension plan
The Local Authorities Pension Plan (LAPP) is a defined 
benefit pension plan. This means your pension at 
retirement will be based on:

•	 your	length	of	pensionable	service;	and

•	 your	highest	five-year	average	pensionable	salary.

This	type	of	pension	plan:

•	 helps	you	prepare	for	your	retirement	because	you	can	
estimate	your	future	pension	income;

•	 provides	you	with	a	specified	lifetime	income	upon	
retirement,	regardless	of	market	conditions	and	how	
long	you	live;	and

•	 is	funded	by	member	and	employer	contributions	and	
by	investment	earnings.

Who is eligible to join?
•	 If	you’re	a	full-time	continuous	employee	(regularly	

scheduled	hours	of	at	least	30	hours	per	week),	you	
automatically	become	a	member	of	the	Plan	as	soon	
as you start your employment, unless your employer 
delays	your	entry	into	the	Plan	for	up	to	one	year	
during	a	probationary	period.

•	 If	you’re	employed	on	a	full-time	basis	for	a	
predetermined	period,	you	may	participate	if	your	
employer has a policy to enrol you.

•	 If	you’re	employed	on	a	part-time	(regularly	scheduled	
hours	of	at	least	14	hours	per	week)	basis,	you	may	
participate	depending	on	your	employer’s	policy.

•	 For	employees	working	at	least	30	regularly	scheduled	
hours	per	week	on	a	continuous	basis,	participation	
is	mandatory.	To	determine	if	this	criteria	is	met,	an	
employer	must	include	all	regularly	scheduled	hours	in	
all continuous positions with that employer.

•	 For	all	other	employees	working	at	least	14	regularly	
scheduled	hours	per	week,	participation	is	by	
employer	policy.	To	determine	eligibility	under	the	
policy,	an	employer	must	include	all	regularly	
scheduled hours in all positions with that employer.

LAPP benefit 
You	need	a	minimum	of	two	years	of	LAPP	pensionable	
service	to	qualify	for	a	pension	at	retirement.	The	
maximum	pensionable	service	you	can	accumulate	 
is	35	years.

If	you	are	at	least	65	years	old	when	you	leave	the	Plan,	
you	are	entitled	to	receive	an	immediate	pension	even	if	
you	don’t	have	two	years	of	LAPP	pensionable	service.

When you retire, LAPP will pay a benefit to you 
based	on	your	highest	average	salary,	length	
of	pensionable	service	and	a	legislated	benefit	
accrual	rate.	The	legislated	benefit	rate	is:

•	 1.4	per	cent	on	your	average	highest	pensionable	
salary	up	to	the	average	YMPE*,	multiplied	by	your	
years	of	pensionable	service;	and

•	 2	per	cent	on	your	average	highest	pensionable	salary	
over	the	average	YMPE	up	to	the	maximum	allowed	
under	the	federal	Income	Tax	Act,	multiplied	by	your	
years	of	pensionable	service.	

If	you	are	working	as	a	LAPP	retiree,	you	will	continue	
to	receive	your	pension	from	LAPP.	However,	if	you	
work	for	a	LAPP	employer,	you	will	not	be	permitted	
to	make	further	contributions	to	LAPP.	If	you	work	
for	an	employer	under	another	pension	plan,	you	
may	be	required	to	contribute	to	their	plan.

Every	year,	LAPP	also	provides	cost-of-living	adjustments	
to	pensions	in	pay,	at	a	rate	of	60	per	cent	of	the	increase	
in	the	Alberta	Consumer	Price	Index.	This	feature	is	a	
significant	benefit	of	LAPP.

*	The	Year’s	Maximum	Pensionable	Earnings	(YMPE)	is	the	
maximum	amount	of	earnings	on	which	you	can	contribute	
to	the	Canada	Pension	Plan,	as	determined	by	the	federal	
government.	LAPP	uses	the	YMPE	to	determine	contribution	
rates,	plan	benefits,	and	the	cost	of	service.	The	2016	YMPE	is	
$54,900.

at-a-glance

January 2016
150



Increasing your LAPP benefit 
You	may	be	able	to	add	to	your	future	LAPP	pension	by	
increasing	your	length	of	pensionable	service	through	the	
following	methods:
•	 Transfer	service	from	another	pension	plan	to	LAPP	if	

there	is	a	transfer	agreement	that	allows	you	to	do	so.	

•	 Buy	optional	service.	Examples	of	this	may	include:

	 •	 previous	employment	with	your	current	employer;

	 •		 previous	employment	with	another	employer	who		
		 participates	in	LAPP;	or

	 •	 contributory	service	under	another	pension	plan, 
  in some circumstances.

•	 Contribute	to	the	Plan	when	you	are	on,	or	return	from,	
a	leave	without	salary.

Contribution rates
Employee	contributions	to	LAPP	are	tax	deductible.	
Current contribution rates on pensionable salary are as 
follows:

Please	note:	You	may	make	contributions	to	the	Plan	on	
your pensionable salary up to the maximum amount 
allowed	under	the	federal	Income	Tax	Act	($160,970.00	
in	2016.)	This	maximum	amount	is	known	as	the	salary	
cap. 

Leaving the Plan 
If	you	choose	to	leave	the	Plan	before	retirement,	you	will	
have	various	benefit	options	available	to	you.	Your	options	
will	depend	on	your	age	and	your	length	of	pensionable	
service.	You	can	read	more	about	termination	options	at	
www.lapp.ca.

at-a-glance	continued

Disability
You	may	be	eligible	for	a	disability	pension	if	you	are	
incapable	of	performing	the	regular	duties	of	your	
employment.	Contact	your	employer	for	more	details.	

Services provided to members
LAPP	members	are	entitled	to	information	on	plan	
investment	performance,	pension	account	activity,	and	
benefit	options.	Members	receive	publications	such	as	
member	newsletters	and	annual	statements	summarizing	
pension	contributions	and	service.	

Once	you	are	a	member,	you	may	sign	up	to	use	
mypensionplan.	Through	this	online	service,	you	can	
view	personal	information	on	length	of	service,	salary,	
contributions, and beneficiaries. You can also calculate 
pension	estimates	using	your	actual	pension	account	
information.	You	can	update	your	contact	information	and	
beneficiary	information,	and	sign	up	to	go	green	to	receive	
e-mail	notifications	when	your	Member	Annual	Statement	
and	other	publications	are	available	online.	

For	detailed	information	about	LAPP,	visit	www.lapp.ca.

Contact Information
Contact	your	employer	or	the	Member	Services	Centre	for	
answers	to	any	questions	you	might	have	about	LAPP.	

This	summary	provides	general	information	about	the	major	
provisions	of	LAPP.	Please	contact	your	employer	or	the	
Member	Services	Centre	for	more	detailed	information	on	any	
of	the	topics	covered.	If	anything	in	this	summary	conflicts	
with	the	governing	legislation,	the	legislation	will	apply.

January 2016

LAPP’s	Member	Services	Centre:

Phone:		 1-877-649-LAPP	(5277)

E-mail:		 memberservices@lapp.ca

Website:   www.lapp.ca

Members		 10.39%	up	to	YMPE		 14.84%	over	YMPE

Employers		 11.39%	up	to	YMPE		 15.84%	over	YMPE

151



   
 

REQUEST FOR DECISION 
   

 
 

Greenview, Alberta     1 

 
SUBJECT:  Federal Tanker Moratorium
SUBMISSION TO:  REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING REVIEWED  AND  APPROVED  FOR SUBMISSION 
MEETING DATE:  September 27, 2016  CAO: MH MANAGER: 
DEPARTMENT:  COMMUNITY SERVICES  GM: DM PRESENTER: DM
FILE NO./LEGAL:    LEGAL/ POLICY REVIEW:
STRATEGIC PLAN:    FINANCIAL REVIEW:

 
RELEVANT LEGISLATION: 

Provincial (cite) – N/A 
 
Council Bylaw / Policy (cite) – N/A 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
MOTION:  That Council authorize Administration to send a letter to Transport Canada in opposition to the Federal 
Tanker Moratorium. 
 

BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL: 
 
Council and Administration received correspondence from Mr. Sam Munckof‐Swain or Northern Gateway requesting 
a letter of opposition to the moratorium. Administration believes that the moratorium is in conflict with the interests 
of Greenview, the Province of Alberta, and Canada. Given previous discussion with Council  indicating that Council 
shares this view, Administration is recommending that the attached letter be forwarded to Transport Canada as well 
as completing the online survey. 
 
At the September 20, 2016 Committee of the Whole Meeting the following motion was adopted: 

 
Please see the attached information provided by Northern Gateway regarding the Federal Government’s moratorium 
on marine tanker traffic along the Northern British Columbia coast.  
 
   
OPTIONS – BENEFITS / DISADVANTAGES: 
 
Options – Council may choose to send the letter to Transport Canada as presented or alter the correspondence. 
 

That Committee of the Whole recommend to Council to send a letter to Transport Canada in opposition to the 

Federal Tanker Moratorium. 

152



 

2      

Benefits – The benefit of sending the letter of opposition to Transport Canada regarding the proposed federal tanker 
moratorium is that Greenview’s views regarding the issue would be acknowledged.   
   
Disadvantages – There are no perceived disadvantages to sending the letter as presented to Transport Canada. 
 
COSTS / SOURCE OF FUNDING: 
 
N/A 

ATTACHMENT(S): 
 

 Letter to Transport Canada – Proposed Federal Tanker Moratorium 

153



154



155



   
 

REQUEST FOR DECISION 
   

 
 

Greenview, Alberta     1 

 
SUBJECT:  Fox Creek Fire Hall Agreement
SUBMISSION TO:  REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING REVIEWED  AND  APPROVED  FOR SUBMISSION 
MEETING DATE:  September 27, 2016  CAO: MH MANAGER: 
DEPARTMENT:  COMMUNITY SERVICES  GM: DM PRESENTER: DM
FILE NO./LEGAL:    LEGAL/ POLICY REVIEW:
STRATEGIC PLAN:    FINANCIAL REVIEW:

 
RELEVANT LEGISLATION: 

Provincial (cite) – N/A 
 
Council Bylaw / Policy (cite) – N/A 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
MOTION:  That Council authorize Administration to amend the Fox Creek Fire Hall agreement, whereby Greenview 
will commit a maximum of $4,000,000.00 towards the Fox Creek Fire Hall project.   
 
MOTION:  That Council authorize Administration to inform the Town of Fox Creek that the helipad at the proposed 
Fox Creek Fire Hall project site be deleted and that future dialogue regarding constructing a helipad at the Fox 
Creek hospital be undertaken.  
 

BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL: 
 
An agreement has been endorsed by the Town of Fox Creek and Greenview regarding constructing a Fire Hall within 
the Town of Fox Creek.  Greenview has committed $3,500,000.00 towards the project while attaining 50% ownership 
of the facility. 
 
A joint meeting between Greenview and the Town of Fox Creek was recently held to discuss the Fox Creek Fire Hall 
project.  It was determined that the proposed Fire Hall project will cost approximately $8,000,000.00 instead of the 
projected $7,000,000.00.  It was recommended that the jurisdictions continue with the project at a 50/50 cost ratio.  
The  location of the proposed helipad at the Fox Creek Fire Hall project was also discussed resulting  in  its deletion 
from the project with further dialogue required regarding constructing the helipad at the Fox Creek hospital. 
 
As per the existing agreement written approval of the facility design is required from Greenview prior to proceeding 
with the project.  Greenview previously has allotted $3,500,000.00 in reserves to go towards the Fox Creek Fire Hall 
project.   
 
 
   

156



 

2      

OPTIONS – BENEFITS / DISADVANTAGES: 
 
Options – Council has the option to approve, alter or deny amending the agreement. 
 
Benefits – The benefit of amending  the agreement  is  that  the Fox Creek Fire Hall project could proceed pending 
Greenview’s approval of the design.   
   
Disadvantages – The disadvantage to amending the Fox Creek Fire Hall agreement  is that additional funds will be 
required. 
 
COSTS / SOURCE OF FUNDING: 
 
The source of funding for this Fox Creek Fire Hall project $3,500,000.00 will come from Greenview’s financial reserve 
and $500,000.00 will be funded from contingency. 

ATTACHMENT(S): 
 

 Fox Creek Fire Hall Agreement 

157



AG39-16
0685-F15

158



159



160



161



162



163



164



165



166



   
 

REQUEST FOR DECISION 
   

 
 

Greenview, Alberta     1 

 
SUBJECT:  Fox Creek Multiplex  
SUBMISSION TO:  REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING REVIEWED  AND  APPROVED  FOR SUBMISSION 
MEETING DATE:  September 27, 2016  CAO: MH MANAGER: 
DEPARTMENT:  COMMUNITY SERVICES  GM: DM PRESENTER: DM
FILE NO./LEGAL:    LEGAL/ POLICY REVIEW:
STRATEGIC PLAN:    FINANCIAL REVIEW:

 
RELEVANT LEGISLATION: 

Provincial (cite) – N/A 
 
Council Bylaw / Policy (cite) – N/A 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
MOTION:  That Council authorize Administration to amend the Fox Creek Multiplex Agreement whereby Greenview 
will commit $19,000,000.00 and Fox Creek $13,000,000.00 towards the proposed Fox Creek Multiplex project and 
that the ownership ratio also be amended to reflect the new funding percentage. 
 

BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL: 
 
An agreement has been endorsed by the Town of Fox Creek and Greenview regarding constructing a multiplex within 
the Town of Fox Creek.  Greenview has committed $13,000,000.00 towards the project while attaining 50% ownership 
of the facility. 
 
A joint meeting between Greenview and the Town of Fox Creek was recently held to discuss the Fox Creek Multiplex 
project.    It was determined that the proposed multiplex project will cost approximately $26,000,000.00, however 
there were not sufficient change rooms allocated within the facility.    In order to accommodate additional change 
rooms an additional $6,000,000.00 will be required, resulting  in a total project cost of $32,000,000.00. Greenview 
would retain ownership on a 60/40 ratio should Council approve the additional financial contribution.   
 
As per the existing agreement written approval of the facility design is required from Greenview prior to proceeding 
with the project.  Greenview previously has allotted $21,000,000.00 of funds in reserves to go towards the Fox Creek 
multiplex project as an original estimate of the project was deemed to be $42,000,000.00.  The Town of Fox Creek 
had recommended to Greenview that the facility be financially downsized in order to accommodate the Town’s fiscal 
resources.    
   
OPTIONS – BENEFITS / DISADVANTAGES: 
 

167



 

2      

Options – Council has the option to approve or deny amending the agreement with the Town of Fox Creek for the 
multiplex. 
 
Benefits – The benefit of amending the Town of Fox Creek Multiplex project is that the project will be able to proceed 
with adequate change rooms pending Greenview’s final approval of the design.   
   
Disadvantages – The disadvantage to amending the Town of Fox Creek Multiplex project agreement is that additional 
funds will be required.  
 
COSTS / SOURCE OF FUNDING: 
 
The source of the $19,000,000.00 will come from Greenview’s financial reserve. There is currently $21 Million in the 
Recreation Reserve for this project. 

ATTACHMENT(S): 
 

 Town of Fox Creek Multiplex Agreement 

168



AG27-16
0685-F14

169



170



171



172



173



174



175



176



177



   
 

REQUEST FOR DECISION 
   

 
 

Greenview, Alberta     1 

 
SUBJECT:  Regional Non‐Motorized Trails
SUBMISSION TO:  REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING REVIEWED  AND  APPROVED  FOR SUBMISSION 
MEETING DATE:  September 27, 2016  CAO: MH MANAGER:  AE
DEPARTMENT:  COMMUNITY SERVICES/RECREATION SERVICES GM: DM PRESENTER: AE
FILE NO./LEGAL:    LEGAL/ POLICY REVIEW:
STRATEGIC PLAN:    FINANCIAL REVIEW:

 
RELEVANT LEGISLATION: 

Provincial (cite) – N/A 
 
Council Bylaw / Policy (cite) – N/A 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
MOTION:  That  Council  authorize  Administration  to  send  a  letter  of  support  to  the  County  of Grande  Prairie 
regarding the concept of developing regional non‐motorized trails that will connect Greenview with the County of 
Grande Prairie and the City of Grande Prairie. 
 

BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL: 
 
The County of Grande Prairie made a presentation at the Committee of the Whole Meeting on Tuesday September 
20, 2016 regarding the concept of developing regional non‐motorized trails. The proposed trails would link the City 
of Grande Prairie,  the County of Grande Prairie and Greenview via a non‐motorized  trail network, which would 
stretch from Clairmont and head south across the Wapiti River to the Grovedale area. 

The conceptual trail plan includes crossing the Wapiti River by way of a pedestrian pathway which may be included 
in Alberta Transportation’s plans of providing a future second highway bridge across the river.   

The County of Grande Prairie is seeking support in principle from Greenview for the purpose of publicly advocating 
for the project. 
   
OPTIONS – BENEFITS / DISADVANTAGES: 
 
Options – Council has the option to accept or deny the recommended action to authorize Administration to send a 
letter of support. 
 
Benefits – The benefit of Council providing a letter of support is that the conceptual trail plan will be adopted allowing 
for more detailed project planning prior to any further commitments from Greenview and the stakeholders.  
   
Disadvantages ‐ There are no perceived disadvantages of providing a letter of support to the County of Grande Prairie. 

178



 

2      

 
COSTS / SOURCE OF FUNDING: 
 
There are no cost associated with accepting the motion at this time. 

ATTACHMENT(S): 
 

 Non‐motorized Trail Project Presentation 

179



Pedestrian
Flyover

Pedestrian 
Flyover

Ferguson
Parkway 
Construction

River Crossing

County
Recreation
Disposition B

Pedestrian
Flyover

Potential trail linkage
through Arbor Hills and
Royal Oaks

Potential 
Wedgewood 
Linkage

Potential
Carriage Lane 
Linkage

Proposed 
Parking
Area

County
Recreational 
Disposition A

COUNTY
INDUSTRIAL

PARK

WESTMOUNT SOUTH
INDUSTRIAL PARK

LAWRA
ESTATESWOODLAKE

ESTATES

MAPLE
GROVE

HWY 43 EAST
INDUSTRIAL

PARK

NORDHAGEN

WESTMOUNT NORTH
INDUSTRIAL PARK

SPRUCEWOOD
PARK

BEAR RIDGE
ESTATES

DUNES
WEST

DEER RIDGE
ESTATES

EAGLE
ESTATES

GOLDENROD
ESTATES

HOCKEY
ESTATES

DEER RUN
ESTATES

NORTHGATE
INDUSTRIAL

PARK

DUNES

WINDWOOD
LANE

CARRIAGE
LANE

ESTATES

MAPLE
RIDGE

HERITAGE
POINTE

HWY 40
INDUSTRIAL

PARK

PARK
MEADOWS

WILLOWOOD
ESTATES

DUNKLEY
MEADOWS

WESTLAKE
VILLAGE

HWY 43 WEST
INDUSTRIAL

PARK

ALTHEN
CORNER

SANDY
RIDGE

ESTATES

TAYLOR
ESTATES

RIVERVIEW
PINES

ESTATES

CROSSROADS
SOUTH

PINEBROOK ESTATES

MOUNTVIEW

MANDALAY
ESTATES

SILVER
POINTE

SUNRISE
ESTATES

SANDY
LANES

ESTATES

PINE
VALLEY

ESTATES

GREEN
ACRES

MYSTIC
RIDGE

THE
RANCH

TAMARACK
ESTATES

JERSEY
MEADOWS

RIVER ROAD
ESTATES

FOXSTONE
MEADOWS

SMALLWOOD
ESTATES

SUNRISE II
ESTATES

WEDGEWOOD

EMERSON TRAIL
INDUSTRIAL

PARK

MINHAS
INDUSTRIAL PARK

DUNES
ON 17

MEADOWVIEW

LAKEVIEW

SWAN
CITY

WHISPERING
RIDGE

WYNNGATE

NORTHFIELD
LANDING

HAWKER
INDUSTRIAL

INDUSTRIAL
AT RGE
RD 53

CROSSROADS
NORTH

CROSSROADS
53 SOUTH

INDUSTRIAL AT
CROSSROADS

NORTH

Future
Arbour Hills

Development

Bear Creek
Golf &

Country Club

Potential
Linkage

Clairmont
Heights

ASP Area

TWP RD 710

R
G

E
 R

D
 5

4

HWY 670

R
G

E
 R

D
 6

5

HWY 43 EAST

HWY 43
EASTHW

Y 43 H
W

Y 
43

H
W

Y 
43

 S
O

U
TH

TWP
RD 724

R
G

E
 R

D
 6

1

H
W

Y 
40

 S
O

U
TH

R
G

E
 R

D
 6

1

H
W

Y 
40

 N
O

R
TH

H
W

Y 
43

SO
U

TH
HW

Y 
43

NO
RT

H

TWP RD 710

TWP RD 704A

HWY 43

WEST

TWP RD 713A

H
W

Y 
40

HWY 43 WEST

HWY 43 EAST

TWP RD
712

HWY 668

TWP RD 703A

HWY 43
 W

EST

TWP RD 703A

HWY 43 W
EST

TWP RD 725

R
G

E
 R

D
 7

0

R
G

E
 R

D
 5

4

TWP RD 720

TWP RD 725

R
G

E
 R

D
 6

3

TWP RD 712

TWP RD 711A

TWP RD 713

TWP RD 712

H
W

Y 
43

N
O

R
TH

R
G

E
 R

D
 6

2

H
W

Y 
43

 S
O

U
TH

TWP RD 715A

R
G

E
 R

D
 5

5

R
G

E
 R

D
 6

0

R
G

E
 R

D
 6

4

RG
E 

R
D

 6
4

R
G

E
 R

D
 5

5

R
G

E
 R

D
 7

1

TWP RD
710HW

Y 
40

R
G

E
 R

D
 6

5

R
G

E
 R

D
 5

5

TWP RD 705

R
G

E
 R

D
 6

5

R
G

E
R

D
 7

1

TWP RD 721

R
G

E
 R

D
 6

2

R
G

E
 R

D
 6

4

HWY 43 WEST

HW
Y 

43
EA

ST

TWP RD 721A

TWP RD 710A

TWP RD 730

R
G

E
 R

D
 6

0

TWP RD 724

R
G

E
 R

D
 6

2

R
G

E
 R

D
 6

5

TWP RD
714A

TWP RD
730A

R
G

E
 R

D
 6

4

H
W

Y 
2 

N
O

R
TH

TWP RD 712A

HWY 43X EAST

R
G

E
 R

D
 6

0

R
G

E
 R

D
 6

4

TWP RD 722

R
G

E
 R

D
 5

3

R
G

E
 R

D
 61

R
G

E
 R

D
 6

3A

R
G

E
 R

D
 7

1

TWP RD 703A

R
G

E
 R

D
 6

0

HWY 2
SOUTH

H
W

Y 
2 

SO
U

TH

HWY 43X WEST

R
G

E
 R

D
 7

0

HWY 43
SOUTH

TWP RD 714

R
G

E
 R

D
 6

3

HW
Y 2

NORTH

TWP RD 705A

R
G

E
 R

D
 5

2

R
G

E
 R

D
 7

1
R

G
E

 R
D

 7
1

R
G

E
 R

D
 5

5A

R
G

E
 R

D
 62

HWY
43 EAST

TWP RD 721A

RG
E R

D
 62

TWP RD 722A

TWP RD 713A

TWP RD
725A

R
G

E
 R

D
 6

3

R
G

E
 R

D
 7

0

R
G

E
 R

D
 6

5
R

G
E

 R
D

 6
5

R
G

E
 R

D
 6

4

R
G

E
 R

D
 5

3A

TWP RD 704

R
G

E
 R

D
 5

5

TWP RD 715

TWP RD 724

TWP RD 723

TWP RD 720

TWP RD 715A

TWP RD 724A

Flyover

Interchange

Bauman 
Road 
Alignment

Potential Link to 
City Trails

Document Path: V:\Pam\ProjectsForJim\ProposedNonMotorizedTrailJan2016.mxd

Proposed Non-Motorized 

Provincial Trail from 
Clairmont to Nitehawk

Existing Trails

Non-Existing Trails

Proposed Trail

Clairmont Heights ASP

Areas of Note

!
!
!

!!! !!! !!! !!!

!
! !!!!!!!!!!!!

Hamlet of Clairmont

City of Grande Prairie

Muskoseepi Park (City of GP - Open Data)

Named Subdivisions

Waterbodies

Ü
1:70,000

Apr 11, 2016

180



   
 

REQUEST FOR DECISION 
   

 
 

Greenview, Alberta     1 

 
SUBJECT:  Sweathouse Community Centre Request for Additional Gravel 
SUBMISSION TO:  REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING REVIEWED  AND  APPROVED  FOR SUBMISSION 
MEETING DATE:  September 27, 2016  CAO: MH MANAGER: 
DEPARTMENT:  COMMUNITY SERVICES  GM: DM PRESENTER: DM
FILE NO./LEGAL:    LEGAL/ POLICY REVIEW:
STRATEGIC PLAN:    FINANCIAL REVIEW:

 
RELEVANT LEGISLATION: 

Provincial (cite) – N/A 
 
Council Bylaw / Policy (cite) – N/A 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
MOTION:  That Council approve the provision of 264 tonnes of Greenview aggregate valued at $6,072.00, delivery 
excluded, to the Sweathouse Community Centre, with funds to come from the Community Service Miscellaneous 
Grant.  
 

BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL: 
 
The Sweathouse Community Centre was provided a $50,000.00 grant for playground equipment and upgrades to the 
parking lot and campground in 2014, an additional $20,000.00 plus the supply of 264 tonnes of aggregate, excluding 
trucking, was provided for upgrades to the parking lot, campground and approach in 2015.   
 
The Centre has approximately $34,000.00 left from the original grant due in part to volunteer time, donations and 
donation of equipment usage.  The group is requesting additional gravel as they underestimated the area required to 
accommodate  sufficient  parking  and  camping.    The Centre will  hire  the  gravel  trucks  and  additional  equipment 
required  to  transfer  the gravel on  site.   The  supply of 264  tonnes of aggregate  from Greenview will  result  in an 
approximate in‐kind value of $6,072.00. 
 
The Community Service Miscellaneous Grant Fund has a balance of $104,213.29, as of September 26, 2016. 

 
   
OPTIONS – BENEFITS / DISADVANTAGES: 
 
Options – Council has the option to approve, deny or alter the amount of aggregate provided to the Sweathouse 
Community Centre.   
 

181



 

2      

Benefits – The benefit of providing the Sweathouse Community Centre with the additional aggregate requested  is 
that the community will benefit with a well maintained site that can accommodate sufficient space for parking and 
camping.   
   
Disadvantages – There are no perceived disadvantages to providing an additional 264 tonnes of aggregate to the 
Sweathouse Community Centre.    
 
COSTS / SOURCE OF FUNDING: 
 
The $6,072.00 cost associated with  the 264  tonnes of aggregate  (Operational Asset) will be  transferred  from  the 
Community Service Miscellaneous Grant to the Operations Department.   

ATTACHMENT(S): 
 

 Sweathouse Community Centre Letter Requesting Additional Aggregate.  

182



183



   
 

REQUEST FOR DECISION 
   

 
 

Greenview, Alberta     1 

 
SUBJECT:  DeBolt and District Agricultural Society Vegas Gala Sponsorship
SUBMISSION TO:  REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING REVIEWED  AND  APPROVED  FOR SUBMISSION 
MEETING DATE:  September 27, 2016  CAO: MH MANAGER: 
DEPARTMENT:  COMMUNITY SERVICES  GM: DM PRESENTER: DM
FILE NO./LEGAL:    LEGAL/ POLICY REVIEW:
STRATEGIC PLAN:    FINANCIAL REVIEW:

 
RELEVANT LEGISLATION: 

Provincial (cite) – N/A 
 
Council Bylaw / Policy (cite) – N/A 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
MOTION:   That Council approve sponsorship  in the amount of $2,500.00 to the DeBolt and District Agricultural 
Society for the Vegas Gala Night, with funds to come from the Community Service Miscellaneous Grant.  
 

BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL: 
 
The DeBolt and District Agricultural Society is requesting sponsorship for their Vegas Gala to be hosted on October 
27, 2016 at the DeBolt Centre.  The event consists of a silent auction, catered supper and live music with the events 
funds contributing as a primary source of funding to the Agricultural Society.   
 
Sponsorship opportunities range from under $500.00 to $2,500.00, with Greenview previously committing $2,000.00 
in 2015. 
 
The Community Service Miscellaneous Grant Fund has a balance of $104,213.29, as of September 26, 2016. 
   
OPTIONS – BENEFITS / DISADVANTAGES: 
 
Options – Council has the option to approve, alter or deny the DeBolt and District Agricultural Society sponsorship 
request. 
 
Benefits – The benefit of providing sponsorship to the DeBolt and District Agricultural Society for the Vegas Gala is 
that Greenview would be supporting a non‐for‐profit community organization.   
   
Disadvantages – There are no perceived disadvantages to sponsoring the DeBolt and District Agricultural Society for 
the Vegas Gala.  
 

184



 

2      

 
 
COSTS / SOURCE OF FUNDING: 
 
Costs associated with this item can be provided from the Community Service Miscellaneous Grants Budget. 

ATTACHMENT(S): 
 

 DeBolt Agricultural Society Letter  

185



186



   
 

REQUEST FOR DECISION 
   

 
 

Greenview, Alberta     1 

 
SUBJECT:  Valleyview and District Chamber of Commerce Small Business Awards  
SUBMISSION TO:  REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING REVIEWED  AND  APPROVED  FOR SUBMISSION 
MEETING DATE:  September 27, 2016  CAO: MH MANAGER: 
DEPARTMENT:  COMMUNITY SERVICES  GM: DM PRESENTER: DM
FILE NO./LEGAL:    LEGAL/ POLICY REVIEW:
STRATEGIC PLAN:    FINANCIAL REVIEW:

 
RELEVANT LEGISLATION: 

Provincial (cite) – N/A 
 
Council Bylaw / Policy (cite) – N/A 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
MOTION:    That  Council  approve  Silver  Sponsorship  in  the  amount  of  $500.00  to  the  Valleyview  and District 
Chamber of Commerce for the 6th Annual Small Business Awards that will be held on October 20th, 2016, with funds 
to come from the Community Service Miscellaneous Grant.  
 

BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL: 
 
The Valleyview and District Chamber of Commerce is requesting sponsorship for the 6th Annual Small Business Awards 
Banquet  that will be held on October 20th, 2016  (see various  sponsorship package options).   The Small Business 
Awards Banquet featuring guest speaker Kathy Flett and  live entertainment, provides an opportunity to recognize 
local and regional businesses.   
 
Silver  package  sponsorship  in  the  amount  of  $500.00  was  provided  to  the  Valleyview  and  District  Chamber  of 
Commerce for the 2015 Small Business Awards.   The 2016 Silver Sponsorship package will provide 1 table ‐ prime 
seating, award sponsored by your company, company logo on PowerPoint presentation and advertising. 
 
The Community Service Miscellaneous Grant Fund has a balance of $104,213.29, as of September 26, 2016.   
   
OPTIONS – BENEFITS / DISADVANTAGES: 
 
Options – Council has the option to approve, deny or alter the amount of sponsorship provided to the Valleyview and 
District Chamber of Commerce for the Small Business Awards. 
 
Benefits – The benefit of providing sponsorship to the Valleyview and District Chamber of Commerce for the Small 
Business Awards is that some local and regional businesses may be recognized for their accomplishments.    
   

187



 

2      

Disadvantages  –  There  are  no  perceived  disadvantages  to  providing  sponsorship  to  the  Valleyview  and District 
Chamber of Commerce for the Annual Small Business Awards.  
 
COSTS / SOURCE OF FUNDING: 
 
The $500.00 sponsorship to the Valleyview and District Chamber of Commerce for the Small Business Awards will 
come from the Community Service Miscellaneous Grant.  

ATTACHMENT(S): 
 

 Sponsorship Request Letter from the Valleyview and District Chamber of Commerce 

188



189



190



191



192



   
 

REQUEST FOR DECISION 
   

 
 

Greenview, Alberta     1 

 
SUBJECT:  Valleyview Jets Sponsorship Request 
SUBMISSION TO:  REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING REVIEWED  AND  APPROVED  FOR SUBMISSION 
MEETING DATE:  September 27, 2016  CAO: MH MANAGER: 
DEPARTMENT:  COMMUNITY SERVICES  GM: DM PRESENTER: DM
FILE NO./LEGAL:    LEGAL/ POLICY REVIEW:
STRATEGIC PLAN:    FINANCIAL REVIEW:

 
RELEVANT LEGISLATION: 

Provincial (cite) – N/A 
 
Council Bylaw / Policy (cite) – N/A 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
MOTION:  That Council approve Silver Sponsorship in the amount of $500.00 to the Valleyview Jets Hockey Club, 
with funds to come from the Community Service Miscellaneous Grant.   
 

BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL: 
 
The Valleyview Jets Hockey Club has rebuilt a team to re‐enter into the North Peace Hockey League (NPHL) and are 
asking  for  sponsorship  to  assist  them with  the  payment  commitments  associated with  ice  time,  officials,  travel 
expenses and operating costs.   Various sponsorship options are provided for Council’s consideration varying from 
$150.00 to $5,000.00 (see sponsor package details).   
 
Greenview has sponsored the Valleyview Minor Hockey Club in the amount of $400.00 for a Greenview advertisement 
sign and provided $375.00 to the Town of Grande Cache for a Greenview advertisement sign in the Grande Cache 
arena, both commitments at  this cost have been established since 2014.   Additionally, Greenview has sponsored 
curling clubs such as the Red Willow Curling Club in the amount of $1,811.25 in 2016 for bonspiel mugs and a $500.00 
donation was provided for the Valleyview Oilman’s Bonspiel in 2016.  
 
Administration recommends that sponsorship in the amount of $700.00 be provided to the Valleyview Jets Hockey 
Club to assist them with re‐establishing their hockey team.  The sponsorship will provide a logo on the back of the 
game day roster, 2 season tickets, logo on the website and space for a Greenview supplied 4x4 sign on the wall behind 
the boards in the rink which Greenview would supply. 
 
The Community Service Miscellaneous Grant Fund has a balance of $104,213.29, as of September 26, 2016. 
     
 
 

193



 

2      

   
OPTIONS – BENEFITS / DISADVANTAGES: 
 
Options – Council has the option to approve, deny or alter the sponsorship to the Valleyview Jets Hockey Club. 
 
Benefits – The benefit of providing sponsorship to the Valleyview Jets Hockey Club  is that the hockey club will be 
restored for the community and the funds may be available to commit to the associated team expenses.   
   
Disadvantages – There are no perceived disadvantages to sponsoring the Valleyview Jets Hockey Club.  
 
COSTS / SOURCE OF FUNDING: 
 
The $700.00 sponsorship commitment will come from the Community Service Miscellaneous Grant.  

ATTACHMENT(S): 
 

 Valleyview Jets Sponsor Package Details Letter 

194



195



196



   
 

REQUEST FOR DECISION 
   

 
 

Greenview, Alberta     1 

 
SUBJECT:  Nitehawk 20th Annual Comedy Night Fundraiser 
SUBMISSION TO:  REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING REVIEWED  AND  APPROVED  FOR SUBMISSION 
MEETING DATE:  September 27, 2016  CAO: MH MANAGER: 
DEPARTMENT:  COMMUNITY SERVICES  GM: DM PRESENTER: DM
FILE NO./LEGAL:    LEGAL/ POLICY REVIEW:
STRATEGIC PLAN:    FINANCIAL REVIEW:

 
RELEVANT LEGISLATION: 

Provincial (cite) – N/A 
 
Council Bylaw / Policy (cite) – N/A 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
MOTION:  That Council approve table sponsorship in the amount of $650.00 for the Nitehawk 20th Annual Comedy 
Night Fundraiser to be held October 1st, 2016 at the Five Mile Hall, with funds to come from the Community Service 
Miscellaneous Grant.  
 

BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL: 
 
Nitehawk Year‐Round Adventure Park  is  requesting  ticket purchases  in support of  the 20th Annual Comedy Night 
Fundraiser  to  be  held  on  Saturday,  October  1st,  2016  at  the  Five  Mile  Hall.    The  fundraising  event  featuring  
comedians Dave Nistrom and Lori Gibbs, includes dinner and a dance. 
 
Greenview has provided sponsorship in the form of a donated prize for this event in the past, September 23, 2009 
and purchased one ticket in 2008.  Administration is recommending to provide table sponsorship in the amount of 
$650.00 per table (10 seats). 
 
The Community Service Miscellaneous Grant Fund has a balance of $104,213.29, as of September 26, 2016. 
   
OPTIONS – BENEFITS / DISADVANTAGES: 
 
Options – Council has the option to approve, alter or deny sponsorship for the 20th Annual Nitehawk Comedy Night 
fundraising event.   
 
Benefits – The benefit of providing sponsorship for the Nitehawk fundraising event is that it will provide support to a 
community fundraising event. 
   

197



 

2      

Disadvantages  –  There  are  no  perceived  disadvantages  to  providing  sponsorship  for  the  20th  Annual  Nitehawk 
Comedy Night fundraising event. 
 
COSTS / SOURCE OF FUNDING: 
 
The $650.00 table sponsorship for the 20th Annual Comedy Night Fundraiser will come from the Community Service 
Miscellaneous Grant.  

ATTACHMENT(S): 
 

 Invitation – Nitehawk Year‐Round Adventure Park 20th Annual Comedy Night Fundraiser 

198



199



200



   
 

REQUEST FOR DECISION 
   

 
 

Greenview, Alberta     1 

 
SUBJECT:  2016 Second Quarter Report
SUBMISSION TO:  COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE REVIEWED  AND  APPROVED  FOR SUBMISSION 
MEETING DATE:  September 27, 2016  CAO: MH MANAGER: 
DEPARTMENT:  CORPORATE SERVICES/FINANCE GM: RO PRESENTER: BD
FILE NO./LEGAL:    LEGAL/ POLICY REVIEW:
STRATEGIC PLAN:    FINANCIAL REVIEW:

 
RELEVANT LEGISLATION: 

Provincial – Section 208(1) (k) “the actual revenues and expenditures of the municipality compared with the estimates 
in the operating or capital budget approved by council are reported to council as often as the council directs;” 
 
Council Bylaw / Policy – Bylaw No. 07‐548 – Section 4(4.3)  (g) “monitor and  report on  the operating and capital 
budgets periodically, as determined by Council;” 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
MOTION:  That Council accept the 2016 2nd Quarter Budget to Actual Financial Report, as information. 
 

BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL: 
 
Attached for Council’s information is the 2016 2nd Quarter Budget to Actual Financial Report.  
 
The  Year‐to‐Date Revenue  and  Expenditure  actuals  are  in  comparison  to  the Council Approved Operational  and 
Capital Budget for the 2016 Fiscal Year.   
 
Overall Revenues Year‐to‐Date to the end of the 2nd Quarter are $112,600,000 and are within 1% of the Forecast for 
2016. 
 
As  a  whole,  Actual  Expenses  for  all  of  the  Departments  are  under  budget  for  the  1st  half  of  the  year.    Most 
Departments are tracking at a Budget spending rate of 40% to 50%, with a  few, at a  lesser rate of spend.   Those 
Departments with an expend rate of less than 40% of Budget, should incur expend at a higher rate in the remaining 
2 Quarters of the Year, which will bring them into alignment with the overall Municipality of Greenview percent of 
Council Approved Budget expended. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

201



 

2      

 
The departments with an expend rate of less than 40% are as follows: 
 
    Facilities & Maintenance  38% 

    Operations      36% 

    Environmental Services  31% 

    Recreation Enhancement  30% 

    Economic Development  1.5% 
 
One item of note; during the production of the 2016 Proposed Budget an error occurred, which leaves the Protective 
Services Department with an overspend of 233.33% or $(60,000) for Honorariums for Fire Services.   
The 2016 Budget originated and presented to Council for approval, did not contain $30,000 for Honorariums for each 
of the DeBolt and the Grovedale Fire Services. 
 
This oversight happened due to links within the excel spreadsheets being dropped during the final preparation for 
Council. At the present, the Protective Services Department’s overall budget usage is below the 50% mark, as such, 
Administration proposes waiting  to  see  if  there  is a need  to add extra  funds  to  the department’s budget before 
bringing a RFD to request Council to transfer funds from the 2016 Contingency Budget into the Protective Services 
Budget. 
 
Council will note that there are miscoding issues within the 2nd quarter report, these errors have since been corrected 
by Administration. These corrections will be reflected in the 3rd quarter report.  
 
   
OPTIONS – BENEFITS / DISADVANTAGES: 

 
Benefits – The benefit of Council receiving this information is to keep Council informed of the financial status of the 
2016 Operational and Capital Budget. 
   
Disadvantages ‐ None. 
 
COSTS / SOURCE OF FUNDING: 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): 
 
2016 2nd Quarter Report 

202



Honorariums 6-6003 $156,851.71 $303,020.00 $146,168.29
Employer Contributions 6-6004 0.00 50,000.00 50,000.00
Non Cash Awards & Incentives 6-6007 3,866.60 35,925.00 32,058.40
Accommodation & Subsistence 6-6011 33,067.58 60,500.00 27,432.42
Transportation Expenses 6-6012 42,989.52 95,000.00 52,010.48
Membships Seminars Conferences 6-6015 15,304.67 55,170.00 39,865.33
Publishing Services 6-6022 41.95 0.00 (41.95)
Promotional Marketing 6-6025 3,505.70 0.00 (3,505.70)
Hospitality 6-6027 32,105.74 49,550.00 17,444.26
Mobile Communication Services 6-6036 2,522.79 15,000.00 12,477.21
Professional Services 6-6040 0.00 40,000.00 40,000.00
General & Operating Supplies 6-6109 3,484.02 900.00 (2,584.02)
Rental of Residential Building 6-6143 1,359.36 3,000.00 1,640.64

295,099.64 708,065.00 412,965.36

203



Accommodation & Subsistence 6-6011 $0.00 $500.00 $500.00
Transportation Expenses 6-6012 0.00 1,000.00 1,000.00

0.00 1,500.00 1,500.00

204



Salaries 6-6001 $838,104.50 $2,189,908.00 $1,351,803.50
Employer Contributions 6-6004 214,998.28 670,873.00 455,874.72
Non Cash Awards & Incentives 6-6007 3,254.07 9,000.00 5,745.93
Employee Relocation 6-6008 3,038.30 37,500.00 34,461.70
Wellness Program 6-6009 62.05 5,000.00 4,937.95
Accommodation & Subsistence 6-6011 35,698.31 226,743.00 191,044.69
Transportation Expenses 6-6012 19,613.09 122,378.00 102,764.91
Training & Education 6-6013 53,403.30 95,700.00 42,296.70
Membships Seminars Conferences 6-6015 10,834.78 48,215.00 37,380.22
Promotional Marketing 6-6025 9,464.57 0.00 (9,464.57)
Postage and Parcel Post 6-6031 22,478.98 40,000.00 17,521.02
Freight & Courier Services 6-6032 1,231.58 5,000.00 3,768.42
Telecommunication Services 6-6033 51,114.12 222,100.00 170,985.88
Professional Services 6-6040 110,121.88 180,000.00 69,878.12
Auditing & Accounting Services 6-6041 39,967.19 75,000.00 35,032.81
Legal Services 6-6046 20,681.57 80,000.00 59,318.43
Office Supplies 6-6102 26,869.02 70,000.00 43,130.98
Petroleum & Antifreeze Products 6-6105 157.25 0.00 (157.25)
General & Operating Supplies 6-6109 10,036.45 36,000.00 25,963.55
Power Supply Service 6-6121 26,311.98 73,000.00 46,688.02
Natural Gas Service 6-6122 4,873.87 18,200.00 13,326.13
Other Utilities Rates 6-6129 2,139.74 7,700.00 5,560.26
Rental of Residential Building 6-6143 2,273.96 6,500.00 4,226.04
Rental of Office Equipment 6-6148 34,795.69 98,800.00 64,004.31
Bank Service Charges 6-6321 887.50 145,000.00 144,112.50
Cash Management Charges 6-6322 97,384.94 22,000.00 (75,384.94)
Insurance Premium & Deductible 6-6331 366.76 400,000.00 399,633.24
Property Taxes 6-6360 12,081.38 13,000.00 918.62

1,652,245.11 4,897,617.00 3,245,371.89

205



Advertising Services 6-6021 $50,284.26 $150,000.00 $99,715.74
Publishing Services 6-6022 31,345.16 106,500.00 75,154.84
Subscriptions to Publications 6-6024 2,434.60 0.00 (2,434.60)
Promotional Marketing 6-6025 3,341.63 80,000.00 76,658.37
Hospitality 6-6027 980.00 0.00 (980.00)
Branding & Image Building 6-6028 8,916.38 50,000.00 41,083.62
Professional Services 6-6040 0.00 10,000.00 10,000.00
General & Operating Supplies 6-6109 0.00 33,500.00 33,500.00

97,302.03 430,000.00 332,697.97

206



Honorariums 6-6003 $2,206.31 $0.00 ($2,206.31)
Accommodation & Subsistence 6-6011 892.37 0.00 (892.37)
Transportation Expenses 6-6012 690.00 0.00 (690.00)
Professional Services 6-6040 295,961.57 725,000.00 429,038.43

299,750.25 725,000.00 425,249.75

207



Contingency Reallocation 6-6211 $0.00 $2,051,976.00 $2,051,976.00
0.00 2,051,976.00 2,051,976.00

208



Education Requisitions 6-6205 $11,511,251.04 $22,374,396.00 $10,863,144.96
11,511,251.04 22,374,396.00 10,863,144.96

209



Mobile Communication Services 6-6036 $16,160.39 $102,700.00 $86,539.61
Geophysical Surveying & Mapping 6-6065 167,943.00 223,668.00 55,725.00
Information Technology Services 6-6067 18,426.34 165,970.00 147,543.66
Contracted Maintenance Service 6-6071 59,129.84 171,660.00 112,530.16
Power Supply Service 6-6121 1,702.81 6,000.00 4,297.19
IT Hardware Purchase 6-6133 175,691.46 233,510.00 57,818.54
IT Software Purchase 6-6134 35,244.93 37,950.00 2,705.07
Rental of IT & Communication Eq 6-6144 3,050.00 11,600.00 8,550.00

477,348.77 953,058.00 475,709.23

210



Salaries 6-6001 $305,070.52 $791,249.00 $486,178.48
Employer Contributions 6-6004 86,356.67 249,882.66 163,525.99
Accommodation & Subsistence 6-6011 1,668.15 12,000.00 10,331.85
Transportation Expenses 6-6012 0.00 5,000.00 5,000.00
Training & Education 6-6013 4,826.00 15,000.00 10,174.00
Membships Seminars Conferences 6-6015 1,124.00 7,000.00 5,876.00
Advertising Services 6-6021 0.00 1,000.00 1,000.00
Freight & Courier Services 6-6032 458.65 1,500.00 1,041.35
Telecommunication Services 6-6033 2,240.80 7,000.00 4,759.20
Professional Services 6-6040 35,149.39 100,000.00 64,850.61
Personal Protection Equipment & 6-6104 0.00 1,000.00 1,000.00
Petroleum & Antifreeze Products 6-6105 1,023.55 0.00 (1,023.55)
General & Operating Supplies 6-6109 9,297.65 10,000.00 702.35

447,215.38 1,200,631.66 753,416.28

211



Salaries 6-6001 $219,419.79 $499,602.00 $280,182.21
Employer Contributions 6-6004 59,669.93 159,872.76 100,202.83
Accommodation & Subsistence 6-6011 4,704.11 11,000.00 6,295.89
Transportation Expenses 6-6012 791.11 1,800.00 1,008.89
Training & Education 6-6013 3,731.75 15,000.00 11,268.25
Membships Seminars Conferences 6-6015 6,300.00 6,000.00 (300.00)
Advertising Services 6-6021 496.04 2,500.00 2,003.96
Mobile Communication Services 6-6036 1,256.02 4,700.00 3,443.98
Professional Services 6-6040 90,771.34 285,000.00 194,228.66
Repair/Maintenance of Motor Ve 6-6076 0.00 10,000.00 10,000.00
Personal Protection Equipment & 6-6104 0.00 2,000.00 2,000.00
Petroleum & Antifreeze Products 6-6105 1,186.17 15,000.00 13,813.83
General & Operating Supplies 6-6109 459.75 2,500.00 2,040.25
Donations & Sponsorships 6-6208 0.00 2,500.00 2,500.00

388,786.01 1,017,474.76 628,688.75

212



Honorariums 6-6003 $13,239.86 $25,000.00 $11,760.14
Employer Contributions 6-6004 0.00 2,500.00 2,500.00
Accommodation & Subsistence 6-6011 2,671.14 5,500.00 2,828.86
Transportation Expenses 6-6012 4,657.18 5,500.00 842.82
Membships Seminars Conferences 6-6015 4,450.00 12,500.00 8,050.00
Advertising Services 6-6021 6,470.25 18,000.00 11,529.75
Other Information Services 6-6029 0.00 1,600.00 1,600.00
Freight & Courier Services 6-6032 583.38 5,000.00 4,416.62
General & Operating Supplies 6-6109 0.00 2,000.00 2,000.00
Rental of Residential Building 6-6143 0.00 3,000.00 3,000.00

32,071.81 80,600.00 48,528.19

213



Honorariums 6-6003 $3,066.14 $10,000.00 $6,933.86
Employer Contributions 6-6004 0.00 500.00 500.00
Accommodation & Subsistence 6-6011 1,152.23 1,200.00 47.77
Transportation Expenses 6-6012 1,165.41 2,000.00 834.59
Membships Seminars Conferences 6-6015 3,908.33 3,000.00 (908.33)

9,292.11 16,700.00 7,407.89

214



Geophysical Surveying & Mapping 6-6065 $56,914.35 $75,000.00 $18,085.65
Land 6-6549 22,430.50 40,000.00 17,569.50

79,344.85 115,000.00 35,655.15

215



Honorariums 6-6003 $8,302.00 $50,000.00 $41,698.00
Employer Contributions 6-6004 0.00 5,000.00 5,000.00
Accommodation & Subsistence 6-6011 525.50 7,000.00 6,474.50
Transportation Expenses 6-6012 2,187.68 13,000.00 10,812.32
Membships Seminars Conferences 6-6015 300.00 14,000.00 13,700.00

11,315.18 89,000.00 77,684.82

216



Salaries 6-6001 $455,230.86 $648,048.00 $192,817.14
Employer Contributions 6-6004 111,368.05 207,375.18 96,007.13
Accommodation & Subsistence 6-6011 3,016.77 15,000.00 11,983.23
Transportation Expenses 6-6012 2,237.67 1,000.00 (1,237.67)
Training & Education 6-6013 2,427.86 20,000.00 17,572.14
Membships Seminars Conferences 6-6015 1,585.00 12,000.00 10,415.00
Advertising Services 6-6021 0.00 4,000.00 4,000.00
Freight & Courier Services 6-6032 1,199.42 3,000.00 1,800.58
Telecommunication Services 6-6033 8,301.01 30,000.00 21,698.99
Professional Services 6-6040 861.34 70,000.00 69,138.66
Personal Protection Equipment & 6-6104 70.00 10,000.00 9,930.00
Petroleum & Antifreeze Products 6-6105 13,940.28 60,000.00 46,059.72
General & Operating Supplies 6-6109 776.17 7,000.00 6,223.83

601,014.43 1,087,423.18 486,408.75

217



Telecommunication Services 6-6033 $5,208.68 $8,000.00 $2,791.32
Professional Services 6-6040 22,962.66 55,000.00 32,037.34
Contracted Maintenance Service 6-6071 0.00 50,000.00 50,000.00
General & Operating Supplies 6-6109 6,950.03 40,000.00 33,049.97
Chemicals 6-6110 3,646.21 30,000.00 26,353.79
Other Repair & Maintenance Supp 6-6119 2,333.33 40,000.00 37,666.67
Power Supply Service 6-6121 25,114.26 55,000.00 29,885.74
Natural Gas Service 6-6122 5,950.27 20,000.00 14,049.73
Direct Energy Utilities 6-6125 9,138.00 40,000.00 30,862.00
Debenture Principal 6-6313 7,669.04 15,529.00 7,859.96
Loan Interest 6-6315 14,885.56 29,581.00 14,695.44
SCADA System 6-6571 4,012.66 30,000.00 25,987.34

107,870.70 413,110.00 305,239.30

218



Telecommunication Services 6-6033 $1,454.37 $3,000.00 $1,545.63
Mobile Communication Services 6-6036 10.89 0.00 (10.89)
Professional Services 6-6040 9,052.48 90,000.00 80,947.52
Other Engineering Works/ Mainte 6-6079 105.63 50,000.00 49,894.37
General & Operating Supplies 6-6109 3,616.26 10,000.00 6,383.74
Chemicals 6-6110 7,091.93 4,000.00 (3,091.93)
Power Supply Service 6-6121 4,989.19 20,000.00 15,010.81
Debenture Principal 6-6313 7,669.04 15,529.00 7,859.96
Loan Interest 6-6315 14,885.55 29,581.00 14,695.45
SCADA System 6-6571 0.00 25,000.00 25,000.00

48,875.34 247,110.00 198,234.66

219



Salaries 6-6001 $0.00 $582,789.00 $582,789.00
Employer Contributions 6-6004 0.00 136,303.00 136,303.00
Accommodation & Subsistence 6-6011 981.03 10,000.00 9,018.97
Transportation Expenses 6-6012 4,917.63 20,000.00 15,082.37
Mobile Communication Services 6-6036 2,480.46 8,500.00 6,019.54
Professional Services 6-6040 70,829.93 170,000.00 99,170.07
Harvest & Cleanup Incentives 6-6066 3,000.00 8,000.00 5,000.00
Contracted Maintenance Service 6-6071 14,300.00 80,000.00 65,700.00
Personal Protection Equipment & 6-6104 0.00 5,000.00 5,000.00
Petroleum & Antifreeze Products 6-6105 13,937.70 62,000.00 48,062.30
General & Operating Supplies 6-6109 2,392.18 14,000.00 11,607.82
Other Repair & Maintenance Supp 6-6119 1,366.73 30,000.00 28,633.27
Power Supply Service 6-6121 234.68 1,000.00 765.32
Rental of Environmental Control 6-6147 15,839.04 60,000.00 44,160.96

130,279.38 1,187,592.00 1,057,312.62

220



Salaries 6-6001 $1,009,254.63 $3,008,069.00 $1,998,814.37
Employer Contributions 6-6004 241,271.22 876,811.00 635,539.78
Accommodation & Subsistence 6-6011 49.25 5,000.00 4,950.75
Transportation Expenses 6-6012 824.56 1,000.00 175.44
Training & Education 6-6013 2,971.00 10,000.00 7,029.00
Membships Seminars Conferences 6-6015 531.79 1,000.00 468.21
Advertising Services 6-6021 15,909.40 30,000.00 14,090.60
Telecommunication Services 6-6033 15,668.68 30,000.00 14,331.32
Personal Protection Equipment & 6-6104 159.99 500.00 340.01
General & Operating Supplies 6-6109 1,459.30 4,500.00 3,040.70
Power Supply Service 6-6121 0.00 35,000.00 35,000.00
Natural Gas Service 6-6122 18,532.80 19,000.00 467.20
Other Utilities Rates 6-6129 2,775.42 8,500.00 5,724.58
Rental of Office Equipment 6-6148 927.93 0.00 (927.93)

1,310,335.97 4,029,380.00 2,719,044.03

221



Accommodation & Subsistence 6-6011 $3.70 $1,000.00 $996.30
Training & Education 6-6013 0.00 15,000.00 15,000.00
Membships Seminars Conferences 6-6015 0.00 500.00 500.00
Freight & Courier Services 6-6032 4,744.26 15,000.00 10,255.74
Mobile Communication Services 6-6036 46,513.76 100,000.00 53,486.24
Contracted Services and Repairs 6-6060 29,042.38 115,000.00 85,957.62
Contracted Maintenance Service 6-6071 (1,176.30) 0.00 1,176.30
Licence & Permit Fees 6-6082 562.67 2,250.00 1,687.33
Personal Protection Equipment & 6-6104 9.85 500.00 490.15
Petroleum & Antifreeze Products 6-6105 176,299.89 600,000.00 423,700.11
Shop & Service Truck Tools 6-6106 2,133.03 5,000.00 2,866.97
Consumable Tools & Supplies 6-6108 28,307.69 75,000.00 46,692.31
General & Operating Supplies 6-6109 2,026.30 0.00 (2,026.30)
Insurance Premium & Deductible 6-6331 0.00 15,000.00 15,000.00
Vehicle Components and Parts 6-6519 31,764.51 105,000.00 73,235.49
Vehicle Accessories 6-6520 32,534.05 90,000.00 57,465.95

352,765.79 1,139,250.00 786,484.21

222



Accommodation & Subsistence 6-6011 $40.00 $2,500.00 $2,460.00
Telecommunication Services 6-6033 4,170.26 4,500.00 329.74
Contracted Services and Repairs 6-6060 5,283.77 10,000.00 4,716.23
Office Supplies 6-6102 742.29 3,000.00 2,257.71
Personal Protection Equipment & 6-6104 0.00 500.00 500.00
General & Operating Supplies 6-6109 3,155.17 5,000.00 1,844.83
Power Supply Service 6-6121 2,329.99 10,000.00 7,670.01
Natural Gas Service 6-6122 3,468.33 0.00 (3,468.33)
Other Utilities Rates 6-6129 200.00 4,000.00 3,800.00

19,389.81 39,500.00 20,110.19

223



Grant Agreements 6-6203 $40,308.79 $42,500.00 $2,191.21
40,308.79 42,500.00 2,191.21

224



Power Supply Service 6-6121 $0.00 $32,500.00 $32,500.00
Direct Energy Utilities 6-6125 12,274.67 0.00 (12,274.67)

12,274.67 32,500.00 20,225.33

225



Salaries 6-6001 $53,639.12 $0.00 ($53,639.12)
Employer Contributions 6-6004 12,323.74 0.00 (12,323.74)
Accommodation & Subsistence 6-6011 0.00 2,000.00 2,000.00
Contracted Maintenance Service 6-6071 1,604,342.19 4,000,000.00 2,395,657.81
General & Operating Supplies 6-6109 185,609.48 380,000.00 194,390.52
Chemicals 6-6110 132,679.57 0.00 (132,679.57)
Salt & Sand 6-6852 97,790.00 250,000.00 152,210.00

2,086,384.10 4,632,000.00 2,545,615.90

226



Engineering Consultants 6-6044 $210.00 $30,000.00 $29,790.00
Tendered Contractor/Management 6-6047 260,865.96 600,000.00 339,134.04
Other Engineering Works/ Mainte 6-6079 380.00 30,000.00 29,620.00

261,455.96 660,000.00 398,544.04

227



Accommodation & Subsistence 6-6011 $0.00 $2,000.00 $2,000.00
Contracted Maintenance Service 6-6071 223,095.25 325,000.00 101,904.75
Personal Protection Equipment & 6-6104 0.00 500.00 500.00
General & Operating Supplies 6-6109 2,577.86 2,500.00 (77.86)

225,673.11 330,000.00 104,326.89

228



Accommodation & Subsistence 6-6011 $0.00 $13,000.00 $13,000.00
Contractor Services 6-6043 0.00 1,000.00 1,000.00
Personal Protection Equipment & 6-6104 0.00 500.00 500.00
General & Operating Supplies 6-6109 10,514.68 30,000.00 19,485.32

10,514.68 44,500.00 33,985.32

229



Accommodation & Subsistence 6-6011 $0.00 $5,000.00 $5,000.00
Contractor Services 6-6043 2,895,412.88 4,250,000.00 1,354,587.12
Contracted Services and Repairs 6-6060 12,800.51 500,000.00 487,199.49
Geophysical Surveying & Mapping 6-6065 2,723.24 100,000.00 97,276.76
General & Operating Supplies 6-6109 3,758.52 5,000.00 1,241.48
Gravel 6-6112 (155,977.07) 5,500,000.00 5,655,977.07

2,758,718.08 10,360,000.00 7,601,281.92

230



Professional Services 6-6040 $428,959.85 $2,400,000.00 $1,971,040.15
Contractor Services 6-6043 1,110.00 35,000.00 33,890.00
Animal Control Services 6-6061 6,142.50 30,000.00 23,857.50
Harvest & Cleanup Incentives 6-6066 30,000.00 30,000.00 0.00
General & Operating Supplies 6-6109 68.20 5,000.00 4,931.80
Chemicals 6-6110 1,085,589.48 1,104,725.00 19,135.52
Rental of Equipment & Machinery 6-6145 5,500.00 650,000.00 644,500.00

1,557,370.03 4,254,725.00 2,697,354.97

231



Contractor Services 6-6043 $0.00 $50,000.00 $50,000.00
0.00 50,000.00 50,000.00

232



Salaries 6-6001 $285,496.86 $768,378.00 $482,881.14
Employer Contributions 6-6004 68,029.40 217,847.00 149,817.60
Accommodation & Subsistence 6-6011 41.58 5,000.00 4,958.42
Training & Education 6-6013 0.00 8,000.00 8,000.00
Mobile Communication Services 6-6036 1,735.26 9,000.00 7,264.74
Contracted Maintenance Service 6-6071 256,279.94 533,000.00 276,720.06
Cleaning/ Janitorial Supplies 6-6103 6,703.23 18,000.00 11,296.77
Personal Protection Equipment & 6-6104 45.06 3,500.00 3,454.94
Petroleum & Antifreeze Products 6-6105 3,023.88 230,000.00 226,976.12
General & Operating Supplies 6-6109 53,415.20 185,000.00 131,584.80
Landscaping Equipment & Supplie 6-6114 1,263.75 25,000.00 23,736.25
Power Supply Service 6-6121 4,087.95 0.00 (4,087.95)

680,122.11 2,002,725.00 1,322,602.89

233



Maintenance 6-6068 $89.85 $4,000.00 $3,910.15
89.85 4,000.00 3,910.15

234



Salaries 6-6001 $119,164.24 $340,235.00 $221,070.76
Employer Contributions 6-6004 28,567.94 108,876.00 80,308.06
Accommodation & Subsistence 6-6011 1,244.80 3,000.00 1,755.20
Transportation Expenses 6-6012 174.79 3,000.00 2,825.21
Training & Education 6-6013 747.00 6,000.00 5,253.00
Mobile Communication Services 6-6036 108.88 0.00 (108.88)
Professional Services 6-6040 134.09 0.00 (134.09)
General & Operating Supplies 6-6109 302.77 3,000.00 2,697.23

150,444.51 464,111.00 313,666.49

235



Accommodation & Subsistence 6-6011 $8,957.88 $15,000.00 $6,042.12
Advertising Services 6-6021 0.00 500.00 500.00
Hospitality 6-6027 0.00 2,000.00 2,000.00
Telecommunication Services 6-6033 562.63 1,200.00 637.37
Professional Services 6-6040 2,951.00 6,500.00 3,549.00
Maintenance 6-6068 12,208.41 35,500.00 23,291.59
Cleaning/ Janitorial Supplies 6-6103 14,700.00 35,500.00 20,800.00
General & Operating Supplies 6-6109 598.61 5,000.00 4,401.39
Power Supply Service 6-6121 8,077.04 25,000.00 16,922.96
Natural Gas Service 6-6122 2,578.14 10,000.00 7,421.86
Direct Energy Utilities 6-6125 796.59 3,000.00 2,203.41
Insurance Premium & Deductible 6-6331 0.00 4,000.00 4,000.00

51,430.30 143,200.00 91,769.70

236



Grant Agreements 6-6203 $0.00 $12,000.00 $12,000.00
0.00 12,000.00 12,000.00

237



Grants to Organizations 6-6202 $30,325.00 $51,500.00 $21,175.00
Grant Agreements 6-6203 10,000.00 10,000.00 0.00
Red Willow Lodge - Grant 6-6223 1,500.00 1,500.00 0.00

41,825.00 63,000.00 21,175.00

238



Shared Funding 6-6207 $673,897.00 $1,509,800.00 $835,903.00
673,897.00 1,509,800.00 835,903.00

239



Telecommunication Services 6-6033 $584.23 $500.00 ($84.23)
Maintenance 6-6068 0.00 50,000.00 50,000.00
Power Supply Service 6-6121 2,407.98 500.00 (1,907.98)
Natural Gas Service 6-6122 92.25 500.00 407.75
Other Utilities Rates 6-6129 0.00 500.00 500.00

3,084.46 52,000.00 48,915.54

240



Accommodation & Subsistence 6-6011 $0.00 $6,000.00 $6,000.00
Transportation Expenses 6-6012 0.00 5,000.00 5,000.00
Training & Education 6-6013 0.00 2,000.00 2,000.00
Membships Seminars Conferences 6-6015 20,120.00 36,200.00 16,080.00
Advertising Services 6-6021 0.00 10,000.00 10,000.00
Subscriptions to Publications 6-6024 7,424.00 0.00 (7,424.00)
Promotional Marketing 6-6025 0.00 125,000.00 125,000.00
Branding & Image Building 6-6028 0.00 100,000.00 100,000.00
Mobile Communication Services 6-6036 326.64 0.00 (326.64)
Professional Services 6-6040 771.00 40,000.00 39,229.00
Tradeshows and Fairs 6-6057 12,087.54 77,550.00 65,462.46
Investment Readiness & Attract 6-6058 2,850.42 124,000.00 121,149.58
Repair of Equipment & Machinery 6-6074 0.00 5,000.00 5,000.00
Petroleum & Antifreeze Products 6-6105 0.00 5,000.00 5,000.00
Tourism Partnerships 6-6220 92,877.39 111,000.00 18,122.61
Bus. Retent Expansion & Invest 6-6221 0.00 42,000.00 42,000.00

136,456.99 688,750.00 552,293.01

241



Grant Agreements 6-6203 $0.00 $8,400,471.42 $8,400,471.42
0.00 8,400,471.42 8,400,471.42

242



Grants to Organizations 6-6202 $159,750.00 $608,250.00 $448,500.00
Grant Agreements 6-6203 0.00 102,000.00 102,000.00

159,750.00 710,250.00 550,500.00

243



Grants to Organizations 6-6202 $1,338,617.66 $1,500,000.00 $161,382.34
Grant Agreements 6-6203 200,000.00 0.00 (200,000.00)
Bursaries & Scholarships 6-6209 8,700.00 32,000.00 23,300.00
Women's Shelters 6-6222 50,000.00 50,000.00 0.00

1,597,317.66 1,582,000.00 (15,317.66)

244



Grants to Organizations 6-6202 $0.00 $159,000.00 $159,000.00
Grant Agreements 6-6203 0.00 76,000.00 76,000.00
Grant for Recreation Project 6-6206 0.00 50,000.00 50,000.00

0.00 285,000.00 285,000.00

245



Grants to Organizations 6-6202 $20,000.00 $20,000.00 $0.00
Grant Agreements 6-6203 337,882.00 412,882.00 75,000.00
Grant for Recreation Project 6-6206 0.00 4,000.00 4,000.00

357,882.00 436,882.00 79,000.00

246



Grants to Organizations 6-6202 $156,500.00 $156,500.00 $0.00
156,500.00 156,500.00 0.00

247



Grants to Organizations 6-6202 $40,000.00 $270,000.00 $230,000.00
Grant Agreements 6-6203 82,502.15 81,500.00 (1,002.15)

122,502.15 351,500.00 228,997.85

248



Grants to Organizations 6-6202 $135,298.42 $163,500.00 $28,201.58
135,298.42 163,500.00 28,201.58

249



Grants to Organizations 6-6202 $45,000.00 $45,000.00 $0.00
Grant Agreements 6-6203 35,000.00 35,000.00 0.00
Shared Funding 6-6207 30,500.00 31,000.00 500.00

110,500.00 111,000.00 500.00

250



Shared Funding 6-6207 $6,000.00 $39,000.00 $33,000.00
6,000.00 39,000.00 33,000.00

251



Salaries 6-6001 $88,551.94 $317,610.00 $229,058.06
Employer Contributions 6-6004 23,082.95 89,940.00 66,857.05
Accommodation & Subsistence 6-6011 2,214.75 17,300.00 15,085.25
Transportation Expenses 6-6012 0.00 1,000.00 1,000.00
Training & Education 6-6013 1,976.42 17,600.00 15,623.58
Advertising Services 6-6021 0.00 2,000.00 2,000.00
Mobile Communication Services 6-6036 0.00 4,800.00 4,800.00
Professional Services 6-6040 400.00 15,600.00 15,200.00
Contracted Services and Repairs 6-6060 0.00 100,000.00 100,000.00
Repair of Equipment & Machinery 6-6074 4,729.63 15,000.00 10,270.37
Petroleum & Antifreeze Products 6-6105 3,514.67 19,500.00 15,985.33
General & Operating Supplies 6-6109 20,492.43 43,806.00 23,313.57

144,962.79 644,156.00 499,193.21

252



Mobile Communication Services 6-6036 $713.67 $1,700.00 $986.33
Site Operations & Maintenance 6-6059 2,800.00 154,550.00 151,750.00
Repair/Maintenance of Motor Ve 6-6076 291.30 15,000.00 14,708.70
Personal Protection Equipment & 6-6104 0.00 300.00 300.00
Petroleum & Antifreeze Products 6-6105 7,520.76 9,000.00 1,479.24
Consumable Tools & Supplies 6-6108 0.00 2,000.00 2,000.00
General & Operating Supplies 6-6109 5,880.60 15,000.00 9,119.40

17,206.33 197,550.00 180,343.67

253



Shared Funding 6-6207 $143,004.89 $222,500.00 $79,495.11
143,004.89 222,500.00 79,495.11

254



Salaries 6-6001 $159,080.00 $362,631.42 $203,551.42
Employer Contributions 6-6004 46,927.81 112,369.32 65,441.51
Accommodation & Subsistence 6-6011 8,572.38 13,000.00 4,427.62
Transportation Expenses 6-6012 456.78 0.00 (456.78)
Training & Education 6-6013 6,922.42 20,000.00 13,077.58
Membships Seminars Conferences 6-6015 225.34 3,500.00 3,274.66
Advertising Services 6-6021 1,526.00 3,500.00 1,974.00
Freight & Courier Services 6-6032 150.37 1,000.00 849.63
Mobile Communication Services 6-6036 877.87 3,840.00 2,962.13
Professional Services 6-6040 0.00 42,325.00 42,325.00
Volunteer Appreciation 6-6055 0.00 12,500.00 12,500.00
Animal Control Services 6-6061 1,445.25 11,000.00 9,554.75
Enforcement Services 6-6064 97,500.95 145,000.00 47,499.05
Repair/Maintenance of Motor Ve 6-6076 1,635.00 15,000.00 13,365.00
Personal Protection Equipment & 6-6104 0.00 10,000.00 10,000.00
Petroleum & Antifreeze Products 6-6105 3,289.87 14,500.00 11,210.13
General & Operating Supplies 6-6109 5,181.18 10,000.00 4,818.82
Grants to Organizations 6-6202 44,993.50 265,000.00 220,006.50

378,784.72 1,045,165.74 666,381.02

255



Honorariums 6-6003 $0.00 $15,000.00 $15,000.00
Mobile Communication Services 6-6036 0.00 1,000.00 1,000.00
Professional Services 6-6040 0.00 1,000.00 1,000.00
Maintenance Contract - Public S 6-6069 0.00 31,000.00 31,000.00
Repair/Maintenance of Motor Ve 6-6076 2,846.79 5,000.00 2,153.21
Fire Services Agreements 6-6078 0.00 75,000.00 75,000.00
General & Operating Supplies 6-6109 0.00 15,000.00 15,000.00
Power Supply Service 6-6121 3,159.91 6,000.00 2,840.09
Natural Gas Service 6-6122 1,770.58 4,500.00 2,729.42
Direct Energy Utilities 6-6125 889.64 2,000.00 1,110.36

8,666.92 155,500.00 146,833.08

256



Honorariums 6-6003 $30,000.00 $15,000.00 ($15,000.00)
Training & Education 6-6013 0.00 9,750.00 9,750.00
Freight & Courier Services 6-6032 0.00 825.00 825.00
Telecommunication Services 6-6033 0.00 1,000.00 1,000.00
Mobile Communication Services 6-6036 559.57 2,400.00 1,840.43
Professional Services 6-6040 0.00 5,000.00 5,000.00
Emergency Response Services 6-6063 25,000.00 5,700.00 (19,300.00)
Repair/Maintenance of Motor Ve 6-6076 2,220.70 5,500.00 3,279.30
Fire Services Agreements 6-6078 25,000.00 25,000.00 0.00
General & Operating Supplies 6-6109 38,372.53 35,400.00 (2,972.53)

121,152.80 105,575.00 (15,577.80)

257



Honorariums 6-6003 $30,000.00 $0.00 ($30,000.00)
Accommodation & Subsistence 6-6011 24.74 2,500.00 2,475.26
Transportation Expenses 6-6012 903.55 2,500.00 1,596.45
Training & Education 6-6013 14,384.97 25,000.00 10,615.03
Membships Seminars Conferences 6-6015 0.00 2,000.00 2,000.00
Freight & Courier Services 6-6032 751.67 800.00 48.33
Telecommunication Services 6-6033 1,976.25 6,500.00 4,523.75
Mobile Communication Services 6-6036 551.64 22,000.00 21,448.36
Professional Services 6-6040 299.89 6,000.00 5,700.11
Emergency Response Services 6-6063 0.00 9,000.00 9,000.00
Maintenance Contract - Public S 6-6069 0.00 31,000.00 31,000.00
Contracted Maintenance Service 6-6071 1,500.00 6,500.00 5,000.00
Repair of Equipment & Machinery 6-6074 488.02 5,000.00 4,511.98
Repair/Maintenance of Motor Ve 6-6076 506.23 7,500.00 6,993.77
Personal Protection Equipment & 6-6104 8,434.05 20,000.00 11,565.95
Petroleum & Antifreeze Products 6-6105 1,009.88 4,500.00 3,490.12
Shop & Service Truck Tools 6-6106 727.56 1,500.00 772.44
General & Operating Supplies 6-6109 7,139.28 41,500.00 34,360.72
Chemicals 6-6110 0.00 1,000.00 1,000.00
Power Supply Service 6-6121 1,494.67 4,800.00 3,305.33
Natural Gas Service 6-6122 5,737.07 4,800.00 (937.07)

75,929.47 204,400.00 128,470.53

258



Honorariums 6-6003 $30,000.00 $0.00 ($30,000.00)
Accommodation & Subsistence 6-6011 0.00 2,000.00 2,000.00
Transportation Expenses 6-6012 0.00 500.00 500.00
Training & Education 6-6013 380.00 35,000.00 34,620.00
Membships Seminars Conferences 6-6015 0.00 1,000.00 1,000.00
Freight & Courier Services 6-6032 0.00 500.00 500.00
Telecommunication Services 6-6033 1,147.58 6,500.00 5,352.42
Mobile Communication Services 6-6036 2,241.62 26,200.00 23,958.38
Professional Services 6-6040 0.00 5,000.00 5,000.00
Emergency Response Services 6-6063 0.00 9,000.00 9,000.00
Maintenance Contract - Public S 6-6069 0.00 80,000.00 80,000.00
Contracted Maintenance Service 6-6071 1,500.00 0.00 (1,500.00)
Repair of Equipment & Machinery 6-6074 1,159.56 5,000.00 3,840.44
Repair/Maintenance of Motor Ve 6-6076 9,966.37 7,500.00 (2,466.37)
Personal Protection Equipment & 6-6104 6,167.80 37,000.00 30,832.20
Petroleum & Antifreeze Products 6-6105 2,683.70 15,000.00 12,316.30
Shop & Service Truck Tools 6-6106 1,318.42 1,000.00 (318.42)
General & Operating Supplies 6-6109 6,172.94 39,000.00 32,827.06
Chemicals 6-6110 0.00 1,500.00 1,500.00
Power Supply Service 6-6121 3,047.56 7,000.00 3,952.44
Natural Gas Service 6-6122 1,493.62 4,800.00 3,306.38
Grants and Contributions 6-6200 0.00 6,500.00 6,500.00

67,279.17 290,000.00 222,720.83

259



Salaries 6-6001 $1,199.25 $0.00 ($1,199.25)
Accommodation & Subsistence 6-6011 696.43 3,000.00 2,303.57
Transportation Expenses 6-6012 270.17 2,500.00 2,229.83
Training & Education 6-6013 525.00 15,000.00 14,475.00
Telecommunication Services 6-6033 10,796.44 21,000.00 10,203.56
Professional Services 6-6040 14,172.07 20,000.00 5,827.93
General & Operating Supplies 6-6109 772.20 12,500.00 11,727.80

28,431.56 74,000.00 45,568.44

260



Maintenance Contract - Public S 6-6069 $0.00 $8,000.00 $8,000.00
General & Operating Supplies 6-6109 0.00 8,000.00 8,000.00
Power Supply Service 6-6121 (262.65) 0.00 262.65
Natural Gas Service 6-6122 0.05 0.00 (0.05)

(262.60) 16,000.00 16,262.60

261



Non Cash Awards & Incentives 6-6007 $0.00 $2,000.00 $2,000.00
Accommodation & Subsistence 6-6011 29.96 5,500.00 5,470.04
Training & Education 6-6013 17,233.10 64,450.00 47,216.90
Membships Seminars Conferences 6-6015 0.00 1,865.00 1,865.00
Subscriptions to Publications 6-6024 169.00 2,000.00 1,831.00
Professional Services 6-6040 22,801.99 43,600.00 20,798.01
Office Supplies 6-6102 171.77 0.00 (171.77)
General & Operating Supplies 6-6109 36,508.00 79,100.00 42,592.00

76,913.82 198,515.00 121,601.18

262



Honorariums 6-6003 $15,000.00 $15,000.00 $0.00
Training & Education 6-6013 10,863.25 10,500.00 (363.25)
Freight & Courier Services 6-6032 530.00 500.00 (30.00)
Telecommunication Services 6-6033 0.00 1,000.00 1,000.00
Mobile Communication Services 6-6036 3,042.80 5,000.00 1,957.20
Professional Services 6-6040 12,400.00 12,000.00 (400.00)
Emergency Response Services 6-6063 24,000.00 0.00 (24,000.00)
Repair/Maintenance of Motor Ve 6-6076 6,893.80 7,000.00 106.20
Fire Services Agreements 6-6078 0.00 24,000.00 24,000.00
General & Operating Supplies 6-6109 12,561.10 16,000.00 3,438.90

85,290.95 91,000.00 5,709.05

263



Salaries 6-6001 $236,534.47 $583,706.00 $347,171.53
Employer Contributions 6-6004 65,430.06 158,328.00 92,897.94
Accommodation & Subsistence 6-6011 1,619.99 4,000.00 2,380.01
Transportation Expenses 6-6012 1,603.16 3,500.00 1,896.84
Membships Seminars Conferences 6-6015 1,233.20 6,200.00 4,966.80
Freight & Courier Services 6-6032 0.00 300.00 300.00
Telecommunication Services 6-6033 3,758.14 3,500.00 (258.14)
Auditing & Accounting Services 6-6041 1,000.00 2,500.00 1,500.00

311,179.02 762,034.00 450,854.98

264



Honorariums 6-6003 $8,819.00 $34,000.00 $25,181.00
Employer Contributions 6-6004 0.00 3,000.00 3,000.00
Accommodation & Subsistence 6-6011 1,748.00 6,000.00 4,252.00
Transportation Expenses 6-6012 2,070.27 3,000.00 929.73
Membships Seminars Conferences 6-6015 0.00 4,000.00 4,000.00

12,637.27 50,000.00 37,362.73

265



Salaries 6-6001 $126.67 $0.00 ($126.67)
Employer Contributions 6-6004 29.88 0.00 (29.88)
Accommodation & Subsistence 6-6011 324.36 2,000.00 1,675.64
Transportation Expenses 6-6012 813.50 1,800.00 986.50
Training & Education 6-6013 402.48 2,000.00 1,597.52
Advertising Services 6-6021 760.50 1,500.00 739.50
Professional Services 6-6040 628.14 13,000.00 12,371.86
General & Operating Supplies 6-6109 13,067.70 23,000.00 9,932.30
Rental of Residential Building 6-6143 830.00 1,200.00 370.00

16,983.23 44,500.00 27,516.77

266



Accommodation & Subsistence 6-6011 $51.22 $700.00 $648.78
Transportation Expenses 6-6012 0.00 500.00 500.00
Training & Education 6-6013 688.20 800.00 111.80
Telecommunication Services 6-6033 0.00 5,000.00 5,000.00
Maintenance 6-6068 0.00 70,000.00 70,000.00
Repair/Maintenance of Motor Ve 6-6076 0.00 5,000.00 5,000.00
Petroleum & Antifreeze Products 6-6105 225.60 5,000.00 4,774.40
General & Operating Supplies 6-6109 12,234.08 31,000.00 18,765.92
Rental of Residential Building 6-6143 0.00 37,200.00 37,200.00

13,199.10 155,200.00 142,000.90

267



Accommodation & Subsistence 6-6011 $307.52 $2,000.00 $1,692.48
Transportation Expenses 6-6012 24,972.28 63,000.00 38,027.72
Training & Education 6-6013 227.12 2,000.00 1,772.88
Mobile Communication Services 6-6036 2,485.89 8,000.00 5,514.11

27,992.81 75,000.00 47,007.19

268



Grants to Organizations 6-6202 $0.00 $54,100.00 $54,100.00
0.00 54,100.00 54,100.00

269



Grants to Organizations 6-6202 $23,600.00 $65,000.00 $41,400.00
23,600.00 65,000.00 41,400.00

270



Grant Agreements 6-6203 $29,165.00 $70,000.00 $40,835.00
29,165.00 70,000.00 40,835.00

271



Salaries 6-6001 $17,074.93 $0.00 ($17,074.93)
Employer Contributions 6-6004 5,002.62 0.00 (5,002.62)
Accommodation & Subsistence 6-6011 261.73 1,000.00 738.27
Transportation Expenses 6-6012 0.00 1,000.00 1,000.00
Training & Education 6-6013 259.62 1,500.00 1,240.38

22,598.90 3,500.00 (19,098.90)

272



Salaries 6-6001 $269,010.74 $695,679.00 $426,668.26
Employer Contributions 6-6004 56,942.44 161,774.00 104,831.56
Accommodation & Subsistence 6-6011 6,401.59 14,300.00 7,898.41
Transportation Expenses 6-6012 2,001.00 1,200.00 (801.00)
Training & Education 6-6013 1,322.41 6,100.00 4,777.59
Membships Seminars Conferences 6-6015 3,785.00 9,400.00 5,615.00
Advertising Services 6-6021 2,222.87 2,000.00 (222.87)
Other Information Services 6-6029 0.00 500.00 500.00
Freight & Courier Services 6-6032 209.85 250.00 40.15
Professional Services 6-6040 36.19 1,750.00 1,713.81
Personal Protection Equipment & 6-6104 109.99 800.00 690.01
General & Operating Supplies 6-6109 696.79 2,300.00 1,603.21

342,738.87 896,053.00 553,314.13

273



Salaries 6-6001 $32.02 $0.00 ($32.02)
Honorariums 6-6003 13,862.53 57,350.00 43,487.47
Employer Contributions 6-6004 3,458.75 600.00 (2,858.75)
Accommodation & Subsistence 6-6011 4,013.81 23,500.00 19,486.19
Transportation Expenses 6-6012 4,693.71 7,000.00 2,306.29
Membships Seminars Conferences 6-6015 2,970.00 10,350.00 7,380.00
Advertising Services 6-6021 0.00 1,000.00 1,000.00
Freight & Courier Services 6-6032 0.00 150.00 150.00
Mobile Communication Services 6-6036 662.14 0.00 (662.14)
Professional Services 6-6040 0.00 1,000.00 1,000.00
General & Operating Supplies 6-6109 15.98 500.00 484.02

29,708.94 101,450.00 71,741.06

274



Accommodation & Subsistence 6-6011 $14.21 $250.00 $235.79
Freight & Courier Services 6-6032 0.00 700.00 700.00
Mobile Communication Services 6-6036 0.00 1,440.00 1,440.00
Professional Services 6-6040 4,790.00 12,000.00 7,210.00
Personal Protection Equipment & 6-6104 0.00 100.00 100.00
Petroleum & Antifreeze Products 6-6105 601.85 4,000.00 3,398.15
Parts for Motor Vehicle & Other 6-6107 5,925.33 15,000.00 9,074.67
Consumable Tools & Supplies 6-6108 895.15 5,000.00 4,104.85
General & Operating Supplies 6-6109 4,036.36 6,900.00 2,863.64

16,262.90 45,390.00 29,127.10

275



Accommodation & Subsistence 6-6011 $33.87 $6,500.00 $6,466.13
Transportation Expenses 6-6012 0.00 1,000.00 1,000.00
Training & Education 6-6013 1,695.24 8,000.00 6,304.76
Other Information Services 6-6029 0.00 6,000.00 6,000.00
Mobile Communication Services 6-6036 2,990.96 12,000.00 9,009.04
Professional Services 6-6040 5,310.26 29,000.00 23,689.74
Personal Protection Equipment & 6-6104 2,151.99 800.00 (1,351.99)
Petroleum & Antifreeze Products 6-6105 6,184.21 80,000.00 73,815.79
Parts for Motor Vehicle & Other 6-6107 7,262.95 130,000.00 122,737.05
Consumable Tools & Supplies 6-6108 1,292.78 1,000.00 (292.78)
General & Operating Supplies 6-6109 3,367.16 12,500.00 9,132.84
Chemicals 6-6110 313,993.45 331,485.00 17,491.55
Grants to Organizations 6-6202 0.00 1,500.00 1,500.00

344,282.87 619,785.00 275,502.13

276



Mobile Communication Services 6-6036 $0.00 $1,560.00 $1,560.00
Professional Services 6-6040 0.00 1,500.00 1,500.00
Harvest & Cleanup Incentives 6-6066 35,850.00 36,000.00 150.00
Personal Protection Equipment & 6-6104 0.00 1,000.00 1,000.00
Petroleum & Antifreeze Products 6-6105 763.87 24,000.00 23,236.13
Parts for Motor Vehicle & Other 6-6107 0.00 15,000.00 15,000.00
Consumable Tools & Supplies 6-6108 0.00 2,500.00 2,500.00
General & Operating Supplies 6-6109 6,272.83 5,000.00 (1,272.83)

42,886.70 86,560.00 43,673.30

277



Accommodation & Subsistence 6-6011 $0.00 $1,800.00 $1,800.00
Advertising Services 6-6021 0.00 10,000.00 10,000.00
Professional Services 6-6040 0.00 3,000.00 3,000.00
General & Operating Supplies 6-6109 291.88 1,500.00 1,208.12
Rental of Residential Building 6-6143 0.00 1,500.00 1,500.00
Grants to Organizations 6-6202 113,840.50 127,000.00 13,159.50

114,132.38 144,800.00 30,667.62

278



Maintenance 6-6068 $0.00 $12,000.00 $12,000.00
Other Govern Fees (1st Call) 6-6085 0.00 5,000.00 5,000.00
General & Operating Supplies 6-6109 0.00 8,000.00 8,000.00
Power Supply Service 6-6121 3,440.95 6,500.00 3,059.05
Natural Gas Service 6-6122 615.48 10,500.00 9,884.52
Direct Energy Utilities 6-6125 783.78 1,500.00 716.22
Grants to Organizations 6-6202 89,300.00 95,200.00 5,900.00

94,140.21 138,700.00 44,559.79

279



Linear Property Tax 5-5001 $59,801,660.73 $63,599,389.78 $3,797,729.05
Farmland Tax 5-5002 289,610.98 297,610.00 7,999.02
Machinery & Equipment Tax 5-5003 28,068,443.72 24,067,661.00 (4,000,782.72)
Non Residential Tax 5-5004 8,008,078.49 7,860,071.00 (148,007.49)
Residential Tax 5-5005 3,526,350.44 3,125,807.00 (400,543.44)
Min Prop Tax Levy 5-5006 4,360.43 0.00 (4,360.43)

99,698,504.79 98,950,538.78 (747,966.01)

280



Local Improvement Charge 5-5102 $92,164.50 $0.00 ($92,164.50)
Well Drillling Tax 5-5104 4,214,442.44 9,000,000.00 4,785,557.56

4,306,606.94 9,000,000.00 4,693,393.06

281



GIS & Plotting Service 5-5206 $195.00 $500.00 $305.00
Municipal Maps & Photos 5-5208 4,707.60 9,000.00 4,292.40
Photocopies 5-5210 77.67 0.00 (77.67)
Administrative Fees & Other Cha 5-5300 (10,351.26) 5,150.00 15,501.26
Fees - Assessment Complaint 5-5302 7,900.00 0.00 (7,900.00)
Fees - Tax Certficate 5-5311 5,100.00 10,000.00 4,900.00
Rounding GL 5-5313 0.05 0.00 (0.05)

7,629.06 24,650.00 17,020.94

282



Grant from Provincial Governmen 5-5706 $193,586.00 $0.00 ($193,586.00)
193,586.00 0.00 (193,586.00)

283



Wastewater Collection 5-5408 $12,784.00 $22,500.00 $9,716.00
Water Distribution 5-5410 56,160.20 93,000.00 36,839.80
Water Point Fees 5-5411 15,739.30 43,050.00 27,310.70
Water Rural 5-5412 12,326.00 31,000.00 18,674.00
Sale of Assets to Other Governm 5-5506 2,105.00 11,000.00 8,895.00
Other Revenue 5-5809 0.00 40,000.00 40,000.00

99,114.50 240,550.00 141,435.50

284



Grant from Provincial Governmen 5-5706 $425,610.00 $0.00 ($425,610.00)
425,610.00 0.00 (425,610.00)

285



Aggregate Levy 5-5101 $92,587.85 $900,000.00 $807,412.15
Dust Control 5-5204 83,845.00 85,000.00 1,155.00
Road Maintenance 5-5213 68,787.03 0.00 (68,787.03)
Road Services 5-5214 7,290.00 25,000.00 17,710.00
Road Permits & Fees 5-5404 1,200.00 5,000.00 3,800.00
Rural Address Sign Fee 5-5406 900.00 2,000.00 1,100.00

254,609.88 1,017,000.00 762,390.12

286



Fees - Business License 5-5305 $360.00 $300.00 ($60.00)
Fees - Certificate of Complianc 5-5306 200.00 100.00 (100.00)
Fees - MPC Permit 5-5309 58,720.00 400,000.00 341,280.00
Fees - Planning & Development 5-5310 15,400.00 30,000.00 14,600.00
Other Fees 5-5415 23,075.00 30,000.00 6,925.00
Sale of Land 5-5505 (1,400.00) 6,000.00 7,400.00

96,355.00 466,400.00 370,045.00

287



Grant from Provincial Governmen 5-5706 $5,519,417.00 $0.00 ($5,519,417.00)
5,519,417.00 0.00 (5,519,417.00)

288



Building Rental 5-5304 $33,843.47 $78,000.00 $44,156.53
33,843.47 78,000.00 44,156.53

289



Emergency Response Services 5-5230 $5,227.50 $0.00 ($5,227.50)
Bylaw Enforcement 5-5601 0.00 55,000.00 55,000.00

5,227.50 55,000.00 49,772.50

290



Grant from Other Governments 5-5705 $3,000.00 $0.00 ($3,000.00)
3,000.00 0.00 (3,000.00)

291



Sales of Goods & Services 5-5200 $18,076.00 $0.00 ($18,076.00)
Other Services 5-5299 23,100.00 0.00 (23,100.00)
Other Revenue 5-5809 2,900.00 0.00 (2,900.00)

44,076.00 0.00 (44,076.00)

292



Grant from Other Governments 5-5705 $1,680.00 $0.00 ($1,680.00)
Grant from Provincial Governmen 5-5706 121,474.00 0.00 (121,474.00)

123,154.00 0.00 (123,154.00)

293



ASB Seminars & Courses 5-5201 $50.00 $800.00 $750.00
ASB Services 5-5202 35.00 150.00 115.00
Maintenance & Repair Services 5-5207 10.00 1,200.00 1,190.00
Vegetation Management 5-5215 0.00 7,500.00 7,500.00
Other Services 5-5299 0.00 2,000.00 2,000.00
Fees - ASB Equipment Rental 5-5301 20,365.00 25,000.00 4,635.00
Building Rental 5-5304 19,023.08 36,000.00 16,976.92
Weed Enforcement 5-5604 0.00 500.00 500.00

39,483.08 73,150.00 33,666.92

294



GST 5-5203 $621.49 $0.00 ($621.49)
Miscellaneous Fees 5-5419 69,290.08 35,000.00 (34,290.08)
Sale of Assets 5-5500 52,039.00 0.00 (52,039.00)
Penalties on Receivables 5-5602 76,047.49 100,000.00 23,952.51
Penalty & Costs on Taxes 5-5603 661.54 150,000.00 149,338.46
Non-sufficient Funds Fee 5-5605 50.00 0.00 (50.00)
Claim Refund 5-5801 36,402.00 5,000.00 (31,402.00)
Return on Investment 5-5802 2,296,555.43 2,500,000.00 203,444.57
WCB Refund 5-5804 (915,811.52) 0.00 915,811.52

1,615,855.51 2,790,000.00 1,174,144.49

295



   
 

REQUEST FOR DECISION 
   

 
 

Greenview, Alberta     1 

 
SUBJECT:  Security Deposits for Residential Construction to Proposed Residential Developments
SUBMISSION TO:  REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING REVIEWED  AND  APPROVED  FOR SUBMISSION 
MEETING DATE:  September 27, 2016  CAO: MH MANAGER: 
DEPARTMENT:  INFRASTRUCTURE & PLANNING/PLANNING & 

DEVELOPMENT 
GM: GG PRESENTER: GG

FILE NO./LEGAL:    LEGAL/ POLICY REVIEW:
STRATEGIC PLAN:    FINANCIAL REVIEW:

 
RELEVANT LEGISLATION: 

Provincial (cite) –  
 
Council Bylaw / Policy (cite) – Policy 4001/4001‐01, EES 01 and new Policy 4001 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
MOTION:  That Council adopt Policy 4001 as presented. 
 
MOTION: That Council rescind Policy 4001/4001‐01 (Dated November 26, 2013) and Policy EES 01. 
 

BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL: 
 
During the regular scheduled Council meeting on July 12, 2016 it was requested that administration review and bring 
back  to  the Policy Review Committee Policy 4001 “Security Deposits  for Access Construction  to Proposed Residential 
Developments” for the sole purpose of reducing the security deposit within the policy.  
 
Public roads constructed for the purpose of residential access within a Government Road Allowance are designed to 
meet the guidelines of Alberta Transportation for public access. 
 
The original security deposit was set at 20% of the estimated cost of construction or to a maximum of $50,000.00. The 
estimated cost of construction is compiled from data collected by the consultant tasked to the project. 
 
Administration suggests that we continue to have a security deposit in place and have reduced the security deposit to 
10% or to a maximum of $30,000.00 to be submitted prior to any onsite construction. 
 
Administration will request that Council rescind old Policy 4001/4001‐01, EES 01 and after the New Policy 4001 has 
been reviewed and accepted by the Policy Review Committee. 
   
OPTIONS – BENEFITS / DISADVANTAGES: 
 

296



 

2      

Options – Council could raise or lower the security deposit. 
 
Council could add an administration fee; whereas after the application has been accepted by Council, the fee would 
offset the cost for the class “c” estimate completed by the consultant. If the applicant fails to move forward with the 
project after the estimate by the consultant is initiated then Greenview retains the fee. If the applicant moves forward 
with the security deposit the fee becomes part of the total security required for construction. 
 
Benefits – This change would reduce the burden on persons looking to access this program. 
   
Disadvantages – The reduction of barriers may increase the chances of persons abusing the program. 
 
COSTS / SOURCE OF FUNDING: 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): 
 

 New Policy 4001 
 Old Policy 4001/4001‐01 
 Policy EES 01 

297



 

Policy No: 4001 
  Page 1 

P 
O
 L
 I 

C 
Y 

 
DEFINITIONS 
 
Permanent Residency means an approved permanent residence which is continuously occupied said 
residence for more than six months. 
 
POLICY 
 
1.  Greenview is required to provide or ensure legal access to property but is not required to 

provide physical access.   When Council authorizes a road to be constructed to provide 
physical access to a quarter section(s) or a parcel of land, the road shall be constructed 
under the following conditions: 

 
1.1   All new roads being constructed to a quarter section(s) or a parcel of land shall be 

constructed through the quarter section as per Greenview’s Engineering Design & 
Construction Standards’ cul‐de‐sac section. 

 
  1.2  Residential  roads  will  be  constructed  to  the  specifications  as  outlined  in  the 

Greenview Engineering Design & Construction Standards. 
 
  1.3  When  the quarter section  line or property  line  lies within a  low area, muskeg, 

creek or other physical barrier unsuitable to access the parcel, the road shall be 
constructed sufficiently past such barrier to surpass any hindrance. 

 
  1.4  When  a  low  area, muskeg,  creek or other physical barrier does not  allow  for 

acceptable access and would create substantial increase to the cost of the project, 
the issue will be brought to Council for review. 

 
2.  Upon receipt of a Residential Road Construction Request, where Council approves the request 

for the construction of road access on a road allowance to unoccupied lands for the purpose 
of  proposed  residential  development,  the  applicant  will  provide  security  in  the  form  of 
cash/certified cheque or Irrevocable Letter of Credit to ensure the residential development 
takes place. 

 

Title:  SECURITY DEPOSITS FOR RESIDENTIAL ROAD CONSTRUCTION TO PROPOSED 
RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENTS 
 
Policy No: 4001 
 
Effective Date:   
 
Motion Number:  
 
Supersedes  Policy  No: 
4001/4001‐01  (Nov  26/13), 
EES 01  

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

MUNICIPAL DISTRICT OF GREENVIEW NO. 16 
“A Great Place to Live, Work and Play” 

 

Purpose:  To establish a process whereby security deposits are required from applicants for 
the construction of residential roads. 
 

298



 

Policy No: 4001 
  Page 2 

P 
O
 L
 I 

C 
Y   

3.  The security deposit shall be 10% of the estimated cost of residential road construction, up to 
a  maximum  of  $30,000.  The  amount  of  the  deposit  may  be  varied  if  there  are  other 
considerations provided by the  landowner (such as borrow material) that give value to the 
project.  

 
4.  The  security  deposit  will  be  returned  or  refunded  to  the  applicant,  without  interest,  if 

permanent residency is established within three years of the date of approval of residential 
road construction. Where this has not been met, or the property has been sold prior to the 
fulfillment of this condition, the security will be forfeited. 

 
5.  Construction of a residential road will not commence until the specified security has been 

provided by the applicant and an agreement outlining terms and conditions has been entered 
into by the applicant. 

 
6.  Dedication  of  road  widening,  as  determined  by  the  General  Manager,  Infrastructure  & 

Planning,  will  be  required  on  land  owned  by  the  applicant  adjacent  to  or  abutting  the 
residential road construction project. 

 
7.  Payment  of  the  security  deposit  must  be  received  within  ninety  (90)  days  from  Council 

approval to construct, and prior to the project proceeding.  
 

 

299



 

Municipal District of Greenview No. 16  
Policy 4001, Effective November 26, 2013 Page 1 

P O
 L I C Y 

Title:     SECURITY DEPOSITS FOR ACCESS CONSTRUCTION TO PROPOSED RESIDENTIAL         
 DEVELOPMENTS 
 
Policy No: 4001 
 
Approval: Council 
 
Effective Date:  November 26, 2013 
 
Supersedes Policy No: (EES 22)  

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
MUNICIPAL DISTRICT OF GREENVIEW NO. 16 

“A Great Place to Live, Work and Play” 

 

Policy Statement: The Municipal District of Greenview No. 16 (Greenview) is committed to 
providing access to residential developments when feasible. To protect the best interests of 
the Greenview road networking system it is appropriate to confirm that the proposed access 
will be utilized for its intended purpose of providing access to residential development in 
order to justify the construction of the proposed access.  Deposits will be collected from 
applicants in order to demonstrate commitment to residential development. 
 

 

Purpose: The purpose is to establish a process whereby security deposits are required from 
applicants for the construction of residential access roads in order to ensure the obligations 
of the developer are fulfilled. 
 
 

Principles:  
1. Where Council approves a request for the construction of road access on a road 

allowance to unoccupied lands for the purpose of proposed residential 
development, the applicant will provide security in the form of cash/certified 
cheque or Irrevocable Letter of Credit to ensure that the residential development 
takes place. 
 

2. The security deposit shall be 20% of the estimated cost of access construction, up 
to a maximum of $50,000. The amount of the deposit may be varied if there are 
other considerations provided by the landowner (such as borrow material) that 
give value to the project.  

 
 

3. The security deposit will be returned or refunded to the applicant, without 
interest, if permanent residency is established within three years of the date of 
approval of access construction. Where this has not been met, or the property 
has been sold prior to the fulfillment of this condition, the security will be 
forfeited. 
 

4. Construction of an access road will not commence until the specified security has 
been provided by the applicant and an agreement outlining terms and conditions 
has been entered into by the applicant. 
 
 

300



 

Municipal District of Greenview No. 16  
Policy 4001, Effective November 26, 2013 Page 2 

P O
 L I C Y 

 
Regulations: 
 

1. None. 
 
 
Approved:  13.11.644 

 

 
5. Dedication of road widening, as determined by the General Manager, 

Infrastructure & Planning, will be required on land owned by the applicant 
adjacent to or abutting the access construction project. 
 

6. Payment of the security deposit must be received within ninety (90) days from 
Council approval to construct, and prior to the project proceeding. 

 

301



 

Municipal District of Greenview No. 16  
Procedure 4001-01, Effective November 26, 2013 Page 1 

P R O
 C E D

 U
 R E 

 

 

MUNICIPAL DISTRICT OF GREENVIEW NO. 16 

“A Great Place to Live, Work and Play” 

Procedure Title: SECURITY DEPOSITS FOR ACCESS CONSTRUCTION TO PROPOSED   
                              RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT  
 
Procedure No: 4001-01 
 
Approval: CAO 
 
Effective Date:  November 26, 2013 

 
Supersedes Procedure No: EES 22 

 

 
 
1. Definitions 
 
1.1. Residential Access means to meet the specifications as outlined in the Greenview 

Engineering Design & Construction Standards.   
 

1.2. Permanent Residency means to continuously occupancy for more than six months.  
 
2. Responsibilities 
 
2.1. Council Members, Board Members and Greenview Staff to: 
 
2.1.1. Provide access to residence within the M.D. of Greenview. 
 
2.2. Council Members and Senior Management: 
 
2.2.1. Approve residential access that will be utilized by ratepayers using a system that 

will allow the access for be function for many years. 
 

2.3 Senior Management to: 
 
2.3.1 Recommend and investigate the need and cost of the proposed access. 
 
2.4 Supervisors to: 
 
2.4.1 Receive the request and investigate all details needed to complete the potential 

construction. 
 
 
 

302



 

Municipal District of Greenview No. 16  
Procedure 4001-01, Effective November 26, 2013 Page 2 

P R O
 C E D

 U
 R E 

 
2.5 Corporate Services Staff to: 
 
2.5.1  Manage all security deposit and refund accordingly once permanent residency is  
  established. 
 
3. End of Procedure 
 
 
Approved: 13.11.645 

303



 

 

 
M. D. OF GREENVIEW NO. 16 

 
POLICY & PROCEDURES MANUAL 

Section: 
 
ENGINEERING & 

ENVIRONMENTAL 

SERVICES 

 
POLICY NUMBER:  EES 01 

 

POLICY TITLE: ACCESS DEFINITION FOR ROAD REQUESTS Page 1 of 1 

 

Date Adopted by Council / Motion Number:  09.12.661 

 

 

PURPOSE: 
 

To provide a definition of what constitutes suitable physical access to a quarter of land or a parcel of 

land.   

 

POLICY: 

 

The M.D. is required to provide or ensure legal access to property but is not required to provide 

physical access.  When Council authorizes a road to be constructed to provide physical access to a 

quarter section(s) or a parcel of land, the road shall be constructed under the following conditions. 

 

1.0       All new roads being constructed to a quarter section(s) or a parcel of land shall be constructed 

 to the quarter section line with a suitable turn-around. 

 

2.0 When the quarter section line or property line lies within a low area, muskeg, creek or other 

 physical barrier unsuitable to access the parcel, the road shall be constructed sufficiently past 

 such barrier to surpass any hindrance. 

 

3.0 When a low area, muskeg, creek or other physical barrier does not allow for acceptable access 

 and would create substantial increase to the cost of the project,  The issue will be brought to 

 Council for review. 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

(Original signed copy on file)             ________________________________________ 

REEVE   C.A.O. 
 

 

304



   
 

REQUEST FOR DECISION 
   

 
 

Greenview, Alberta     1 

 
SUBJECT:  Provincial Linear Property Assessment – 2016 Annual Report
SUBMISSION TO:  REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING REVIEWED  AND  APPROVED  FOR SUBMISSION 
MEETING DATE:  September 27, 2016  CAO: MH MANAGER: 
DEPARTMENT:  CAO SERVICES  GM: PRESENTER:
FILE NO./LEGAL:    LEGAL/ POLICY REVIEW:
STRATEGIC PLAN:    FINANCIAL REVIEW:

 
RELEVANT LEGISLATION: 

Provincial (cite) – NA 
 
Council Bylaw / Policy (cite) – NA 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
MOTION:  That Council accept the Provincial Linear Property Assessment 2016 Annual Report for information as 
presented. 
 

BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL: 
 
Please see the attached report published by Municipal Affairs regarding Linear Assessment. 
 
In 2016 it is expected that linear assessment will generate approximately $63.5 Million in municipal tax revenue for the 
Municipal District of Greenview. This equates to roughly 64.5% of the overall MD revenue. 
 
In addition to explaining elements of linear assessment which are educational in nature, the report outlines several 
statistics of interest: 
 

 In  2016  it  is  estimated  that  $822  Million  is  tax  revenue will  be  generated  by municipalities  from  linear 
assessment. 

 The 2016 Linear taxes was $63,599,390 this equals to 64.5% of the overall MD property taxes. 
 The chart on page three of the report shows the change in assessment from 2015 to 2016. Of note, pipelines 

and wells which account for almost 78% of provincial linear assessment both saw an overall decrease. 
 Page 13 of the report indicates that in 2016 linear assessment in cities grew by 15.2% while linear assessment 

in rural areas (MD’s, Counties, Specialized Municipalities) decreased by 6.71%. 
 

Administration is currently working on forecasting specific to Greenview. This will be done by attempting to ascertain 
if further decreases are likely – due to the current economic climate it is believed that they are – offset against any 

305



 

2      

new  development  within  Greenview  (inventory  growth).  For  Council’s  information,  the  following  chart  depicts 
Greenview’s linear assessment classes relative to each other: 
 

 
   
OPTIONS – BENEFITS / DISADVANTAGES: 
 
Options – Council may either accept the report for information or not. 
 
Benefits – The report is solely intended for Council’s information. Accepting the report for information acknowledges 
that Council has seen and reviewed the report. 
   
Disadvantages – There are no perceived disadvantages to accepting the report for information. 
 
COSTS / SOURCE OF FUNDING: 
 
There are no costs associated with the recommendation. 

ATTACHMENT(S): 
 

 Linear Property Assessment 2016 Annual Report 

Phone
0%

Power
5%

Pipes/Wells
95%

Cable
0%

Greenview Linear Assessment

Phone Power Pipes/Wells Cable

306



307



308



309



310



311



312



313



314



315



316



317



318



319



320



321



322



323



324



325



326



   
 

REQUEST FOR DECISION 
   

 
 

Greenview, Alberta     1 

 
SUBJECT:  Heart River Housing Letter – September 9th, 2016
SUBMISSION TO:  REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING REVIEWED  AND  APPROVED  FOR SUBMISSION 
MEETING DATE:  September 27, 2016  CAO: MH MANAGER: 
DEPARTMENT:  CAO SERVICES  GM: PRESENTER: MH
FILE NO./LEGAL:    LEGAL/ POLICY REVIEW:
STRATEGIC PLAN:    FINANCIAL REVIEW:

 
RELEVANT LEGISLATION: 

Provincial (cite) – NA 
 
Council Bylaw / Policy (cite) – NA 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
MOTION:  That Council accept the Heart River Housing Correspondence of September 9th, 2016 for information, as 
presented. 
 

BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL: 
 
Please see the attached correspondence from Heart River Housing. 
 
In the letter Mr. Lindsay Pratt, the Heart River Housing Administrator, outlines some of the projects the organization 
is currently undertaking. On behalf of Heart River Housing, he is requesting that local councils appoint the current 
board members  for another term at the upcoming Organizational Meetings. This  is being requested as the group 
believes that it will maintain continuity with the organization and its programs/projects. 
   
OPTIONS – BENEFITS / DISADVANTAGES: 
 
Options – Council may either accept the report for information or not. 
 
Benefits – The report is solely intended for Council’s information. Accepting the report for information acknowledges 
that Council has seen and reviewed the report. 
   
Disadvantages – There are no perceived disadvantages to accepting the report for information. 
 
COSTS / SOURCE OF FUNDING: 
 
There are no costs associated with the recommendation. 

327



 

2      

ATTACHMENT(S): 
 

 Heart River Housing Letter – September 9th, 2016 

328



329



   
 

REQUEST FOR DECISION 
   

 
 

Greenview, Alberta     1 

 
SUBJECT:  AAMDC Meeting with Danielle Larivee, Minister of Municipal Affairs 
SUBMISSION TO:  REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING REVIEWED  AND  APPROVED  FOR SUBMISSION 
MEETING DATE:  September 27, 2016  CAO: MH MANAGER: 
DEPARTMENT:  CAO SERVICES  GM: PRESENTER: MH
FILE NO./LEGAL:    LEGAL/ POLICY REVIEW:
STRATEGIC PLAN:    FINANCIAL REVIEW:

 
RELEVANT LEGISLATION: 

Provincial (cite) – NA 
 
Council Bylaw / Policy (cite) – NA 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
MOTION:  That Council direct Administration to arrange (or not) a meeting with the Minister of Municipal Affairs 
during the AAMDC 2016 Fall Convention. 
 

BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL: 
 
The following are excerpts of an email received by Administration on September 22nd, 2016: 

“The Alberta Association of Municipal Districts and Counties (AAMDC) will be hosting its fall 
convention in Edmonton at the Shaw Conference Centre from November 15‐17, 2016. Municipal 
Affairs has started planning for ministry‐related events at the convention. Part of this 
preparation includes co‐ordinating meetings, as scheduling allows, between me and municipal 
stakeholders. 

Should your council want to meet with me at the 2016 AAMDC Fall Convention, and to ensure 
suitable time for co‐ordination, I invite you to submit your meeting request on or before Friday, 
October 7, 2016.” 

and, 

“Specific details on meeting dates and times will be determined in the fall once the AAMDC Fall 
Convention agenda and associated convention events have been confirmed. Municipalities will 
be contacted by Friday, October 28, 2016, with their meeting time and location. 

I look forward to seeing many of you during the convention, and I am eager to engage and 
discuss municipal priorities and opportunities. 

330



 

2      

Sincerely, 

Hon. Danielle Larivee 
Minister of Municipal Affairs” 

These meetings are generally for specific topics (usually questions and wants regarding specific issues) 
and, given the number of potential meetings, are generally not long in duration. If Council has specific 
topics that they wish to engage with the Minister on, Administration can arrange a meeting and briefing 
accordingly. 

   
OPTIONS – BENEFITS / DISADVANTAGES: 
 
Options – Council may choose to arrange a meeting or to not arrange a meeting. 
 
Benefits – If there is a specific topic or discussion Council wishes to have, a meeting provides a face to face audience 
with the Minister.  
   
Disadvantages – There are no disadvantages to meeting with the Minister if a specific topic is being discussed. This 
will draw some or all of Council away from the main conference while the meeting is taking place. 
 
COSTS / SOURCE OF FUNDING: 
 
There are no costs associated with the recommendation. 

ATTACHMENT(S): 
 
None 

331



MUNICIPAL DISTRICT OF GREENVIEW NO. 16 
                                                               “A Great Place to Live, Work and Play” 

 

Greenview, Alberta     1 

CAO’s Report 

Function:  CAO  
 

Date:    September 27th, 2016 

 

Submitted by:  Mike Haugen 

 

Grande Cache Community Survey 

The final results of a survey conducted within the Co‐ops and Enterprises are being compiled. The 
results will help aid Greenview with discussions around services for the Grande Cache area. 

 

Grande Cache Display Board 

Greenview is installing a display board in the Grande Cache mall as part of our efforts to 
communicate with our area residents. The Board will be maintained by the Grande Cache 
Community Coordinator and is being constructed by the Grande Cache Institution with Greenview 
supplying the cork board. 

 
Board and Committee Terms of Reference 
Administration has initiated a review and development of Terms of Reference for the multitude of 
Boards and Committees that exist within Greenview. It has been found that many of these groups 
have outdated Terms of Reference and, in some cases, no Terms of Reference at all. Ultimately, the 
Terms of Reference will come back to Council for formal approval. 
 
Budget 
Staff continue to work on Budget in preparation for presentation to Council. 
 
AAMDC 
Administration has contacted the offices of the three local MLAs regarding a supper meeting with 
Council at the upcoming AAMDC convention. 
 
Upcoming Dates: 

Nov 15‐17  AAMDC Convention 

332


	AGENDA 16 09 27
	2016 09 27 Final Agenda Package
	3.1 2016 09 13 RC Minutes
	5.1 a Canada Post Report
	5.1 d Postal Banking Leaflet
	5.2 a GP Stompede Presentation
	5.2 b Stompede Presentation
	5.3 a Drysdale Presentation
	6.1 a Bylaw 15-742 MDP 2 & 3 Readings
	6.1 b Greenview MDP Final Revs Tracked Sept 2016
	6.1 c Schedules 'A' & 'B' - Greenview MDP Final Sept 27 2016
	6.2 a RFD Bylaw 16-772 LAPP
	6.2 b Bylaw 16-772 LAPP
	6.2 c LAPP At-a-Glance
	8.1 a Federal Tanker Moratorium
	8.1 b Letter - Proposed Federal Tanker Moratorium
	8.2 a Fox Creek Fire Hall Agreement
	8.2 b Fox Creek Fire Hall AG39-16
	8.3 a Fox Creek Multiplex
	8.3 b Fox Creek Recreation MultiPlex AG27-16
	8.4 a RFD Regional Walking Trails (Sep 20 2016)
	8.4 b Proposed NonMotorized Trails Presentation - Apr 2016
	8.5 a Sweathouse Hall Request Additional Gravel
	8.5 b Sweathouse Hall Request Additonal Gravel
	8.6 a DeBolt and District Agricultural Society Vegas Gala Sponsorship
	8.6 b DeBolt and District Agricultural Society Vegas Night
	8.7 a Valleyview and District Chamber of Commerce Small Business Awards
	8.7 b Valleyview and District Chamber of Commerce Sponsorship Request Letter
	8.8 a Valleyview Jets Sponsorship Request
	8.8 b Valleyview Jets Sponsorship Request Letter
	8.9 a Nitehawk 20th Annual Comedy Night Fundraiser
	8.9 b Nitehawk Invitation - 20th Annual Comedy Night Fundraiser
	8.10 a RFD Second Quarter Report RO
	8.10 b Second Quarter Budget to Actual Report
	101 Council Office
	102 Municipal Elections
	110 CAO & Corporate Services
	111 Communications
	112 Assessment
	113 Contingencies
	114 Education Requisitions
	115 Information Systems Management
	200 Infrastructure & Planning Admin
	211 Planning & Development Admin
	212 Municipal Planning Commission
	213 Subdivision and Appeal Board
	214 Intergovernmental Development P
	215 Citizen Panel
	220 Environmental Services Admin
	221 Water Supply
	222 Wastewater Collection & Disposal
	223 Solid Waste Collection & Disposal
	230 Operations Administrative
	231 Fleet & Shop Administrative
	232 Operations Grovedale
	233 Airport Agreements
	234 Street Lights
	240 Road Maintenance & Inspection Admin
	241 Bridge Maintenance & Inspection
	242 Brushing Program
	243 Mowing Program
	245 Gravelling Program
	246 Road Services
	247 Pit Reclamation
	250 Facility Maintenance Admin
	254 W D Stevenson Building
	300 Community Services Administration
	301 Valleyview Medical Clinic
	302 Fox Creek Medical Clinic
	303 Seniors Programs
	304 Seniors Foundation
	305 Other Buildings
	311 Economic Development Program
	312 Community Development Agreement
	320 Recreation Boards
	321 Community Services Grants
	322 Valleyview Recreation Grants
	323 Multipurpose Facility Grants
	324 Agricultural Societies
	330 Cultural & Historical Buildings
	332 Community Halls
	333 Museums
	334 Cemeteries
	340 Recreation Enhancement Program Admin
	342 Recreation Facilities Operations & Maintenance
	343 Recreation and Tourism Partner
	350 Protective Services Administration
	351 Fire Protection Valleyview
	352 Fire Protection Grande Cache
	353 Fire Protection DeBolt
	354 Fire Protection Grovedale
	355 Disaster Control Services
	356 Ambulance Services
	357 Health & Safety
	358 Fire Protection Fox Creek
	360 FCSS Administrative
	361 FCSS Board
	362 FCSS Programs
	363 Community Resource Centre
	364 Home Support
	365 Liaison Workers
	366 Grants to External Agencies
	367 Grande Cache Pilot Project
	369 Support Coordinator Program
	370 Agricultural Services Administration
	371 Agriculture Service Board
	372 ASB Rental Equipment Program
	373 ASB Vegetation Management
	374 ASB Pest Control
	375 Extension and Outreach
	376 Veterinary Clinic
	510 Property Taxes
	511 Other Taxes
	531 Administrative Revenues
	531A Administrative Grants
	532 Environmental Services Revenues
	532A Wastewater Collection & Disposal Grants
	533 Operations Services Revenues
	534 Planning & Development Services Revenues
	534A Planning & Development Services Grants
	535 Community Services Revenues
	536 Protective Services Revenues
	536A Protective Services Grants
	537 FCSS Services Revenues
	537A FCSS Services Grants
	538 Agricultural Services Revenues
	541 Other Revenue from Own Sources

	8.11 a RFD  Security Deposits for Residential Construction to Proposed Residential Developments a
	8.11 b New Policy 4001 a
	8.11 c Old 4001 Security Deposits for Access Construction to Proposed Residential Development a
	8.11 c Old 4001-01 Security Deposits for Access Construction to Proposed Residential Development a
	8.11 d EES 01 - Access Definition for Road Requests a
	8.12 a Linear Property Assessment 2016 Annual Report
	8.12 b 2016 Annual Report
	8.13 a Heart River Housing Appointment
	8.13 b Heart River Housing Letter Sept 9
	8.14 a AAMDC - Minister of Municipal Affairs and Housing
	8.16 a CAO Report - Sept 27 16




